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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO OFFICE OF THE CONTROLLER

December 21, 2007

The Honorable Mayor Gavin Newsom

The Honorable Members of the Board of Supervisors
Citizens of the City and County of San Francisco
San Francisco, California

Ladies and Gentlemen:

| am pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City and County of
San Francisco, California (the City) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, with the Independent
Auditor’s Report. The report is submitted in compliance with City Charter sections 2.115 and 3.105, and
California Government Code Sections 25250 and 25253. The Office of the Controller prepared the CAFR
in conformance with the principles and standards for financial reporting set forth by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The City is responsible for the accuracy of the data and for the completeness and faimess of its
presentation. The existing comprehensive structure of internal accounting controls in the City provides
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements. | believe that
the reported data is accurate in all material respects and that its presentation fairly depicts the City’s
financial position and changes to its financial position as measured by the financial activity of its various
funds. | am confident that the included disclosures provide the reader with an understanding of the City’s
financial affairs.

The City’s Charter requires an annual audit of the Controller’s records. The records have been audited
by Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP and are presented in this CAFR. The CAFR also incorporates financial
statements for San Francisco International Airport, the San Francisco Water Enterprise, Hetch Hetchy
Water and Power, the Municipal Transportation Agency, the San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise, the
Port of San Francisco, the City of San Francisco Market Corporation, the City and County of San
Francisco Finance Corporation, the City and County of San Francisco Health Service System, the San
Francisco City and County Employees’ Retirement System, and the San Francisco Redevelopment
Agency.

This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
section of the CAFR. The MD&A provides a narrative overview and analysis of the Basic Financial
Statements and is presented after the independent auditor’s report.

Key CAFR Sections

The Introductory Section includes information about the organizational structure of the City, the City’s
economy, major initiatives, status of City services, and cash management.

The Financial Section includes the MD&A, Basic Financial Statements, notes to the Basic Financial
Statements, and required supplementary information. The Basic Financial Statements include the
government-wide financial statements that report on all City financial operations, including fund financial
statements that present information for all City funds. The independent auditor’s report on the Basic
Financial Statements is also included.

The financials of several enterprise activities and of all component units of government are included in
this CAFR. Some component units’ financials are blended with the City’s, such as: the San Francisco
County Transportation Authority, the San Francisco Finance Corporation, and the San Francisco Parking
Authority. The reason for this is that the primary government is financially accountable for the operations
of these agencies. In other instances, namely, for the San Francisco Redevelopment Agency and the
Treasure Island Development Authority, financial reporting is shown separately.
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The Statistical Section includes up to ten years of historical financial data and miscellaneous social and
economic information that conforms to GASB standards for reporting—Statement No. 44. This section
may be of special interest to prospective investors in our bonds.

Profile of San Francisco’s Government

The City and County of San Francisco was established by Charter in 1850 and is the only legal
subdivision of the State of California with the governmental powers of both a city and a county. The City's
legislative power is exercised through a Board of Supervisors, while its executive power is vested upon a
Mayor and other appointed and elected officials. Key public services provided by the City include public
safety and protection, public transportation, construction and maintenance of all public facilities, water,
parks, public health systems, social services and planning. The heads of most of these departments are
appointed by the Mayor and advised by commissions and boards appointed by City elected officials.

Elected officials include the Mayor, Members of the Board of Supervisors, Assessor-Recorder, City
Attorney, District Attorney, Public Defender, Sheriff, Superior Court Judges, and Treasurer. Since
November 2000, the eleven-member Board of Supervisors has been elected through district elections.
The eleven district elections are staggered for five and six seats at a time, and held in even-numbered
years. Board members serve four-year terms and vacancies are filled by Mayoral appointment.

San Francisco’s Budgetary Process

The City adopts annual budgets for all governmental funds and typically adopts project-length budgets for
capital projects and certain debt service funds. The budget is adopted at the character level of
expenditure within each department, and the department level and fund is the legal level of budgetary
control. Note 2(c) to the Basic Financial Statements summarizes the budgetary roles of City officials and
the timetable for their various budgetary actions according to the City Charter.

San Francisco’s Economy: Strongest in Many Years

By the end of fiscal year 2006-2007 (June 30, 2007), San Francisco’s economy was the healthiest it has
been in several years. While the national downturn in housing prices, and associated credit crunch and
macroeconomic uncertainty are genuine causes for concern, San Francisco itself has little exposure to
sub-prime mortgages, and its property tax base is not materially at risk. Housing prices have continued to
grow at robust levels. Compared with other areas of the state and country, San Francisco is expected to
weather any downturn comparatively well.

Preliminary data indicate that the number of employed residents in San Francisco rose by 9,900 people
between June 2006 and June 2007. Final annual employment data indicates that 12,200 new jobs were
added in calendar year 2006. Combined with the 5,500 jobs added in 2005, San Francisco has added
17,700 new jobs in the last two years. This reversed four consecutive years of job loss from 2000 to
2004.' Annual average unemployment for 2006 fell to 4.2 percent in San Francisco, the lowest point since
the boom year of 2000, and the year-to-date average unemployment rate through June 2007 remained at
4.2 percent.

A healthy tourism industry, significant growth in professional and financial services, and a recovering
population have contributed to these positive trends. Tourism helped to improve the City’s retail and
hospitality sectors, which translated into greater hotel and sales tax revenues for City government.

Real estate market investing in office and housing markets continued to sustain the construction pipeline,
as well as increasing property and transfer tax revenues. According to a recent report from the Urban
Land Institute and PriceWaterhouseCoopers, San Francisco has the fifth-best real estate investment

! California Employment Development Department (EDD), Current Employment Statistics (CES) series, 10/4/2007.
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market in the country, ahead of San Jose, Los Angeles, and San Diego’. San Francisco ranked in the top
five in residential, office, and retail development, and led the nation in hotel development potential.

The national housing downturn, and relatively high levels of construction since 2004, have changed San
Francisco’s housing situation over the past year. From December 2005 to December 2006, the median
home declined by 1 percent, from $750,000 to $745,000%. Over the full 2006-2007 fiscal year however,
the median sales price increased by 4.4 percent, rising to $825,000 by June 2007*. This is partly evidence
of San Francisco’s strong fundamentals in housing, and partly due to the fact that higher-priced properties
appear to be selling more quickly.

Key Economic Outcomes

Several important economic outcomes for San Francisco are discussed in more detail in the following
sections.

Population: Clear Recovery After 2005

Since 2000, the California Department of Finance and the U.S. Census Bureau have released
significantly different estimates of San Francisco’s population. In 2006, for the first time since 2000, both
sources indicated a rise in San Francisco’s population. The Census reported that San Francisco’s
population stood at 744,041 as of July 1, 20086, representing a 0.4 percent increase over 2005. The
California Department of Finance reported 802,651 for 2006, indicating a 0.8 percent increase over 2005.

Census data confirms the City’s population has changed in economically significant ways. Very large
numbers of young adults moved to San Francisco during the late 1990s, but over 50,000 people in that
age group left the City between 2000 and 2004 as job growth declined. According to the Census Bureau’s
American Community Survey, however, this trend began to reverse itself in 2004. Between 2004 and
2006 the number of young aduits in their twenties in San Francisco rose by over 6,400.

Employment: One of the Nation’s Fastest-Growing Counties

The wage and salary employment base of San Francisco grew by over 12,200 jobs during calendar year
(CY) 2006, from 508,400 to 520,600°. This 2.4 percent growth is the fastest rate of job increase since
1999-2000, and ranked San Francisco 87™ in job growth among over 3,000 U.S. counties. Of particular
note, San Francisco’s recent job growth rate surpassed Santa Clara, Alameda, and Contra Costa
counties within the Bay Area.

Unemployment: Down to 2000 Levels

San Francisco’s annual unemployment rate for fiscal year 2006-2007 fell to 4.1 percent. In December
2006, the unemployment rate dipped to 3.7 percent, with only 15,800 San Francisco residents
unemployed. That represented the lowest monthly unemployment total since December 2000.

Average Wages: Rising Rapidly

Despite the recession associated with the technology slump of the early 2000s, average wages in San
Francisco have continued to grow at higher rates than the state or nation. San Francisco’s average
annual wage, across all industries, grew to $70,825 in CY 2006 — a 6.4 percent increase over CY 2005°.
By comparison, average wages nationally grew by only 4.5 percent and by 4.6 percent in California. As

2 Emerging Trends in Real Estate 2008, Urban Land Institute and PriceWaterhouseCoopers

3 California Association of Realtors, December 2006 Median Home Prices.

4 California Association of Realtors, June 2007 Median Home Prices.

3 California Employment Development Department (EDD), Current Employment Statistics (CES) series, 10/4/2007
® U.S, Bureau of Labor Statistics, Quarterly Census of Employment and Wages
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discussed in more detail below, the expansion of San Francisco's high-wage professional services sector,
as well as dramatically rising wages in financial services, are largely responsible for the growth.

Bond Ratings: Holding Strong

The City’s fiscal health continues to improve as reflected in investment grade bond ratings on the City’s
municipal debt. Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s and Fitch affirmed the City’s general obligation bond ratings
of Aa3, AA and AA-, respectively. The credit outlook on the City’s municipal debt was affirmed “Positive”
by Moody's and Fitch and “Stable” by Standard and Poor’s. The rating agencies each cited the City’s
strong underlying economy or accelerating economic growth, highlighting the broad and resilient real
estate sector in particular. Prudent financial management has also been cited.

San Francisco’s Major Industries

San Francisco’s economy is dependent on the global competitiveness of two sets of industry clusters:
knowledge-based businesses centered around professional, financial, and information services, and
experience-based businesses centered on tourism. San Francisco’s recovery is due in no small measure
to the resurgence of these key elements of its economy. The major industries within these clusters are
detailed in this section, with a focus on the most recently-available job data.

In addition, a profile of some new San Francisco companies in each cluster are included below. In CY
2006, 22 major businesses relocated to San Francisco. From January to June 2007, 24 companies had
relocated or announced their intentions to relocate to San Francisco. About half of these 2007 moves
involved relocations of headquarters operations to the city, while the rest were branch offices of
companies moving to San Francisco for the first time.

Finance, Professional, and Headquarters Services: Rapid Growth, and Rising Wages

The core of San Francisco’s knowledge-based economy is its large downtown concentration of corporate
headquarters, banks and financial services companies, and professional services such as law firms and
consultants. The extraordinary strength of these industries is a significant source of San Francisco’s
current prosperity.

San Francisco’s job growth rate is more than twice the national average

In December 2006, San Francisco held 129,316 jobs in financial services, professional services, and
corporate headquarters establishments’. As a group, employment in these industries grew at the very
rapid rate of 6.5 percent in San Francisco between CY 2005 and CY 2006, adding over 8,000 jobs.
Nationally, the same industries grew by only 3.2 percent during the same time period.

Inflation-adjusted wages are growing rapidly as well

The increase in average San Francisco wages in these industries are as significant as their employment
gains. Adjusted for the Bay Area’s Consumer Price Index (CPI-U/SF), average wages in the City’s
financial services sector increased at 9.1 percent per year between 2003 and 2006, 3.3 percent per year
in professional services, and 4.9 percent per year in headquarters establishments.

San Francisco is increasingly becoming a venture capital center

San Francisco has long been a financial services center, but in recent years it has seen growth in firms
serving the high technology industries in particular. Several venture capital (VC) firms have moved or
expanded in San Francisco to serve the emerging industries in the City and Bay Area region. These
include Francisco Partners, a $5 billion private equity group, which relocated from Santa Clara County
into space within the Presidio’s Letterman Digital Arts Complex, in mid-2007. It joined three other venture
capital firms in the Presidio, earning this location the nickname “Sand Hill North” in reference to the
concentration of VC firms in Menlo Park, 30 miles to the south. Several other VC firms have relocated to
Mission Bay to concentrate on its burgeoning biotechnology industry, including Column Group, Versant

"NAICS codes 52, 53, and 55.
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Ventures, Novo Ventures, and Arch Venture Partners putting four top biotech VC firms in close proximity
to other Mission Bay tenants, including Sirna and Pharmion.

Tourism and Hospitality: Strong Recovery, Rising Hotel Rates

The other major segment of San Francisco’s economic base is the tourism and hospitality industry. Like
the downtown office services, tourism has experienced a very strong recovery since the recession of the
early 2000s.

Employment growth far outpacing the national average

There were 74,162 people working in arts, recreation, cultural services, accommodation, and food
services in San Francisco at the end of 2006. This represents an increase of 2,578 jobs over CY 2005, for
a 3.6 percent increase. Again, San Francisco’s growth rate outpaced the national growth rate of 2.2
percent.

Visitor spending up 5.3 percent in the past year

After a 4.1 percent increase in visitors between 2004 and 2005, the San Francisco Convention and
Visitors Bureau (SFCVB) reported a 0.3 percent increase in San Francisco visitors between 2005 and
2006, with a total of 15.8 million visitors in 2006.% These visitors spent an estimated $7.76 billion in the
City in 2006, a 5.3 percent increase in spending compared to 2005. The fact that spending is increasingly
far more rapidly than visitors indicates that average amount a visitor is spending is also rising; this is a
key element of the City’s tourism strategy.

Rising room rates driving heavy investment in hotels

In line with the increasing number of visitors, the hotel sector has continued its recovery, with both
occupancy and average daily rates (ADR) increasing in 2007 over 2006 figures. Hotels city-wide reported
an ADR of $175.66 for the first half of the year, a 4.4 percent increase from the same period in 2006, and
up 21.3 percent since the end of 2003°, Mid-year occupancy rates increased 2.5 percent over last year, to
a healthy 74.7 percent. 86 hotel rooms were added in 2006, and developers and hotel operators are
bullish on the San Francisco market: about 2,800 rooms are in the development pipeline.

Retail sales growth stays strong in the face of decline across the state

Retail sales are closely tied to the visitor industry in San Francisco. Sales growth was a strong 5.3
percent in FY 2006-2007, consistent with the recovery of tourism and the overall economy. In fact, the
City’s retail sales tax receipts for FY 2006-2007 surpassed the previous high-water mark experienced
during the height of the dot-com boom in FY 2001-2002. This indicates that the City has achieved full
recovery on the retail sales tax side in six years. As a point of comparison, several other large Bay Area
cities are not projected to recover fully for another six years.

San Francisco: the global gateway

In June 2007, the SFCVB launched several new initiatives and strategies to more actively market the
City, and encourage visitors to extend their stay and increase their spending. These include focusing on
less well-known, more socially-progressive aspects of the City, touting the City's environmental
credentials, and marketing a wider set of city neighborhoods. It also includes targeting international
travelers, who are thought to be especially attracted to progressive and cosmopolitan San Francisco.
These target markets include China and India, as well as traditional markets like the United Kingdom and
Japan. Given the recent decline of the US dollar against other major currencies, San Francisco’s
worldwide brand and wide international appeal will likely keep growth strong and help insulate the City
from other economic risks.

® San Francisco Convention and Visitor Bureau, “Visitor Industry Economic Impacts, 2006.”
? PKF Consulting.
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Emerging Technology Industries

Information and Digital Media: clear signs of recovery

Since the mid-1990s, the Information sector'—consisting of software products, traditional and internet-
based media publishing, film, music, digital media, and television—has emerged as an important
component of San Francisco’s economic base. Hard-hit by the recession, San Francisco’s information
sector has nevertheless begun to recover, posting an impressive 4.6 percent employment growth rate
during CY 2007. In December 2006, San Francisco had 18,100 jobs in the Information sector, according
to California’s Employment Development Department.

Many information and digital media businesses have moved to San Francisco in the past year. Google
brought about 800 employees to San Francisco when it occupied 210,000 square feet in Hills Plaza.
Intuit, the Mountain View-based software maker, moved into 14,100 square feet. Zannel, a mobile video
startup, brought 26 employees from incubator space in Menlo Park, and Exent Technologies, a PC and
Video game company, relocated from Bethesda, Maryland.

Biotechnology: entering the take-off phase

Recombinant genetic engineering, the central innovation that created the biotechnology industry, was co-
invented by a researcher at the University of California, San Francisco in the 1970s. Between UCSF,
Stanford University, the University of California at Berkeley, and other local research institutions, the Bay
Area is the leading biomedical research region in the world. The region is also home to many of the
world’s largest biotechnology companies, and also leads the world in venture capital investment in
biotech.

Until recently, however, few biotechnology companies were located in San Francisco itself. This has
begun to change with the growth of the Mission Bay redevelopment area. Mission Bay now houses a new
UCSF campus, and growing amounts of lab and incubator space for researchers and start-up companies.
Between 2005 and 2006, San Francisco added 14 companies and 687 employees in R&D services in
physical and biological sciences'!, which represents early-stage biotechnology.

Significant activity by businesses in this sector include Sirna Therapeutics, which expanded into 40,000
square feet at 1700 Owens Street, a speculative building in Mission Bay that is now fully leased. Merck
Pharmaceuticals bought Sirna for $1.1 billion in 20086, bringing a global player into the heart of the City’s
biotech cluster. Pharmion relocated from Colorado, and FibroGen announced it will relocate its corporate
headquarters from South San Francisco to a new 450,000 square foot laboratory building being
developed in Mission Bay. This move will make FibroGen the largest biotech company to date to commit
to the City; it will have 200 employees in San Francisco when its building is completed in 2008.

As Mission Bay continues to develop, it is expected that San Francisco’s biotechnology industry will
continue to grow rapidly. In expectation of this, Alexandria Real Estate Equities, the primary non-
residential land owner in Mission Bay, is speeding up its construction schedule and plans to build 2.2
million square feet of its life science complex at Mission Bay by 2011.

Key Economic Foundations and Government Initiatives

San Francisco’s industry competitiveness and overall prosperity are underpinned by a number of local
economic foundations that benefit City businesses, ranging from its real estate and transportation
infrastructure, to its quality of life and business climate. In many different areas, the City government is
taking steps to strengthen these advantages, and thereby helping to secure the City's continued
prosperity. Some important initiatives are described in the sections that follow.

Y NAICS code 51.
1 NAICS code 54171.
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Housing and Commercial Development

San Francisco continued to make significant progress in developing new residential, commercial, and
transportation infrastructure in FY 2006-2007.

Housing: continuing investment, and planning for future growth

The Mayor’s 15/5 initiative (15,000 new units in five years) is addressing San Francisco’s chronic housing
shortage. In CY 2006, 2,828 housing units were constructed, indicating the continuing strength of San
Francisco’s housing market in the face of the national downturn. Another 5,025 units were under
construction as of the first quarter of 2007, the most recent data available.

Also in CY 2006, the Planning Department entitled 6,410 new residential units, the third straight year in
which over 6,000 units were entitled. These entitlements are laying the groundwork for strong housing
production in the next few years. In total, there are about 30,134 residential units in 1,157 different
projects in various stages of planning. This total does not include up to approximately 18,000 units
planned at the former Naval Shipyard at Hunters Point, and the former Naval Station at Treasure Island.
These units are planned but not yet filed, and bring the total to 48,100 units planned, proposed, or under
construction.

Office and Retail: declining vacancy, rising rents, increasing investment, more green buildings

The office market also continued its recovery in FY 2006-2007, with the vacancy rate declining from 14.1
percent in the third quarter of 2006 to 11.9 percent in the second quarter of 2007. During the same
period, office rental rates increased 21.5 percent to $42.31 as of the second quarter of 2007, while the
market experienced about 1.9 million square feet of net absorption. Office developers are taking
advantage of this strong market: there is currently 1.8 million square feet of commercial space under
construction. In 2006, the Mayor issued an executive directive offering priority permitting for green
buildings; two major developers are building Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED)
Gold buildings in response to this incentive.

Westfield Centre, including Bloomingdale’s, opened last year after a $460 million makeover of the former
Emporium home, adding one million square feet of retail and office space to its shopping center in the
middle of San Francisco's retail district.

Real estate investors have confidence in the City as well: more than half of downtown’s office inventory
traded hands in the last two years with the pace quickening in 2007. As of June 2007, there has been
$6.1 billion in sales year-to-date, surpassing the entire sales activity for both 2005 ($4.3 billion) and 2006
($3.8 billion).

Treasure Island: a pioneering model for urban sustainable development

Over the last year, a forward-thinking plan for Treasure Island has emerged. By leveraging private capital
and the City's entitiement power, the City will transform a closed military base into one of the greenest,
most sustainable development projects in U.S. History. The Treasure Island Plan will add 6,000 new
residential units, including 1,800 at below market rate. In addition, 250,000 square feet of retail and
commercial space, 450 hotel rooms and a 300-acre park in the middle of San Francisco Bay will be
created, without using any General Fund monies.

Bayview and Hunters Point: environmental restoration and economic development

A similar opportunity exists along San Francisco's southern waterfront, at Candlestick Point and the
Hunters Point Shipyard. Current plans include 8,500 housing units, permanent artist studios, over
2,000,000 square feet of research and development space targeted to digital arts, green technology and
biotech, and over 350 acres of open space and waterfront park land. Revitalizing these unique waterfront
sites will create badly-needed jobs, affordable housing and parks and open space for the Hunters Point
community, and the broader region.

Vii
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In May 2007, the Redevelopment Agency Commission and the Board of Supervisors endorsed the
conceptual framework to guide the City and County of San Francisco, its Redevelopment Agency, and
Lennar Communities in planning an integrated, mixed-use project at the Candlestick Point Area of the
Bayview Hunters Point and the Hunters Point Shipyard Redevelopment Project Areas. A new 49ers
stadium could be an element of that revitalization effort; plans are proceeding with, and without, a stadium
alternative.

Transportation Infrastructure

San Francisco’s ongoing growth and economic development is raising demand for transportation and
creating a need for new investment. This growth is being experienced across all modes, including bus,
rail, air, and water. Nevertheless, San Francisco is actually experiencing improving surface transportation
performance, despite its growing population and strong economy.

The Transbay Transit Center: a Grand Central Station of the West

In 2006, the Transbay Transit Center project obtained Federal and State environmental approvals. The
Center will initially feature an expanded terminal for buses to and from surrounding counties, and is
planned to include a terminal for commuter rail from San Mateo County, high speed rail from Southern
California, and pedestrian connections to the City's MUNI Metro, and Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART)
subways.

The Transbay Center will include a mixed use Transit Tower, whose development will fund much of the
transit infrastructure. That project's design and development competition resulted in five teams
responding, including some of the world’s most prominent architects and developers. On September 20,
2007, the Transbay Joint Powers Authority selected the team of Pelli Clarke Pelli Architects and Hines to
enter into exclusive negotiations.

The Transbay Center is a singular expression of transit-oriented development. It includes plans for very
tall nearby buildings that will effectively shift the heart of downtown, and create the “Grand Central Station
of the West”. The Center will be critical for the future of the local and regional economy. Rising freeway
congestion in the Bay Area make it critical for the region to have the ability to rapidly bring large numbers
of workers into a transit-accessible employment center. Downtown San Francisco can serve this function
better than any other area in California, and the Transbay Center will significantly strengthen this
capacity.

San Francisco International Airport: lower fees, more carriers and connections

San Francisco International Airport (SFO) also continued to experience rising usage during the past year.
From July 2006 to June 2007, the airport served 34.3 million passengers, up 2.4 percent from the
previous year. International passengers rose over twice as fast: 5.1 percent, emphasizing San
Francisco’s rising role as an international business and leisure destination, as well as an expanding array
of direct international connections.

Continued passenger volume increases are anticipated as SFO’s strategy of lowering landing fees to
attract low-cost carriers is paying off. Three new low-cost carriers started service at SFO in 2007.
International SFO passenger traffic should increase with the expansion of several international airline
routes. United plans to add non-stop service from SFO to the Guangzhou area in 2008, pending DOT
approval, and Cathay Pacific Airways will add a second daily flight between San Francisco and Hong
Kong. In addition, India’s Jet Airways, Air India, and Kingfisher are expected to begin operations at SFO
later in 2007 and early in 2008. These connections will cement San Francisco’s role as a key hub for
business and trade with China and India, the two fastest growing major economies in the world.

Port of San Francisco: complementing the city’s tourism industry

The Port of San Francisco is a major west coast cruise ship destination. Passenger boardings have
significantly increased in the last three years, nearly doubling between 2003 and 2006 to 223,605
passengers.
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Traffic congestion: improving despite economic growth

Traffic congestion has been a major issue in the City, as in most large cities, but the situation has been
improving in San Francisco. The County Transportation Agency reports that average vehicle speed
increased in San Francisco between 2006 and 2007, during both AM and PM rush hours, and on both
arterial roads and freeways. In 2007, the average arterial peak speed in roads in the City’s Congestion
Management Program was 17.2 miles per hour in the AM, and 17.8 miles per hour during the PM peak
period, representing an 8.2 percent and 7.9 percent increase in average speed over 2006 AM and PM
peak periods, respectively. Average peak AM freeway speeds increased 36.6 percent to 47.8 miles per
hour in 2007, while PM peak freeway speeds increased 20.7 percent to 40.3 miles per hour. The recent
completion of major construction projects may be the source of the extraordinarily large increases in
average freeway speeds, but the benefits for the local economy are nevertheless substantial.

Transit: New investments in critical infrastructure

Transit is of vital importance to San Francisco, particularly as its employment and population numbers
grow. The Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART) system is a four-county commuter rail system that helps make
San Francisco an accessible work location to workers across the Bay Area. Each workday in 2007, an
average of 154,000 people exit a BART station in San Francisco, a 6.8 percent increase over 2006. The
City-owned Municipal Transportation Agency (MUNI) carried an average of 654,300 passengers each
workday in FY 20086, totaling nearly 211 million annual passenger trips.

MUN/I’s $648 million T-Third light rail line started full service in April 2007, connecting the Third Street
neighborhoods to the full Muni Metro system. The T-Third provides a vital economic link between the
southeast sector of San Francisco and the rest of the City, while also providing significant streetscape
improvements to the Third Street corridor.

Quality of Life

In recent years the City has added a number of new attractions that are largely supported by out-of-town
visitors, but give residents a wealth of recreational and cultural opportunities they would not have
elsewhere. The quality of life generated by these opportunities, in turn is vital to developing the highly-
skilled creative talent pool that fuels the City’s knowledge sector. Thus a high quality of life is not simply
an indicator of successful economic development in San Francisco—it is a prerequisite for continuing
economic development.

New museums broaden San Francisco’s tourism appeal and improve the quality of life

Several museums are currently in the works, broadening the base of cultural amenities for both visitors
and residents alike. Chief among them is the new California Academy of Sciences in Golden Gate Park.
Renzo Piano’s 410,000-square foot facility, across from the de Young Museum, has an undulating living
roof covered with plants; this and other green building features will earn the museum LEED platinum
status when it opens in October 2008.

Designs for the San Francisco Museum and Historical Society’s development of the historic Old Mint
building are nearing completion; a third of the $90 million fundraising goal has been met. Doris and
Donald Fisher, co-founders of The Gap, plan to build a 100,000-square-foot Contemporary Art Museum
of the Presidio to display their collection of contemporary art. The Walt Disney Family Foundation has
signed a lease to establish the Walt Disney Family Museum and Library on the Presidio’s Main Post and
is expected to open to visitors in August 2009. The 63,000 square foot Jewish Museum on Yerba Buena
Lane will be completed by year end 2007, with an opening scheduled for Spring 2008. Finally, the
renowned science museum The Exploratorium has started an environmental impact review for its
anticipated move from the Palace of Fine Arts to Piers 15-17, a move that would allow the museum to
double its footprint to 200,000 square feet.

Building a greener and more livable city

Several initiatives were started or expanded this year to provide for a cleaner and greener San Francisco
to enhance both the visitor and resident experiences. The Livable City Initiative was expanded in order to
green City streets and help define the unique characteristics of each neighborhood. The City has secured
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$8 million dollars in federal and local funds to begin major streetscape improvements, including planting
trees, improving median strips, repairing sidewalks, replacing street lamps. In addition to these
streetscape improvements, 5,000 trees were planted in 2006, and another 5,000 are planned for the next
12 months.

In 2006, the City also launched the Clean Corridors program that focuses on main commercial districts,
removing graffiti, picking up trash and bringing these 100 key corridors to a higher standard of care and
cleanliness.

Another successful tool to improve the City’s neighborhood commercial corridors is the creation of more
Community Benefit Districts (CBDs). Neighborhood groups and merchant associations now have the
ability to form these CBDs to expand daily street cleaning, plant new trees, sponsor neighborhood
festivals, provide new signage, and make other improvements.

Governance: Expanding the City's Enterprise Zone

In 2007, San Francisco expanded its enterprise zone along the eastern edge of the City, allowing
potentially thousands more businesses to apply for millions of dollars in state tax breaks, including hiring
tax credits, tax credits for purchasing machinery, and the ability to carry over operating losses from
previous tax years.

Award

Certificate of Achievement

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. This was the twenty-fifth consecutive
year (fiscal years ended June 30, 1982 ~ 2006) that the City has achieved this prestigious award. In
order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized CAFR. The CAFR must satisfy both Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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The Honorable Mayor Gavin Newsom
The Honorable Members of the Board of Supervisors
City and County of San Francisco

Independent Auditor's Report

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City and County of San Francisco, California (the City), as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2007, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the financial statements of the San Francisco International Airport, San Francisco Water Enterprise, Hetch
Hetchy Water and Power, San Francisco Municipal Railway, the Parking Garage Corporations, San
Francisco Wastewater Enterprise, Port of San Francisco, San Francisco Market Corporation, City and
County of San Francisco Finance Corporation, Employees’ Retirement System, Health Service System,
and the San Francisco Redevelopment Agency, which collectively represent the following percentages of
assets, net assets/fund balances and revenues/additions as of and for the year ended June 30, 2007:

Net Assets/ Revenues/

Opinion Unit Assets Fund Balances Additions

Governmental activities 1% 10% 0%
Business-type activities 95% 93% 74%
Discretely presented component units 100% 93% 94%
Municipal Transportation Agency enterprise fund 97% 100% 93%
Aggregate remaining fund information 91% 93% 49%

Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to
us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for those entities, are based solely on
the reports of the other auditors. The prior year partial and summarized comparative information has
been derived from the City’s 2006 basic financial statements and, in our report dated December 20, 2006,
we expressed unqualified opinions, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, on the respective
financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports
of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.
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In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City and County of San Francisco, California,
as of June 30, 2007, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows,
thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The financial statements include partial or summarized prior year comparative information. Such prior
year information does not include all of the information required to constitute a presentation in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly,
such information should be read in conjunction with the City’s basic financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2006, from which such partial or summarized information was derived.

The management’s discussion and analysis and schedules of funding progress listed in the accompanying
table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We
and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we and the other auditors did not audit the information and express no opinion on
it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining fund financial
statements and schedules and the statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining fund financial statements and
schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and
statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Moacias Howe & C Con L0 Lo®
Certified Public Accountants

Walnut Creek, California
December 21, 2007



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the City and County of San Francisco’s (the City) Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) presents a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here
in conjunction with additional information in our transmittal letter. Certain amounts presented as
2005-2006 summarized comparative financial information in the basic financial statements have been
reclassified to conform to the presentation in the 2006-2007 basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by approximately $6.58
billion (net assets). Of this amount, $552.7 million is unrestricted and may be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

* The increase in the government’s total net assets is $375.2 million or 6.0 percent during fiscal
year 2006-2007 compared to an increase of $438.5 million or 7.6 percent during fiscal year 2005-
2006. This year, there was a 2.8 percent rise in total revenues while overall expenses grew by
4.5 percent.

= Net assets for the City’s governmental activities increased by $76.4 million or 4.3 percent at the
end of fiscal year 2006-2007, reflecting the continued growth although at a slower pace than in
the prior fiscal year when net assets increased by $293.5 million or 19.6 percent.

= At June 30, 2007, the City’s total ending fund balance for governmental funds was approximately
$1.25 billion. Within this total, $191.6 million, or 15.3 percent is unreserved and available for
spending at the government’s discretion within the purposes specified for the City’s funds. This
reflects a one percent increase in unreserved fund balance over the prior year.

* The City’s General Fund had an unreserved fund balance of $141.0 million on June 30, 2007, a
$2.1 million or 1.5 percent increase over the previous fiscal year. The total fund balance
increased by 17.4 percent to $541.5 million at the same time. This year’s improvement was
primarily due to a 7.1 percent or $174.9 million increase in revenues primarily from property
taxes, business taxes, other local taxes, interest and investment income. This increase brought
the General Fund total revenues to $2.65 billion compared to total expenditures of approximately
$2.16 billion for the fiscal year. Due to the strong revenue growth, the City increased the General
Fund’s “rainy day” reserves by $26.3 million in new deposits less a partially offsetting $14.7
million withdrawal for eligible one-time expenditures and capital investment. The net effect was
an $11.6 million increase which brought the total to $133.6 million as of June 30, 2007.

= The City’s total long-term debt, including all bonds, loans, commercial paper and capital leases
decreased by $31 miillion during fiscal year 2006-2007. The City issued $157.3 million in general
obligation refunding bonds and $153.7 million in certificates of participation for acquisition of two
office buildings and improvements work for three office buildings. In addition, this year the San
Francisco International Airport and the San Francisco Water Enterprise issued $453 million and
$48.7 million, respectively, in revenue refunding bonds.



OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: (1) Government-
wide financial statements, (2) Fund financial statements, and (3) Notes to the financial statements.
This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves. These various elements of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report are
related as shown in the graphic below.
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The following figure summarizes the major features of the financial statements. The overview section

below also describes the structure and contents of each of the statements in more detail.

Government- Fund Financial Statements
wide Statements Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary
Scope Entire entity (except | The day-to-day operating | The day-to-day Instances in which the
fiduciary funds) activities of the City for operating activities of City administers
basic governmental the City for business- resources on behalf of
services type enterprises others, such as
employee benefits
Accounting Accrual accounting Modified accrual Accrual accounting and | Accrual accounting and
basis and and economic accounting and current economic resources economic resources
measurement | resources focus financial resources focus | focus focus; except agency
focus funds do not have

measurement focus

Type of asset

All assets and

Current assets and

All assets and

All assets heldina

received or paid

goods or services have

and liability liabilities, both liabilities that come due liabilities, both financial | trustee or agency
information financial and capital, | during the year or soon and capital, short-term | capacity for others
short-term and long- | thereafter and long-term
term
Type of All revenues and Revenues for which cash | All revenues and All additions and
inflow and expenses during is received during the expenses during year, deductions during the
outflow year, regardless of year or soon thereatfter; regardless of when year, regardless of
information when cash is expenditures when cash is received or paid | when cash is received
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Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets
may serve as a useful indicator of whether or not the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods, such as revenues pertaining to uncollected taxes and expenses pertaining to earned
but unused vacation and sick leave.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
(business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include public protection, public
works, transportation and commerce, human welfare and neighborhood development, community
health, culture and recreation, general administration and finance, and general City responsibilities.
The business-type activities of the City include an airport, port, public transportation systems
(including parking), water and power operations, an acute care hospital, a long-term care hospital,
sewer operations, and a produce market.



The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary
government), but also a legally separate redevelopment agency, the San Francisco Redevelopment
Agency, and a legally separate development authority, the Treasure Island Development Authority
(TIDA), for which the City is financially accountable. Financial information for these component units
is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary government. Included
within the governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements are the San Francisco
County Transportation Authority and San Francisco Finance Corporation. Included within the
business-type activities of the government-wide financial statements is the operation of the San
Francisco Parking Authority. Although legally separate from the City, these component units are
blended with the primary government because of their governance or financial relationships to the
City.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements are designed to report information about groupings of related accounts
that are used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or
objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be
divided into the following three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements -
i.e. most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds. These statements,
however, focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets can readily be converted to
available resources and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.
Such information may be useful in determining what financial resources are available in the
near future to finance the City’s programs.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities.

The City maintains several individual governmental funds organized according to their type
(special revenue, debt service, capital projects and permanent funds). Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund,
which is considered to be a major fund. Data from the remaining governmental funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of the non-
major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report.

The City adopts an annually appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance
with this budget.

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are generally used to account for services for which
the City charges customers - either outside customers, or internal units or departments of the
City. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as shown in the government-
wide financial statements, only in more detail. The City maintains the following two types of
proprietary funds:



e Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to
account for the operations of the San Francisco International Airport (SFO or Airport),
Port of San Francisco (Port), San Francisco Water Enterprise (Water), Hetch Hetchy
Water and Power (Hetch Hetchy), Municipal Transportation Agency (MTA), Laguna
Honda Hospital, San Francisco General Hospital Medical Center, and the San Francisco
Wastewater Enterprise (Wastewater), all of which are considered to be major funds of the
City.

¢ Internal Service funds are used to report activities that provide supplies and services for
certain City programs and activities. The City uses internal service funds to account for
its fleet of vehicles, management information services, printing and mail services, and for
lease-purchases of equipment by the San Francisco Finance Corporation. Because
these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions,
they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the
internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the City. The City employees’ pension and health plans, the external portion
of the Treasurer's Office investment pool, and the agency funds are reported under the
fiduciary funds. Since the resources of these funds are not available to support the City’s
own programs, they are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide
pension benefits to its employees.

Combining Statements and Schedules

The combining statements and schedules referred to earlier in connection with non-major
governmental funds, internal service funds, and fiduciary funds are presented immediately following
the required supplementary information on pensions.



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net Assets
June 30, 2007 (in thousands)
Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Assets:
Curment and other assets.................. $ 2,034,379 § 2,073,433 $ 2,098272 $§ 2,162,036 $ 4,132,651 $ 4,235469
Capital assets........c.ccoorrvcvinniiinns 2,900,769 2,674,862 8,867,534 8,529,054 11,768,303 11,203,916

Total assets.........cocccveererninnenn. 4,935,148 4,748,295 10,965,806 10,691,090 15,900,954 15,439,385
Liabilities:
Noncurrent liabilities outstanding...... 2,201,025 2,138,652 5,529,934 5,701,283 7,730,959 7,839,935
Other liabilities...........cccooernreecracnnne 863,112 815,025 724,608 577,374 1,587,720 1,392,399

Total liabilities............ceccurcnnes 3,064,137 2,953,677 6,254,542 6,278,657 9,318,679 9,232,334
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt......................... 1,454,614 1,438,010 3,795,006 3,438,397 5,249,620 4,876,407

Restricted 430,843 428,646 349,136 437,366 779,979 866,012
Unrestricted (deficit)............covecenen. (14,446) (72,038) 567,122 536,670 552,676 464,632

Total net assets.........cccceeruanee. $ 1,871,011 $§ 1,794,618 $ 4,711,264 $ 4,412,433 $ 6,582,275 $ 6,207,051

Analysis of Net Assets

Net assets may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. For the City, assets
exceeded liabilities by $6.58 billion at the close of the fiscal year 2006-2007.

The largest portion of the City's net assets reflects its $5.25 billion (79.8 percent) investment in capital
assets (e.g. land, buildings, and equipment), less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those
assets. This percentage has remained substantially the same since fiscal year 2005. The City uses
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, they are not available for future spending.
Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital
assets themselves cannot be liquidated to pay these liabilities.

Another portion of the City’s net assets, $780.0 million (11.8 percent) represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions as to how they may be used. The remaining balance, unrestricted net
assets, $552.7 million (8.4 percent) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors. Together, these two components of net assets totaled 20.2 percent in fiscal
year 2006-2007, comparable to the prior year’s percentage.

At the end of the fiscal year 2006-2007, the City had positive balances in all three components of net
assets for the government as a whole, as well as for the business-type activities. For the
governmental activities, unrestricted net assets have a deficit of $14.4 million related primarily to the
$114.0 million in debt from general obligation bonds issued by the City for the benefit of the San
Francisco Unified School District and San Francisco Community College District, which are recorded
on the City’s books with no corresponding assets.



Changes in Net Assets
Year Ended June 30, 2007 (in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for Services..........c.ccuvviveeieannane. $ 382489 $ 399,265 $ 1,822,047 $ 1,714,488 $ 2,204,536 $ 2,113,753
Operating grants and contributions... 927,256 859,919 183,301 188,672 1,110,557 1,048,591
Capital grants and contributions................... 50,479 248,329 150,080 110,403 200,559 358,732
General revenues:
Property taXes.......ccoovieiiiiieii e 1,126,992 1,016,220 - - 1,126,992 1,016,220
BUSINESS taXes......coevieieiiiiiiiie e 337,592 323,153 - - 337,592 323,153
Other local taxes.........ccccoeveeiiiiieiiiieeiiieee 668,824 595,664 - - 668,824 595,664
Interest and investment income. 86,233 71,129 85,692 53,161 171,925 124,290
OtNEr e 33,046 56,022 218,184 272,873 251,230 328,895
Total revenues..........cccceeeveieeieeieenenn, 3,612,911 3,569,701 2,459,304 2,339,597 6,072,215 5,909,298
Expenses
Public protection..........c.ccccooiviiiiiiiiiee, 870,381 780,642 - - 870,381 780,642
Public works, transportation
and COMMEICE..........ueeeeeecennnns 309,095 272,397 - - 309,095 272,397
Human welfare and
neighborhood development.................. 751,034 858,396 - - 751,034 858,396
Community health..............cccooeveiiiiiieennn 516,321 478,844 - - 516,321 478,844
Culture and recreation . 290,547 244,423 - - 290,547 244,423
General administration and finance.............. 185,961 167,490 - - 185,961 167,490
General City responsibilities.............ccocceeene 67,948 49,054 - - 67,948 49,054
Unallocated Interest on long-term
dEDt. i 94,060 94,923 - - 94,060 94,923
ATMPOI. s - - 624,832 633,102 624,832 633,102
Transportation. - - 726,053 695,593 726,053 695,593
POMt. o - - 61,937 55,329 61,937 55,329
WAL ..t - - 236,824 213,584 236,824 213,584
. - - 95,020 119,146 95,020 119,146
HOSPItalS.....cveeeieciieciiececeeee e - - 714,349 646,149 714,349 646,149
SEWET ...ttt ettt - - 168,954 160,701 168,954 160,701
Market.......oooiiiiiiee e - - 1,061 1,035 1,061 1,035
Total EXPEeNSES......cccevveieiiieiieiieieens 3,085,347 2,946,169 2,629,030 2,524,639 5,714,377 5,470,808
Increase/(decrease) in net assets
before special items and transfers....... 527,564 623,532 (169,726) (185,042) 357,838 438,490
Special items.........ccoeeiieiieiieieeee - - 17,386 - 17,386 -
Transfers......coov i (451,171) (329,996) 451,171 329,996 - -
Change in net assets... 76,393 293,536 298,831 144,954 375,224 438,490
Net assets at beginning of year... 1,794,618 1,501,082 4,412,433 4,267,479 6,207,051 5,768,561
Net assets at end of year.............cccccceeeeennnnn. $ 1,871,011 § 1,794,618 $ 4711264 $ 4,412,433 $ 6,582,275 $ 6,207,051

Analysis of Changes in Net Assets

The City’s net assets overall increased by $375.2 million during fiscal year 2006-2007, compared to a
$438.5 million increase during the prior fiscal year. The governmental activities accounted for $76.4
million of this increase and the business-type activities accounted for $298.8 million. While all
business-type activities realized increases to their net assets, approximately 68.1 percent, $203.4
million is due to increases at Laguna Honda Hospital (LHH) and Municipal Transportation Agency
(MTA). The LHH increase to net assets was $111.8 million and was primarily due to transfers from
the City’s governmental funds to support rebuilding of the hospital. The MTA increase of $91.6
million was partially due to increases in capital contributions from state and federal sources. A
discussion of these and other changes in both governmental and business-type activities is presented
on the following pages.
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City’s total net assets by $76.4
million during fiscal year 2006-2007, compared to a $293.5 million increase during fiscal year 2005-
2006. Key factors contributing to this year’s increase are as follows:

e Overall, governmental activities’ revenue increased by approximately $43.2 million while
expenses increased by $139.2 million and net transfers out increased by $121.2 million. This
resulted in a net asset increase of $76.4 million for governmental activities at the end of fiscal
year 2006-2007.

e Expenses for Human Welfare and Neighborhood Development were approximately $107.3
million less in fiscal year 2006-2007 as compared to the prior year. This was partially due to
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a one-time increase in the allowance for uncollectible loans account last year because of a
change in accounting policy for the City’s low-income housing program. At the government-
wide level, this was approximately $160 million offset by this year’s increase in expenses of
$53 million for personnel, grants, and other administrative expenses.

Property tax revenue increased significantly by $110.8 million or 10.9 percent during the
fiscal year. Most of this growth is due to a 7.6 percent increase in net assessed valuations in
fiscal year 2006-2007 as compared to fiscal year 2005-2006, the expiration of ERAF Il (the
State is shifting the property taxes from the City to the Educational Revenue Augmentation
Fund for Schools), and 1.9 percent increase due to escape billings and supplemental billings.

Business tax revenue increased $14.4 million or 4.5 percent, due largely to wage growth as
well as moderate employment growth. San Francisco had 12,200 more jobs in calendar year
2006 as compared to calendar year 2005, representing an annual growth in jobs of 2.4
percent.

Revenues from other local taxes, which includes real property transfer tax, hotel, sales, utility
users and parking tax, increased by $73.2 million or 12.3 percent. The largest components of
growth were hotel tax (up $20.4 million or 11.7 percent), real property transfer tax (up $12.7
million or 9.7 percent), local sales tax (up $9.6 million or 5.5 percent). Factors contributing to
this growth include increased hotel occupancy and average daily room rates, increased
transfer tax revenues associated with increased property sales activity, increasing sales
activity and increased parking tax collections due to higher parking demand and rate
increases. On a related note, in fiscal year 2006-2007, the implementation of Ordinance No.
71-07 transferred the 40 percent or $25.9 million parking tax allocation related to public
transit (which formerly accrued directly to the MTA) to the General Fund with an associated
transfer out to the MTA in lieu of the parking tax.

Interest and investment income improved by about $15.1 million or 21.2 percent during the
year primarily due to higher interest rates during the period. The earned yield on City pooled
investments increased nearly 24 percent from 4.2 percent to 5.2 percent. In general, these
returns reflect the City’s concentration of investments in Treasury Bills and Notes and other
short-term investments combined with increasing interest rates from the Federal Reserve. At
the fiscal year end, deposits and investments for governmental activities with the City
Treasury were $1.35 billion, a 10.7 percent decrease over the previous year.

Operating grants and contributions increased by $67.3 million or 7.8 percent during fiscal
year 2006-2007. This included additional Homeland Security funds of close to $12.7 million
for public works, transportation and commerce and approximately $3.8 million for public
protection. Grant increases to other public protection programs were approximately $7.0
million. Federal grants for community development and housing programs increased by about
$14.2 million and state funds for health and welfare programs rose by close to $20.0 million.
The City also realized an additional $4.5 million in fiscal year 2006-2007 for state mandated
programs, and $5.7 million for election support.

The capital grants and contributions revenue significant decrease of $197.9 million is
primarily due to recognition of the City’s newly rebuilt de Young Museum in 2005-2006 which
was constructed with private funding through an independent non-profit corporation. Apart
from this major contribution change year-over-year, the revenue for fiscal year 2006-2007
was at the same level as the previous fiscal year.

Net transfers to business-type activities were $451.2 million in fiscal year 2006-2007, a net
$121.2 million increase over fiscal year 2005-2006. These transfers included a net increase
of $41.7 million and $7.0 million to Laguna Honda Hospital to support for re-construction of
the hospital and operating subsidy respectively; a $36.4 million net increase to San Francisco
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General Hospital Medical Center related to increased General Fund support; a $35.3 million
net increase to MTA, of which $25.9 million was due to the change in parking tax budgeting
discussed earlier and the remaining due to higher baseline funding. In addition, there was a
net decrease of $1.8 million in Airport transfers, and Water recorded a one-time net transfer
of $9.7 million to the Governmental activities for the acquisition of land.

The charts shown previously illustrate the City’s governmental expenses and revenues by function,
and its revenues by source. As shown, public protection is the largest function in expense (28.2
percent), followed by human welfare and neighborhood development (24.3 percent), and community
health (16.7 percent). General revenues such as property, business, and sales taxes are not shown
by program, but are used to support program activities citywide. For governmental activities, property
taxes were the largest single source of funds (31.2 percent) in fiscal year 2006-2007, as compared to
28.4 percent in fiscal year 2005-2006. In addition, operating grants and contributions were the
second largest source of funds (25.7 percent) in fiscal year 2006-2007 slightly increased from 24.1
percent in fiscal year 2005-2006. The ratios for other revenue categories shifted only slightly from the
prior fiscal year 2005-2006: business taxes (9.3 percent vs. 9.1 percent in the prior year), other local
taxes (18.5 percent versus 16.7 percent in the prior year), and charges for services (10.6 percent
versus 11.2 percent in the prior year). The changes in ratios are partly due to the decrease in capital
contributions this year which was previously discussed.
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Business-type activities increased the City's net assets by $298.8 million. Key factors contributing to
this improvement are:

The Municipal Transportation Agency (MTA) had net assets of $1.89 billion at June 30, 2007, an
increase of approximately $91.6 million over the prior fiscal year. The total net assets include
$1.84 billion (97.3 percent) for MUNI, the City’s municipal railway. The remainder represents the
combined net assets of the Department of Parking and Traffic and the Parking Authority.
Between the end of fiscal years 2005-2006 and 2006-2007, MUNI's net assets increased by
approximately $80.7 million, primarily due to the completion of the first phase, and continued work
on the second phase of the Third Street Light Rail Project, funded by federal, state and local
capital contributions. During this same period, MUNI’s total operating revenues grew by $8.0
million to a total of $149.2 million. This was largely due to the combination of an increase in
ridership along with the annualizing of a passenger fare increase which began in September
2005. MUNI also reported a decrease in non-operating revenues of $13.9 million. The primary
components of this change were a $9.4 million increase in parking garage revenues and a $25.9
million decrease in parking tax revenues. The decrease in parking tax revenues occurred
because of a change in budgeting but was backfilled by a like amount of transfer funding from the
General Fund, beginning in fiscal 2006-2007. This year, the City’s General Fund total subsidy to
MTA was $197.1 million. This included $149.8 million for MUNI, a $31.4 million increase over the
prior year mostly due to the aforementioned change in budgeting for parking tax revenue, and
$47.3 million for the Department of Parking and Traffic, a $3.8 million increase over the prior year.

Laguna Honda Hospital, the City’s long-term care hospital increased net assets by $111.8 million
during fiscal year 2006-2007, or 70.9 percent, reflecting the major capital project underway to
rebuild the hospital. The increase included $91.2 million in transfers from the non-major
governmental funds which account for the Laguna Honda Hospital General Obligation Bond
proceeds and capital project activity. In addition, the hospital received a $45.7 million subsidy
transfer and a $1.3 million operating transfer from the City’s General Fund and $0.2 million from
the San Francisco General Hospital Medical Center. This $138.4 million of inflow was offset by
approximately $26.6 million in operating and non-operating losses, compared to last year's loss of
$22.5 million.

Hetch Hetchy, which operates the City’s water storage and power generating facilities in the
Sierra Nevada Mountains, had net assets of $435.8 million at the end of fiscal year 2006-2007,
an increase of $23.8 million or 5.8 percent over the prior fiscal year which realized a $41.7 million
increase. This $17.9 million change between the two fiscal years reflects a $42.0 million decrease
in total revenues and a $24.1 million reduction in expenses. Total revenues in fiscal year 2006-
2007 were $118.8 and total expenses were $95.0 million. Decreased power sales to the Western
System Power Pool, Modesto Irrigation District and Turlock Irrigation District account for much
this revenue change. At the same time, the decline in expenses is largely due to a $21.8 million
reduction in power purchases from Calpine, and a net decrease in general and administrative
expenses, in particular litigation and judgment expenses, of approximately $2.2 million.

The Water Enterprise’s net assets were $438.6 million at the end of fiscal year 2006-2007, a $5.5
million, or 1.3 percent, increase over the prior year's net asset balance of $433.1 million. Since
2003 the enterprise has been engaged in a multi-billion dollar, ten-year capital improvement
program to rebuild the City’s water system. Progress on this massive project during this fiscal
year is reflected in the Water Enterprise’s $166.5 million increase in net capital assets and the
associated use of $158.1 million of current assets, primarily restricted cash, to support this work.
This net increase to total assets of $8.4 million was partially offset by a $2.9 million increase in
total liabilities. The enterprise’s total revenues for fiscal year 2006-2007 were $252.9 million, an
increase of $37.6 million or 17.5 percent over the prior year. This included a $13.2 million
increase in operating revenue from retail and wholesale water sales which was partially driven by
rate increases to retail and wholesale customers of 15 and 19 percent, respectively. It also
included a $12.9 million increase in interest and investment income due largely to higher cash
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balances and higher interest earnings; $3.0 million from a one-time federal grant; and $6.5 million
from the sale of capital assets. Total expenses for the enterprise increased by $23.2 million
primarily due to increases in personal services, contractual services and depreciation as well as
interest expenses. The enterprise also had an increase in transfer of about $9.2 million mainly
due to the purchase of a capital asset from the City’s governmental activities.

e The City’s Wastewater had net assets of $959.3 million at the end fiscal year 2006-2007. This
represents a 3.5 percent or $32.9 million increase over the prior year’s balance of $926.4 million.
Total revenues improved 17.3 percent, increasing from $172.0 million at the end of fiscal year
2005-2006 to $201.9 million at the end of fiscal year 2006-2007, a $29.9 million improvement.
Revenue growth included approximately $17.1 million due to rate increases and $11.2 million due
to implementation of a capacity charge increase first approved in fiscal year 2004-2005. Total
expenses increased about $8.2 million during fiscal year 2006-2007, primarily due to contractual
services, general administrative, and the cost of services by other departments.

e The Airport's net assets increased by $1.8 million, or 0.6 percent, for a total of $316.7 million at
the end of fiscal year 2006-2007. This is significant as compared to last year’s decrease in net
assets of $42.7 million, or 11.9 percent. The change is primarily due to an increase of $48.6
million in operating revenues resulting from a $32.9 million increase in aviation revenues, mostly
as a result of the growth in passenger traffic, and a $15.7 million increase in concession sales,
parking and transportation fees and net sales and services. The Airport’s operating expenses
decreased by approximately $1.7 million, or 0.4 percent from the prior-year’s total of $432.8
million. The transfer from the Airport to the City’s General Fund was $23.3 million for fiscal year
2006-2007, an increase of $1.8 million over 2005-2006 .

As shown in the previous charts, the two largest of San Francisco’s business-type activities, the
Municipal Transportation Agency and the San Francisco International Airport had total expenses of
over $700 million and $600 million, respectively for the fiscal year ended 2006-2007. The City’s long
term and acute care hospitals together also had total expenses over $700 million. Together, these
four enterprises make up 78.6 percent of the total expenses for business-type activities. As in prior
years, charges for services provided the largest share of revenues, 62.2 percent for all business-type
activities.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental fund statements is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of resources that are available for spending. Such information is useful in
assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a
useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
Types of governmental funds reported by the City include the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds,
Debt Service Funds, Capital Project Funds, and the Permanent Fund.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of approximately $1.25 billion, a decrease of $63.6 million over the end of the prior year.
The decrease is due to expenditures increasing at a faster rate than revenue sources, across various
city functions, debt service payment and in particular, capital outlay which had increased by $129.9
million or 84.6 percent.

A total of $191.6 million of the fund balance in the governmental funds constitutes unreserved fund
balance. This is available for spending at the City’s discretion within the purposes specified for the
City's funds. The remainder is reserved, an indication that it is not available for new spending
because it has already been committed. These commitments include support for: (1) a General Fund
“rainy day” reserve ($133.6 million), (2) encumbrances for existing contracts and purchase orders
($349.9 million), (3) funds continued for programs or projects in future fiscal years ($493.4 million), (3)
debt service ($51.3 million), and (4) for assets not available for appropriation ($32.1 million).

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City and had an unreserved fund balance of
$141.0 million at the end of fiscal year 2006-2007, a slight increase of $2.1 million over the fiscal year
2005-2006 unreserved fund balance of $139.0 million. The General Fund’s total fund balance was
$541.5 million for fiscal year 2006-2007, a 17.4 percent improvement over the prior-year balance of
$461.3 million. This increase was mainly due to a total increase in revenues of $174.9 million or 7.1
percent primarily from property, business, other local taxes and interest and investment income which
was partially offset by an increase of $193.7 million or 9.8 percent in expenditures. Overall for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the General Fund’s revenues exceeding expenditures by $487.3
million, before transfers and other items are considered.

As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund
balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. For fiscal year 2006-2007, the unreserved
fund balance of $141.0 million represents 6.5 percent of total General Fund expenditures of $2.16
billion, and the total fund balance represents approximately 25.1 percent of that amount. For the prior
fiscal year, 2005-2006, the General Fund’s unreserved fund balance of $139.0 million was 7.1
percent of the total expenditures of $1.97 billion, and the total fund balance represented
approximately 23.4 percent of expenditures.
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Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the business-
activities section of the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

At the end of fiscal year 2006-2007, the unrestricted net assets for the Airport were $245.2 million, the
Water Enterprise $81.4 million, Hetch Hetchy $157 million, Wastewater $57.0 million, the Port $66.6
million, San Francisco General Hospital Medical Center $9.0 million, and the San Francisco Market
Corporation $4 million. Two proprietary funds had a deficit in unrestricted net assets: the Municipal
Transportation Agency had a deficit of $38.5 million; and Laguna Honda Hospital $14.7 million. The
internal service funds that are used to account for certain governmental activities also had a deficit in
unrestricted net assets of $5.6 million.

The total increase in net assets for the enterprise funds was $298.8 million. Factors concerning the
finances of these funds have been addressed previously in the discussion of the City’s business-type
activities.

The following table shows actual revenues, expenses and results of operations for the current fiscal
year in the City’s proprietary funds (in thousands):

Non- Capital
Operating  Operating  Contributions Change
Operating Operating Income Revenues  Special ltems, Interfund In Net
Revenues Expenses {Loss) {Expense) and Others Transfers Assets

Airport, $ 503914 $ 431,050 $ 7285 § (450) $ 46902 § (23348) 1,819
Water 216,531 202,498 14,033 1,242 - (.763) 5512
Hetch HEtehy......ooooere oo sereesree s 108,224 95,020 13204 10,586 - - 23,790
Municipal Transportation Agengy........ 22115 2412 (500297) 243,020 100,954 247913 91,500
General HOSPHEL.......o.cvosvees e 373,525 57452  (153927) 64,752 - 98,031 8,856
193,411 151,600 41,811 (8.910) - (28) 2,873

61,193 61,140 53 2,268 19,610 - 21,931

141,567 185420 (43,853) 17,282 - 13836 111,795

1,567 1,061 506 159 - - 665

Total $ 182047 $ 2377662 $ (555615 $ 235809 $ 167466 $ 451,171 $ 298,831

Fiduciary Funds

The City maintains fiduciary funds for the assets of the San Francisco Employees’ Retirement System
and Health Service System, and manages the investment of monies held in trust to benefit public
services or employees. As of the end of fiscal year 2006-2007, the net assets of the Retirement
System and Health Service System totaled $17.0 billion, representing an increase of $2.46 billion in
total net assets since June 30, 2006. This 16.9 percent increase is primarily due to a fourth year of
improved performance of the Retirement Trust's investments. The Investment Trust Fund’s net assets
totaled $646.2 million, an increase in net assets of $98.7 million or 18 percent since June 30, 2006
due to the increase in additions over withdrawals and distributions to external participants of the fund.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City’s final budget differs from the original budget in that it contains carry-forward appropriations
for various programs and projects, and supplemental appropriations approved during the fiscal year.
In fiscal year 2006-2007, the City approved $88.2 million in General Fund supplemental
appropriations for various departments primarily for affordable housing, revenue-supported Baseline
funding, revenue-supported Human Services program funding, capital projects and violence
prevention initiatives.

During the year, actual revenues and other resources were $115.5 million more than budgeted.
While the City realized $156.3 million more revenue than budgeted primarily due to higher property
taxes, real property transfer taxes, hotel room taxes, health and welfare realignment subventions,
parking taxes, interest and investment income, and business taxes, these increases were partially
offset by $40.8 million less revenue than budgeted primarily due to lower Federal and State
subvention and grant funding, General Government & Health-related service charges as well as
Recreation & Park rental revenues. Overall revenue shortfalls were more than offset by expenditure
savings, most notably in Health and Human Service programs. General Fund budgetary comparisons
are on shown on pages 31-33.

Differences between the final budget and the actual (budgetary basis) expenditures resulted in $82.9
million in appropriation savings. This is primarily due to the following factors:

e A savings of $18.3 million in the Department of Public Health, due largely to savings related to the
Mental Health and Public Health programs. These savings are largely offset by mental and public
health-related revenue shortfalls in intergovernmental and service charge revenues noted above.

e A savings of $13.9 million in the Human Services Agency, due largely to lower program costs
related to CalWORKS Childcare and Aid, Family & Children’s Services, Childcare, Homeless
Services, General Assistance Aid, Administrative Support, and Employment & Self-Sufficiency
Programs. These savings are partially offset by reductions in Human Service revenues, most
notably in federal social service funding discussed above.

e A savings of $14.9 million in transfers to other funds primarily due to higher hospital revenues,
which in turn resulted in lower required subsidy transfers for San Francisco General Hospital and
Laguna Honda Hospital.

e A close-out savings of $22.9 million in budgetary reserves and designations largely due to
unspent General Reserve savings not used for supplemental appropriation or other contingencies
during fiscal year 2006-2007.

As a result of the strong revenue growth, the City again made deposits into the Rainy Day Reserves
during fiscal year 2006-2007, resulting in an additional $19.6 million into the Economic Stabilization
Account and an additional $9.8 million into the One-Time Spending Account. Combined these two
Rainy Day Reserve accounts totaled $133.6 million by fiscal year end 2006-2007.

The net effect of the strong revenue growth, expenditure savings and record deposits into the Rainy
Day Reserve accounts was a positive budgetary fund balance available for subsequent year
appropriation of $131.9 million at the end of fiscal year 2006-2007. The City’s fiscal year 2007-2008
Adopted Original Budget assumed an available balance of $118.9 million, so an additional $13.0
million remains available. (See also Note 4 to the Basic Financial Statements for additional fund
balance details.)
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The City’s capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2007,
increased by $564.4 million, 5.0 percent, to $11.8 billion (net of accumulated depreciation). Capital
assets include land, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads,
streets, and bridges. Governmental activities contributed $225.9 million or 2.0 percent to this total
while $338.5 million or 3.0 percent was from business-type activities. Details are shown in the table

below.
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation
(in thousands)
Business-type
Governmental Activities Activities Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Land......coocrvcenneinnen. $ 151917 $ 143640 $ 195722 $ 194783 § 347,639 $ 338,423
Facilities and Improvement.. 2,108,299 1,884,952 6,042,922 5,974,331 8,151,221 7,859,283
Machinery and equipment.... 53,546 44,782 773,585 799,846 827,131 844,628
Infrastructure..........cccocoueeen. 261,179 240,601 725,729 464,477 986,908 705,078
Property held under lease.... - - 2,484 2,607 2,484 2,607
Easements.......c.coecerecennenee - - 72,403 79,358 72,403 79,358
Construction in progress...... 325,828 360,887 1,054,689 1,013,652 1,380,517 1,374,539

Total..oeeeeereee i $ 2,900,769 $ 2,674,862 § 8,867,534 $ 8,529,054 $ 11,768,303 $ 11,203,916

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

Under governmental activities, net capital assets increased by $225.9 million. This included the
purchase and improvement of two office buildings totaling $114.4 million funded by Certificate of
Participation Series 2007 A and B. The remaining $111.5 million increase was mainly due to
construction-in-progress work at various park and recreational sites (including the Academy of
Science and Steinhart Aquarium), branch libraries, as well as various street improvement and
traffic signal upgrades, and work at Juvenile Hall. About $190.5 million worth of construction-in-
progress work was substantially completed and capitalized as facilities and improvement and
infrastructure as appropriate. These include the San Bruno Jail of $134.3 million, various branch
libraries and certain public works projects.

The Water Enterprise’s net capital assets increased by $166.5 million. Close to 66.9 percent of
the increase in net capital assets, or $111.4 million, reflects the net increase in construction-in-
progress on the enterprise’s ten-year water system improvement project. This change includes a
$216.8 million increase in construction projects offset by $92.6 million in transfers to facilities and
improvements, $2.5 million transfers to equipment, and $10.2 million expensed for projects not
continued. The increase included Sunset Reservoir Rehabilitation and Upgrade, Bay Division
Pipeline Seismic Upgrade and others Water System Improvement Program. The remaining net
increase of $55.1 million reflects the increase to facilities, improvements and equipment less
increase to depreciation.

MTA’s net capital assets increased by $72.8 million or 3.9 percent. Of the $72.8 million, MUNI's
net capital assets increased by $79.5 million or 4.4 percent. Current year additions to
construction-in-progress amounted to $161.6 million of which $73.0 million was for the Third
Street Phase 1 and 2 projects, a major expansion of the transportation system in the City’s
southeast neighborhoods. Phase 1 construction was completed, conceptual engineering and the
supplemental environmental process for Phase 2 continued. Other significant work in progress
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included Motor Bus Hybrid Procurement, Trolley Overhead Reconstruction and New Central
Subway. Parking and Traffic and the non-profit garages had a net decrease of $5.7 million and
$1.0 million in net capital assets due to depreciation expenses exceeding asset acquisition.

s Laguna Honda Hospital's net capital assets increased by $101.4 million due almost entirely to
construction-in-progress on the capital project to rebuild the hospital. This work is partially funded
by the Laguna Honda General Obligation Bonds.

e The Port’'s net capital assets increased about 0.8 percent, or $2.2 million. This increase included
completion of security projects at the Port’s cruise, ferry and cargo facilities, improvements to
parking lots and progress on wetlands enhancement, the lllinois Street Intermodal Bridge and
others.

e Hetch Hetchy increased net capital assets by $8.7 million or 3.2 percent. This included the
completion of a $5.5 million project (the Duct Bank project) and continued work to improve San
Francisco electrical reliability power, various solar projects and pipeline works.

¢ The Airport reported a decrease in net capital assets of $35.8 million or 1.0 percent due largely to
the net effect of depreciation against completed projects of the Near Term Master Plan for SFO in
recent years. Major capital additions in the current fiscal year included Terminal 1 Airtrain Bridge
and Mezzanine, Phased Reconstruction and Overlay Taxiways and improvements to Terminal
Upper Level Viaduct and Air Cargo Explosive Detection System Program.

At the end of the year, the City's business-type activities had approximately $316.2 million in
commitments for various capital projects. Of this, MTA had approximately $96.4 million, Water
Enterprise had $140.5 million, Hetch Hetchy had $21.8 million, Wastewater had $37.5 million, Port
had $5.6 million, Laguna Honda Hospital had $6.1 million and the Airport had $8.3 million. In addition,
there was approximately $201.1 million reserved for encumbrances in capital project funds for the
general government.

For government-wide financial statement presentation, all depreciable capital assets were
depreciated from acquisition date to the end of the current fiscal year. Fund financial statements
record capital asset purchases as expenditures.

For governmental activities, no net infrastructure assets were recorded in fiscal year 2000-2001 (the
first year of presentation in the GASB 34 format), because the historical costs did not meet the
threshold established by GASB. Beginning in fiscal year 2001-2002, newly completed projects are
capitalized and ongoing infrastructure projects are accounted for in construction in progress.

Additional information about the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 7 to the Basic Financial
Statements.

Debt Administration

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total long-term debt outstanding of $7.7 billion. Of
this amount, $1.2 billion is general obligation bonds backed by the full faith and credit of the City and
$6.5 billion is revenue bonds, loans, certificates of participation, capital leases, and other debts of the
City secured solely by specified revenue sources.

As noted previously, the City’s total long-term debt including all bonds, loans, commercial papers and
capital leases decreased by $31.0 million during fiscal year 2006-2007, primarily due to maturities of
existing debt that exceeded the issuance of new debt in the business-type activities.
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The City also took advantage of favorable interest rates to reduce debt payments by issuing $659.0
million in refunding bonds. Of this amount, the Airport issued $453.0 million, the Water Enterprise
issued $48.7 million in refunding revenue bonds and the City issued a total of $157.3 million in
general obligation refunding bonds. The City also made the first borrowing in the amount of $2.0
million on the Seismic Safety Loan Program general obligation bonds under the Board of Supervisors
Resolution No. 65-07 for loans to finance the seismic retrofitting of masonry buildings within the City.
In addition, the City issued $153.7 million in certificates of participation for the purchase and
improvement of two office buildings and for the renovation of a City’s office building. The City also
issued, through the San Francisco Finance Corporation, $11.8 million in lease revenue bonds to
finance equipment and $27.0 million to finance the design, construction and renovation of various
parks located within the City. In addition, the City entered into a lease purchase transaction in the
amount of $2.8 million for the telecommunication and computer equipment to establish the 311
Customer Service Center. The Wastewater issued commercial papers in the amount of $50.0 million.

The City’s Charter imposes a limit on the amount of general obligation bonds the City can have
outstanding at any given time. That limit is three percent of the taxable assessed value of property in
the City - approximately $124.98 billion in value as of the close of the fiscal year. As of June 30,
2007, the City had $1.15 billion in authorized, outstanding property tax—supported general obligation
bonds, which is equal to approximately 0.89 percent of gross (0.92 percent of net) taxable assessed
value of property. As of June 30, 2007, there were an additional $344.1 million in bonds that were
authorized but un-issued. If all of these general obligation bonds were issued and outstanding in full,
the total debt burden would be approximately 1.2 percent of gross taxable assessed value of
property.

The City’s underlying ratings on general obligation bonds as of June 30, 2007 were:

Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. Aa3
Standard and Poor’s AA
Fitch Ratings AA-

During the fiscal year, Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. affirmed its rating and revised its rating outlook
from stable to positive, and Standard and Poor’s affirmed it rating with a stable outlook. Fitch Ratings
affirmed its ratings with the rating outlook on all the City’s outstanding bonds as positive.

The City’s enterprise activities maintained their underlying debt ratings this fiscal year. SFO’s
underlying debt ratings were upheld by Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s, and Fitch
Ratings at "A1”, “A”, and “A”, respectively, with a stable rating outlook. With municipal bond
insurance purchase for revenue bond issues, Moody’s Investors Service, Standard and Poor’s and
Fitch Ratings have assigned SFO the ratings of “Aaa”, “AAA”, and “AAA” respectively. The Water
Enterprise carried underlying ratings of "A1” and “A+” from Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s
respectively, based on Municipal Bond Insurance Policies issued by MBIA and FSA and XL Capital
Assurance, respectively.

Additional information in the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 8 to the Basic Financial
Statements.

Economic factors and next year’s budget and rates

e By the end of fiscal year 2006-2007, San Francisco’s economy was the healthiest it has been
in several years. While the national downturn in housing prices, and associated credit crunch
and macroeconomic uncertainty are genuine causes for concern, San Francisco has
relatively less exposure to sub-prime mortgages than other parts of the State, so its property
tax base is relatively more stable. Compared with other areas of the state and country, San
Francisco is expected to weather any downturn comparatively well.
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Preliminary data indicate that the number of employed residents in San Francisco rose by
9,900 people between June 2006 and June 2007. Final annual employment data indicates
that 12,200 new jobs were added in calendar year 2006. Combined with the 5,500 jobs
added in 2005, San Francisco has added 17,700 new jobs in the last two years. This
reversed four consecutive years of job loss from 2000 to 2004. Annual average
unemployment for 2006 fell to 4.2 percent in San Francisco, the lowest point since the peak
year of 2000, and the year-to-date average unemployment rate through June 2007 remained
at 4 percent.

Average wages in San Francisco have continued to grow at higher rates than the state or
nation. San Francisco’s average annual wage, across all industries, grew to $70,825 in
calendar year 2006 — a 6.4 percent increase over calendar year 2005. By comparison,
average wages nationally grew by only 4.5 percent and by 4.6 percent in California.

The office market also continued its recovery in 2006-2007, with the vacancy rate declining
from 14.8 percent in second quarter 2006 to 11.9 percent in second quarter 2007. During the
same period, office rental rates increased 26.2 percent to $42.31 as of second quarter 2007,
while the market experienced about 1.9 million square feet of net absorption. Office
developers are taking advantage of this strong market: there is currently 1.8 million square
feet of commercial space under construction.

Despite the national housing slump, and relatively high levels of construction since 2004,
housing prices have continued to increase at a healthy rate in the past year. The median
home sales price was $825,000 in June 2007—a 4.4 percent increase from June 2006. In
calendar year 2006, 2,828 housing units were constructed, indicating the continuing strength
of San Francisco’s housing market in the face of the national downturn. Another 5,025 units
were under construction as of first quarter 2007.
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REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and
creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability
for the money it receives. Below are the contacts for questions about this report or requests for
additional financial information.

City and County of San Francisco

Office of the Controller

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 316
San Francisco, CA 94102-4694

Individual Department Financial Statements

San Francisco International Airport Port of San Francisco
Office of the Airport Deputy Director Fiscal Officer

Business and Finance Division Pier 1, The Embarcadero
PO Box 8097 San Francisco, CA 94111
San Francisco, CA 94128

San Francisco Water Enterprise Laguna Honda Hospital
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power Chief Financial Officer
San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise 375 Laguna Honda Bivd.
Director of Accounting Financial Services San Francisco, CA 94116

1155 Market Street, 4th Floor
San Francisco, CA 94103

Municipal Transportation Agency Health Service System

MTA Finance and Administration 1145 Market Street, Suite 200

1 South Van Ness Avenue, 7" Floor San Francisco, CA 94103

San Francisco, CA 94103

San Francisco General Hospital Medical Center San Francisco Employees’

Chief Financial Officer Retirement System

1001 Potrero Avenue, Suite 2A7 Executive Director

San Francisco, CA 94110 30 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 3000

San Francisco, CA 94102
Component Unit Financial Statement
San Francisco Redevelopment Agency

One South Van Ness Avenue, 5" Floor
San Francisco, CA 94103

Blended Component Units Financial Statements

San Francisco County Transportation Authority San Francisco Finance Corporation
Deputy Director for Administration and Finance Mayor’s Office of Public Finance
100 Van Ness Avenue, 26" Floor City Hall, Room 336

San Francisco, CA 94102 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place

San Francisco, CA 94102

WWW.SFGOV.ORG
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2007
(In Thousands)

Primary Government Component Units
Treasure
Business- 8an Francisco Island
Governmental Type Redevelopment Development
Activities Activities Total ~ Agency Authority
ASSETS
Current assets:
Deposits and investments with City Treasury..............c....... $ 1349860 $ 809,548 §$ 2,159,408 $ - $ 1,697
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury.................. 109,870 11,351 121,221 234,887 -
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectible amounts
of $72,146 for the primary government):
Property taxes and penalties 59,678 - 59,678 - -
Other local taxes.......ccovccvrrrecrrerrcnncenas 186,183 - 186,183 - -
Federal and state grants and subventions................ccee.u... 161,667 54,141 215,808 - -
Charges for SEIVICES......cciiiiiiiiiicie e 30,596 206,180 236,776 - -
Interest and Other............ccciciiiiiiiciiniin s 31,520 41,597 73,117 7,644 43
Loans receivable.... ..o - 562 562 - -
Capital lease receivable from primary government.. . - - - 16,045
Due from component unit ... . 932 - 932 - -
INVENLONIES.....covvreeereceerie s - 51,147 51,147 - -
Deferred charges and other assets.............cccoevinenenee. . 10,952 2,592 13,544 - -
Restricted assets:
Deposits and investments with City Treasury..................... - 63,845 63,845 - -
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury............... - 45,251 45,251 68,942 -
Grants and other receivables..............cc.ccoviniiinicnennnne - 774 774 761 -
Total CUIent @SSELS.......corrrreeeeererr e 1,941,258 1,286,988 3,228,246 328,279 1,740
Noncurrent assets:
Loans receivable (net of allowance for uncollectible
amounts of $414,545 and $174,687 for the primary
government and component units, respectively)............ 64,504 324 64,828 15,264 -
Advance to component Unit...........cccocneeviiieninnns 5,733 2,599 8,332 - -
Capital lease receivable from primary government.. . - - - 166,708 -
Deferred charges and other assets..........occceeieienienens 22,884 65,154 88,038 10,767 -
Restricted assets:
Deposits and investments with City Treasury..................... - 448,786 448,786 - -
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury................ - 252,888 252,888 30,853 -
Grants and ofher receivables...........ccccvevievricineceeenieneee - 41,533 41,533 358 -
Property held for resale ... - - - 17,419 -
Capital assets:
Land and other assets not being depreciated.................... 477,745 1,250,411 1,728,156 126,469 -
Facilities, infrastructure, and equipment, net of
AePreciation........cc i 2,423,024 7,617,123 10,040,147 142,365 -
Total capital @ssets........covvviiiimiininnencenes 2,900,769 8,867,534 11,768,303 268,834 -
Total noncurrent assets 2,993,890 9,678,818 12,672,708 510,203 -
TOtal @SSLLS....c.eoveeirieeceecrerre e $4,935148 $10,965806 $15900,954 § 838,482 $ 1,740
(Continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
Statement of Net Assets (Continued)
June 30, 2007
(In Thousands)

Primary Government Component Units
Treasure
Business- San Francisco Island
Governmental Type Redevelopment Development
Activities Activities Total Agency Authority
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
AcCoUNts payable.........cocevrreiceninei e $ 191652 $ 158,041 $ 349693 §$ 10,896 $ 2,999
Accrued payroll 70,895 54,436 125,331 - -
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay........ccoceeeernnnn 70,100 47,728 117,828 1,219 -
Accrued workers' compensation..........ccccccrvrvraivniiiniens 38,963 30,829 69,792 - -
Estimated claims payable.........ccvvvcviniiiiiciciicenens 52,527 21,486 74,013 - -
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables................ 277,827 202,176 480,003 36,514 -
Capital lease payable to component unit............ccccooeenenn 16,045 - 16,045 - -
Accrued interest payable.........cccomrverennninsiii 8,781 14,185 22,966 25,301 -
Unearned grant and subvention revenues..............ccccoeeeenee 4,557 - 4,557 - -
Due to primary government.................... - - - 932 -
Internal balances................... 8,139 (8,139) - - -
Deferred credits and other liabilities.............cooeirecininnnnnns 123,626 108,521 232,147 502 296
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables.............. - 19,087 19,087 - -
Accrued interest payable..........ccooviiinie - 25,411 25,411 - -
[0 1377 SO OOV S UV - 50,847 50,847 - -
Total current liabilities..........cocecceereecrcerenerenseenniiinanens 863,112 724,608 1,587,720 75,364 3,295
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay...........ccccoeeineirinneninen 64,113 37,171 101,284 1,325 -
Accrued workers' compensation..........cccovvvvreiieniininininns 155,726 115,610 271,336 - -
Estimated claims payable...........ccooovvevininineans 61,904 57,023 118,927 - -
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables 1,752,574 5,275,685 7,028,259 748,424 -
Advance from primary government.................. . - - - 5,733 2,599
Capital lease payable to component unit... 166,708 - 166,708 - -
Accrued interest payable........................ - - - 60,291 -
Deferred credits and other liabilities............cocconevnnnnnn. - 44,445 44,445 4,888 -
Total noncurrent liabilities..........ccocoreeirnriciniiiieiiinn, 2,201,025 5,529,934 7,730,959 820,661 2,599
Total Habilities........cocereerreeeieineeneeree e sse e 3,064,137 6,254,542 9,318,679 896,025 5,894
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt........................ 1,454,614 3,795,006 5,249,620 65,487 -
Restricted for:
Reserve for rainy day.......c.ccoccveiiiinnecnnenneeenessee e, 133,622 - 133,622 - -
DDt SEIVICE. ...cvrvreveererecceirer e cee s sseae st e 28,310 249,656 277,966 49,459 -
Capital Projects...........cccevivvieiiinicini s 19,128 75,771 94,899 - -
Community development....... 63,043 - 63,043 - -
Transportation Authority activities. . 10,390 - 10,390 - -
Grants and other purposes....... 176,350 23,709 200,059 17,419 -
Unrestricted (deficit).......... (14,446) 567,122 552,676 (189,908) (4,154)
Total net assets (defiCit)........ccocecmeerecrennmnircciiiiiieics $1,871,011 $ 4,711,264 § 6582275 §$ (57,543) $ (4,154)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Functions/Programs
Primary government:
Governmental activities:

Public protection...........c.cccuo...
Public works, transportation
and COMMmMErce.........ccceveeennns
Human welfare and
neighborhood development...
Community health...................
Culture and recreation.............
General administration and
finance.......ccccoeeueee
General City responsibilities....
Unallocated Interest on
long-term debt...........ccoeec
Total governmental
activities.......ccoeeceeiineiiennnnns
Business-type activities:

Total business-type
activities......cccoeecvcecieniicninens
Total primary government............

Component units:
San Francisco Redevelopment
AGENCY.....crrnrrirecvieiircrenneens
Treasure Island Development
AUhOTItY..c.ceonnrieccne e
Total component units.................

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Statement of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2007

(In Thousands)

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Program Revenues

Primary Government

Component Units
San Francisco Treasure

Charges Operating Capital Govern- Business- Redevelop- Island
for Grants and Grants and mental Type ment Development
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Agency Authority
$ 870,381 $ 58979 $ 113,387 $ - § (698,015) $ - $ (698,015) $ - 8 -
309,095 111,364 44,488 30,846 (122,397) - (122,397) - -
751,034 56,367 472,766 221 (221,680) - (221,680) - -
516,321 50,266 276,836 - (189,219) - (189,219) - -
290,547 65,407 2,396 19,412 (203,332) - (203,332) - -
185,961 10,502 12,378 - (163,081) - (163,081) - -
67,948 29,604 5,005 - (33,339) - (33,339) - -
94,060 - - - (94,060) - (94,060) - -
3,085,347 382,489 927,256 50,479 (1,725,123) - (1,725,123) - -
624,832 503,914 - 46,902 - (74,016) (74,016) - -
726,053 222,115 115,339 100,954 - (287,645) (287,645) - -
61,937 61,193 - 2,224 - 1,480 1,480 - -
236,824 216,531 2,999 - - (17,294) (17,294) - -
95,020 108,224 - - - 13,204 13,204 - -
714,349 515,092 64,963 - - (134,294) (134,294) - -
168,954 193,411 - - - 24,457 24,457 - -
1,061 1,567 - - - 506 506 - -
2,629,030 1,822,047 183,301 150,080 - (473,602) (473,602) - -
$5,714,377 $2,204,536 $ 1,110,557 $ 200,559 (1,725123) (473,602) (2,198,725) - -
$ 128,622 $ 26,246 $ 8,964 $ - (93,412) -
11,231 8,267 202 - - (2,762)
$ 139,853 $ 34513 § 9,166 $ - (93,412) (2,762)
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes. ........coceveceereernenvnircee i 1,126,992 - 1,126,992 74,462 -
Business taxes... 337,592 - 337,592 - -
Other local taxes 668,824 - 668,824 5,478 -
Interest and investment iINCOME..........cccerreernncccrcrnnncenene 86,233 85,692 171,925 16,518 151
[ 12 7= OO USRS OPPROP 33,046 218,184 251,230 11,810 1,056
Special IteM........coceirmiieict et - 17,386 17,386 - -
Transfers - internal activities of primary government........... (451,171) 451,171 - - -
Total general revenues, special item and transfers... 1,801,516 772,433 2,573,949 108,268 1,207
Change in net assets 76,393 298,831 375,224 14,856 (1,555)
Net assets (deficit) - beginning.........ccoeeverereercenene. .. 1,794618 4412433 6,207,051 (72,399) (2,599)
Net assets (deficit) - ending..........occvvvervevreieseerenee e, $1,871,011 $4,711,264 $6,582,275 §$ (57,543) $ (4,154)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2007
(with comparative financial information as of June 30, 2006)

(In Thousands)

Other Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury.................. $ 489,610 $ 443,102 $ 849221 $ 1,060,891 $ 1,338,831 $ 1,503,993
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury............ 225 1,465 51,518 22,287 51,743 23,752
Receivables:
Property taxes and penalties..........ccccooencevnmrinnncnens 48,348 34,157 11,330 8,429 59,678 42,586
Other local taxes.......cccceveveverinerecrcenceennn 171,134 154,505 15,049 13,952 186,183 168,457
Federal and state grants and subventions.. 84,416 63,843 77,251 90,243 161,667 154,086
Charges for services. 22,239 171147 8,357 5,077 30,596 22,194
Interest and other...... 15,346 6,184 15,041 9,035 30,387 15,218
Due from other funds ...... 30,115 30,859 16,644 3,960 46,759 34,819
Due from component unit ....... et ———————- 5,707 3,848 958 958 6,665 4,806
Loans receivable (net of allowance for uncollectible
amount of $414,545 in 2007; $383,869 in 2006)........ - - 64,504 74,041 64,504 74,041
Deferred charges and other assets..........cccocveeceennenne. 7,823 7,243 1,789 1,729 9,612 8,972
Total @SSetS....ccvrverrceeececee e e $ 874963 $ 762323 $ 1,111,662 $ 1,290,602 $ 1,986,625 §$ 2,052,925

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable... . $ 99,151 § 84710 § 82,424 % 88,151 $ 181575 $ 172,861

Accrued payroll.........ccccccermreieenrecnencecninnecnne 56,494 51,792 12,628 10,982 69,122 62,774
Deferred tax, grant and subvention revenues 44,122 33,473 22,899 30,442 67,021 63,915
Due to other funds............ccccccencee 1,272 821 49,963 61,964 51,235 62,785
Deferred credits and other liabilities................... 132,463 130,251 83,270 94,755 215,733 225,006
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables........ - - 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000
Total liabiliies..........ccccoerve e 333,502 301,047 401,184 436,294 734,686 737,341
Fund balances:

Reserved for rainy day.........ccccocovvinvcvcnenniicrcnnns 133,622 121,976 - - 133,622 121,976
Reserved for assets not available for appropriation.... 12,665 10,710 19,413 20,202 32,078 30,912
Reserved for debt service............ccocovmrvcnneiicccnnnncenne - - 51,299 57,429 51,299 57,429
Reserved for encumbrances 60,948 38,159 288,948 423,120 349,896 461,279
Reserved for appropriation carryforward...................... 161,127 124,009 292,234 294,340 453,361 418,349
Reserved for subsequent years' budgets..................... 32,062 27,451 8,004 8,004 40,066 35,455

Unreserved (deficit), reported in:
General fund...........cccceeconeceinececm e 141,037 138,971 - - 141,037 138,971
Special revenue funds.. - - 47,445 35,243 47,445 35,243
Capital project funds..... - - (373) 13,662 (373) 13,662
Permanent fund............cccccoeiniiienieiniiiiicice e - - 3,508 2,308 3,508 2,308
Total fund balances...........cccoeveereererereecnnnsnenen. 541,461 461,276 710,478 854,308 1,251,939 1,315,584
Total liabilities and fund balances..................... $ 874963 $ 762,323 $ 1,111,662 $ 1,290,602 $ 1,986,625 $ 2,052,925

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City and County of San Francisco
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2007

(In Thousands)

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 1,251,939

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 2,895,233

Bond issue costs are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in
the funds. 17,165

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (2,253,472)

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in the funds, but rather is recognized as
an expenditure when due. (7,033)

Because the focus of governmental funds is on short-term financing, some assets
will not be available to pay for current period expenditures. Those assets are
offset by deferred revenue in the funds. 158,203

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of capital lease
financing, fleet management, printing and mailing services, and information
systems to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of internal service

funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets. (191,024)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 1,871,011

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

Year ended June 30, 2007
(with comparative financial information for year ended June 30, 2006)

(In Thousands)

Other Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Revenues:
Property taXeS.......cvvcreervecrreerrircreeisiniesisissn e erenas $ 887,600 $ 783,303 $ 220,174 $ 224,848 §$ 1,107,864 § 1,008,151
Business taxes..... 336,757 322,407 835 746 337,592 323,153
Other local taxes......c.ccocoeevennnnnn 540,695 480,501 128,129 115,163 668,824 595,664
Licenses, permits and franchises . 19,639 20,825 7,789 6,837 27,428 27,662
Fines, forfeitures and penalties............cccoovveviniiiiinininninns 4,720 10,195 4,151 4,254 8,871 14,449
Interest and investment iNCOME..........cooocereirriccrniciiiie 30,089 22,496 53,757 47,550 83,846 70,046
Rents and CONCESSIONS........cccccommririmiieimeiiiiec e 18,449 20,007 34,044 32,419 52,493 52,426
Intergovernmental:
[T [=3 -] OO OSSR 183,573 182,448 198,115 168,537 381,688 350,985
479,748 490,187 102,918 75,802 582,666 565,989
- - 15,689 23,500 15,689 23,500
125,682 126,433 147,375 137,561 273,057 263,994
21,697 15,037 22,387 46,528 44,084 61,565
2,648,739 2,473,839 935,363 883,745 3,584,102 3,357,584
Expenditures:
Current:
Public protection...........cc.comvinnnnniiii 809,075 739,470 56,481 47,928 865,556 787,398
Public works, transportation and commerce 65,184 46,448 215,723 228,221 280,907 274,669
Human welfare and neighborhood development . 568,241 524,516 171,930 172,586 740,171 697,102
Community health...........cccoconinvinniniiice e, 410,169 377,226 99,675 94,515 509,844 471,741
Culture and recreation..............cccceeerveerencenmeecerenrensersnrereenees 93,992 80,516 192,143 176,463 286,135 256,979
General administration and finance 157,981 146,567 9,524 14,628 167,505 161,195
General City responsibilities..........cccconiniinnnnis 56,834 53,065 698 698 57,532 53,763
Debt service:
Principal retirement............coocoivimii - - 98,169 86,970 98,169 86,970
Interest and fiscal Charges.......c..ccvvevevviericrrie i, - - 71,266 75,975 71,266 75,975
Bond issuance cosfs......... - - 3,683 1,933 3,683 1,933
Capital outlay.................. . - - 283,370 153,493 283,370 153,493
Total expenditures...........ccoeverrvrmciciisieniicssiinens .. 2,161,476 1,967,808 1,202,662 1,053,410 3,364,138 3,021,218
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures....... 487,263 506,031 (267,299) (169,665) 219,964 336,366
Other financing sources (uses):
TrANSTEIS IN...ccvvieiiie et re e r e sree e st 71,277 62,431 146,021 162,092 217,298 224,523
Transfers out.................. eteeteereerreeerteaatente et tessheeseneneeseananes (486,600)  (420,086) (182,247) (135,069) (668,847) (555,155)
Issuance of bonds and loans
Face value of bonds issued......c..cccooveevvevrriiiininiiiniciienn e - - 312,955 219,120 312,955 219,120
Face value of Ioans issued.......c.cccovvceveeniiiene i - - 141 5,359 141 5,359
Premium on issuance of bonds... . - - 3,521 10,233 3,521 10,233
Discount on issuance of bonds............c.coceiinie. - - (1,856) - (1,856) -
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent ..............cccceeveiiniencn - - (159,610) - (159,610) -
Other financing sources-capital leases...................... . 8,245 5,220 4,544 1,662 12,789 6,882
Total other financing sources (uses) (407,078) (352,435) 123,469 263,397 (283,609) (89,038)
Net change in fund balances............ 80,185 153,596 (143,830) 93,732 (63,645) 247,328
Fund balances at beginning of year...........c.cccooiiiiiiiiinnnns 461,276 307,680 854,308 760,576 1,315,584 1,068,256
Fund balances atend of year..........cccccccociivinnniiinncccccncen, $ 541,461 $ 461,276 $ 710478 $ 854,308 $ 1,251,939 § 1,315,584

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City and County of San Francisco

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2007

(In Thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period plus
assets donated to the City and acquired by funding from other revenues.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. This is the amount by
which the decrease in certain liabilities reported in the statement of net assets of the previous year
exceeded expenses reported in the statement of activities that do not require the use of current financial
resources.

Property tax revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Some other revenues that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues
in the governmental funds but are recognized in the statement of activities.

Governmental funds report expenditures pertaining to the establishment of certain deferred credits
related to long-term loans made. These deferred credits are not reported on the statement of net assets
and, therefore, the corresponding expense is not reported on the statement of activities.

Lease payments on the Moscone Convention Center (including both principal and interest) are reported
as expenditures in the governmental funds when paid. For the City as a whole, however, the principal
portion of the payments serve to reduce the liability in the statement of net assets. This is the amount of
property rent payments expended in the governmental funds that were reclassified as capital lease
principal and interest payments in the current period.

Bond issue costs are reported in the governmental funds when paid, and are capitalized and amortized
in the statement of activities. This is the amount by which current year bond issue costs exceed
amortization expense in the current period.

The issuance of long-term debt and capital leases provides current financial resources to governmental
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt and capital leases consume the current
financial resources of governmental funds. These transactions, however, have no effect on net assets.
This is the amount by which bond and other debt proceeds exceeded principal retirement in the current
period.

Bond premiums and discounts are reported in the governmental funds when the bonds are issued, and
are capitalized and amortized in the statement of net assets. This is the amount of bond premiums
capitalized during the current period.

Interest expense in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in the governmental funds
because of additional accrued and accreted interest; amortization of bond discounts, premiums and
refunding losses; and change in the accrual of arbitrage liabilities.

The net revenues of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Change in net assets of governmental activities $

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Budgetary Comparison Statement - General Fund
Year ended June 30, 2007
(In Thousands)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1
Resources (Inflows):

Property taxes....
Business taxes
Other local taxes:
SaAlES AX... ettt st bt e
Hotel room tax.
Utility users tax
Parking tax
Real property transfer tax
Stadium admisSion taX.........cocv e s
Licenses, permits, and franchises:
Licenses and permits....
Franchise tax.................
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties
Interest and investment income
Rents and concessions:
Garages - Recreation and Park
Rents and concessions - Recreation and Park.
Other rents and CONCESSIONS...........covcereiricrmerreeiree et
Intergovernmental:
Federal subventions:
Health and social service subventions............ccoevicrivnniinnne
Other grants and subventions............c.ccoovvininncienin
State subventions:
Social service subventions..............c.occooii
Health / mental health subventions......................c..ol.
Health and welfare realignment........................ccooinn,
Public safety sales tax.............
Motor vehicle in-lieu - county..
Other grants and subventions............ccocevi i
Charges for services:
General government service charges
Public safety service charges
Recreation charges - Recreation and Park..........c..ccoccoveeeieneinnns
MediCal, MediCare and health service charges..............ccocccecenene
Other financing sources:
Transfers from other funds...........ccccovveiiieic e
Proceeds from issuance of bonds and loans.............c..cococeeene.
Other resources (INfIOWS).........ccccvrvvcrreiaieeesnrestne e seseresrrasennens

Total amounts available for appropriation...............ccceovcveeceee

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Actual Variance
Original Final Budgetary Positive
Budget Budget Basis {Negative)
125,125 $ 478,001 $ 478,001 $ -
837,543 837,543 894,825 57,282
332,168 332,168 336,757 4,589
106,236 106,236 107,813 1,577
125,907 125,907 143,072 17,165
79,438 79,438 78,729 (709)
36,052 58,347 64,763 6,416
105,000 105,000 143,976 38,976
2,876 2,876 2,342 (534)
7,069 7,069 7,225 156
13,848 13,848 14,915 1,067
4,899 4,899 4,720 (179)
33,989 33,994 40,118 6,124
9,272 9,272 10,600 1,328
9,252 9,262 6,090 (3,162)
1,614 1,614 1,759 145
185,430 175,735 179,696 3,961
8,843 9,155 3,878 (5,277)
95,111 100,866 95,654 (5,212)
107,408 108,035 99,270 (8,765)
165,199 165,199 172,431 7,232
74,030 74,030 69,286 (4,744)
5,604 5,604 4,672 (932)
22,923 29,059 38,434 9,375
43,739 43,739 38,802 (4,937)
24,146 24,761 25,648 887
7,076 7,076 6,205 (871)
59,012 57,755 55,027 (2,728)
57,159 62,659 62,233 (426)
901 901 - (901)
17,948 13,809 12,364 (1,445)
$ 2,704,817 $ 3,083,847 $3,199,305 $ 115,458
(Continued)



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Budgetary Comparison Statement - General Fund (Continued)
Year ended June 30, 2007
(In Thousands)

Actual Variance
Original Final Budgetary Positive
Budget Budget Basis {Negative)
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
Public Protection
Adult Probation $ 10,800 § 10,978 $ 10,729 §$ 249
District Attorney... 29,998 30,430 30,352 78
Emergency Communications... 5,216 5,400 5,187 213
Fire Department 222,083 225,585 225,234 351
Juvenile Probation 36,452 34,259 33,902 357
Police Department. 301,505 307,766 307,046 720
Public Defender. 22,044 21,770 21,637 133
Sheriff............... . 141,531 136,622 136,593 29
Trial Courts. 31,256 31,272 31,261 11
Subtotal - Public Protection 800,885 804,082 801,941 2,141
Public Works, Transportation and Commerce
Board of Appeals 570 579 575 4
Business and Economic Development 4,039 3,187 3,097 90
Clean Water. 197 210 188 22
General Services Agency - Public Works 33,928 51,379 50,942 437
Hetch Hetchy. - 29 29 -
Parking and Traffic Commission.... - 266 247 19
Public Utilities COMMISSION........cc..coveimienriieireeieceees s - 29 22 7
Subtotal - Public Works, Transportation and Commerce 38,734 55,679 55,100 579
Human Welfare and Neighborhood Development
Children, Youth and Their Families...........cococoooioiiiinns 23,003 22,056 21,043 1,013
Commission on the Status of Women...... 2,855 3,695 3,611 84
County Education Office.... 74 74 74 -
Environment......... 1,420 1,110 1,036 74
Human Rights Commission.. 1,120 1,127 1,127 -
Human Services...... . . 561,209 650,519 536,636 13,883
Subtotal - Human Welfare and Neighborhood Development 589,681 578,581 563,627 15,054
Public Health 424,786 428,460 410,169 18,291
Culture and Recreation
Academy Of SCIENCES.......cccoriereienii e 2,245 2,245 2,245 -
Art Commission 7,659 7,632 7,630 2
Asian Art Museum 7,136 6,773 6,707 66
Fine Arts Museum 9,551 9,818 9,818 -
Law Library. 589 598 597 1
Recreation and Park CommissSion..........cceoeeeieeieceeeeceieie e, 71,789 66,025 65,953 72
Subtotal - Culture and Recreation 98,969 93,091 92,950 141

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Budgetary Comparison Statement - General Fund (Continued)
Year ended June 30, 2007
(In Thousands)

Actual Variance
Original Final Budgetary Positive
Budget Budget Basis {Negative)
General Administration and Finance
Assessor/Recorder.............coevnernnne. 10,840 11,034 10,959 75
Board of Supervisors.. 10,833 10,166 10,013 153
City Attorney. 10,538 11,094 10,952 142
City Planning. 20,534 19,979 19,443 536
Civil Service 590 624 609 15
Controller... 18,664 18,976 18,024 952
Elections.... 8,602 9,872 9,847 25
Ethics Commission 8,416 2,271 1,828 443
General Services Agency - Administrative Services.... 64,772 46,098 44,764 1,334
General Services Agency - Telecomm. and Info. Services ........... 2,365 4,335 4,196 139
Human Resources........ccocveeervevennenen . 14,031 9,828 9,407 421
Mayor.........coveeeeeereennen . 8,359 12,283 11,693 590
Retirement Services... . 396 374 374 -
Treasurer/Tax Collector..................... 23,031 21,384 20,583 801
Subtotal - General Administration and Finan 201,971 178,318 172,692 5,626

General City Responsibilities
General City Responsibilities............cccccouevvneriecneninercnneeniencinens 60,101 61,834 58,540 3,294
Other financing uses:

Transfers to other funds. 429,313 498,202 483,268 14,934
Budgetary reserves and designations. 60,377 22,856 - 22,856
Total charges to appropriations...........cccccovvericevviicnneciieen, 2,704,817 2,721,103 2,638,187 82,916
Total Sources less Current Year Uses - 362,744 561,118 198,374
Budgetary Reserves Carried Forward into Subsequent Year..... 39,340 2,317 (37,023)
New Deposits into Rainy Day Reserves from Current Year
Economic Stabilization Account....................ooon 19,646 - (19,646)
One-Time Spending ACCOUN...........cccovieircinniceerereetieae 9,823 - (9,823)
Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 $ 431,553 $ 563,435 $ 131,882

Explanation of differences between budgetary inflows and outflows, and GAAP revenues and expenditures:
Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation” ...........ccoccoioiiir i $3,199,305
Difference - budget to GAAP:
The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary resource but is not

a current year revenue for financial reporting purposes. (478,001)
Property tax revenue - Teeter Plan............... - . (7,135)
Unrealized gain/(loss) on investment........... . 189
Interest earnings / charges from other funds being reclassified (10,216)
Interest earnings from agency funds reclassified as other revenues.............cccoov e, 9,333
Other budget to GAAP differences. ...t s (2,503)
Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources but are not

revenues for financial reporting PUMPOSES. .........c.veccverireierient et (62,233)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances - governmental funds. $2,648,739

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations” ...........cccoecverieiviceeniec s $2,638,187
Difference - budget to GAAP:
Capital asset purchases funded under capital leases
with Finance Corporation & Other Vendors 8,245
Other budget to GAAP differences..... . (236)

Loans to Redevelopment Agency for Visitation Valley & Bay View Hunters Point (1,452)
Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources but are not
expenditures for financial reporting PUIPOSES............cccoiiiciiricnircere e (483,268)
Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances - governmental funds............cc..cceeiient i $2,161,476

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2007

(In Thousands)

Pension
and Other
Employee Investment
Benefit Trust Trust Agency
Funds Fund Funds

ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury.........coccmevmnmimiicini e e s 3 70,167 $ 645,568 $ 60,894
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury:

Cash and dePOSIES.......cceeeemueeriiiiiiienetee st s e s s e e e 70,495 105 14

Short term bills and NOES........ccoe e e 1,426,876 - -

DEDt SECUMLIES....e e eeeereee ittt e e e b 4,254,683 - -

EQUILY SECUMEIES........iriiieer it et e 8,835,816 - -

ReEAI ESIALE......coreeie et e e e 1,698,685 - -

Venture capital........c.cceecenenneeenn . 1,604,653 - -

Foreign currency contracts, net... 10,466 - -
Receivables:

Employer and employee contributions..........c.cccveivinincinnein i, 27,285 - 40,602

Brokers, general partners and others...........cocverveiniiiiicc e 853,921 - -

INEEreSt AN OLNET.........oo et st e e e e er e s 57,491 9,776 143,626
Invested securities lending collateral...........ccooviiiiiiecniiiniiienc e 2,220,679 - -
Deferred charges and Other asSSetS.......ccoeevvvrerererernre st s se e s er s - - 26,658

TOUAl @SSEIS...cvevereemereriieereesiseereeseseetesnssassrtsassersssiasaressonsasansasesassnansesasnsnsensasenes 21,131,217 655,449 $ 271,794
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNES PAYADIE.........oeeeerieeiee e crrccar e enem e e r s e s sae s se s b e 15,134 9,266 $ 52,105
Estimated claims payable..........ccooociiiiir 10,025 - -
AGENCY OBGAtIONS.....cruvierrcriie it - - 219,689
Obligations under fixed coupon dollar reverse repurchase agreements............c.coveveirnnienn. 468,164 - -
Payable to brokers 1,390,144 - -
Securities lending collateral.. 2,220,679 - -
Deferred credits and other liabilities........c.ueivereiiereecee e e e 31,128 - -
Total HabIltIES. ...ecve e ettt e st e cre e e s e 4,135,274 9,266 $ 271,794

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension and other employee benefits and external pool participants......... $ 16,995,943 $ 646,183

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
Year ended June 30, 2007

(In Thousands)

Pension
and Other
Employee Investment
Benefit Trust Trust
Funds Fund
Additions:
Employees’ COMtribUtIONS......cccooe et et s e $ 252,362 $ -
Employer contributions.........c..cooevemieiiniinnee 576,705 -
Contributions to pooled investments - 2,600,231
Total contribUIONS.....c..ooiice et s 829,067 2,600,231
Investment income:
INtErest.....ccci e 241,499 31,395
Dividends.......ccocoiiniiiiininnnerienn e, 167,408 -
Net increase in fair value of investments.. 2,424,618 -
Securities lending iINCOME........ococvevecicirre e 106,208 -
Fixed coupon dollar reverse repurchase agreement income.. 27,050 -
Total investment INCOME ... s 2,966,783 31,395
Less investment expenses:
Securities lending borrower rebates and expenses..........c.ocececvvviinmicninens (98,375) -
Fixed coupon dollar reverse repurchase finance charges and expenses.. (25,129) -
OhEr EXPENSES....ci.iceirniiirctis i e e sae s ste s ransrares (44,009) -
Total investment expenses (167,513) -
Total additions, NEL........cco e s 3,628,337 2,631,626
Deductions:
Benefit payments.......c...ociiriiiiinini i e et e e 1,152,949 -
Refunds of contribDULIONS. ...t ceee e 7,645 -
Distribution from pooled investments.........ccccocoiviirccniiiiiics e - 2,532,885
AdMINiStrative EXPENSES......vcree i et erercree e e s s s s s s s seasesssrnes e s ssana e 11,362 -
Total dEAUCHIONS.....ccoveerieierrccernecenee e sse e e e sese s sa e sases 1,171,956 2,532,885
Change in Net asSets.......cccoi i 2,456,381 98,741
Net assets at beginnNiNg Of YEaI.......ccccvivirecrimmrerrc e e 14,539,562 547,442
Net assets at @NG OF YEAI.......ccvvvieerceeeeee e ereesseese e sar s cnesenens $ 16,995,943 $ 646,183

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2007

THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

San Francisco is a city and county chartered by the State of California and as such can exercise the
powers as both a city and a county under state law. As required by generally accepted accounting
principles, the accompanying financial statements present the City and County of San Francisco (the City
or primary government) and its component units. The component units discussed below are included in
the City's reporting entity because of the significance of their operations or financial relationships with the
City.

As a government agency, the City is exempt from both federal income taxes and California State
franchise taxes.

Blended Component Units

Following is a description of those legally separate component units for which the City is financially
accountable that are blended with the primary government because of their individual governance or
financial relationships to the City.

San Francisco County Transportation Authority (The Authority) - The voters of the City created the
Authority in 1989 to impose a voter-approved sales and use tax of one-half of one percent, for a period
not to exceed 20 years, to fund essential traffic and transportation projects. In 2003, the voters approved
Proposition K, extending the city-wide one-half of one percent sales tax with a new 30 year plan. A board
consisting of the eleven members of the City’s Board of Supervisors serving ex officio governs the
Authority. The Authority is reported in a special revenue fund in the City’s basic financial statements.
Financial statements for the Authority can be obtained from their finance and administrative offices at 100
Van Ness Avenue, 26" Floor, San Francisco, CA 94102.

San Francisco City and County Finance Corporation (The Finance Corporation) - The Finance
Corporation was created in 1990 by a vote of the electorate to allow the City to lease-purchase $20
million (plus 5% per year growth) of equipment using tax-exempt obligations. Although legally separate
from the City, the Finance Corporation is reported as if it were part of the primary government because its
sole purpose is to provide lease financing to the City. The Finance Corporation is governed by a three-
member board of directors approved by the Mayor and the Board of Supervisors. The Finance
Corporation is reported as an internal service fund. Financial statements for the Finance Corporation can
be obtained from their administrative offices at City Hall, Room 336, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San
Francisco, CA 94102.

San Francisco Parking Authority (The Parking Authority) - The Parking Authority was created in October
1949 to provide services exclusively to the City. In accordance with Proposition D authorized by the
City’s electorate in November 1988, a City Charter amendment created the Parking and Traffic
Commission (DPT). The DPT consists of five commissioners appointed by the mayor. Upon creation of
the DPT, the responsibility to oversee the City’s off-street parking operations was transferred from the
Parking Authority to the DPT. The staff and fiscal operations of the Parking Authority were also
incorporated into the DPT. Beginning on July 1, 2002, the responsibility for overseeing the operations of
the DPT became the responsibility of the Municipal Transportation Agency (MTA) pursuant to Proposition
E which was passed by the voters in November 1999. Separate financial statements are not prepared for
the Parking Authority. Further information about the Parking Authority can be obtained from the MTA
administrative offices at 1 South Van Ness Avenue, 7" Floor, San Francisco, CA 94102.

Discretely Presented Component Units

San Francisco Redevelopment Agency (The Agency) - The Agency is a public body, corporate and
politic, organized and existing under the Community Redevelopment Law of the State of California.
Seven commissioners who are appointed by the Mayor, subject to confirmation by the City’s Board of
Supervisors, govern it. The Agency has adopted as its mission the creation of affordable housing and

economic development opportunities Citywide. Included in its financial data are the accounts of the San
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2007

Francisco Redevelopment Financing Authority (SFRFA), a blended component unit of the Agency. The
SFRFA is a separate joint-powers authority formed between the Agency and the City to facilitate the long-
term financing of Agency activities. The Agency’s governing commission serves as the Board of Directors
of the SFRFA.

In May 2002, the Public Initiatives Development Corporation (PIDC) was formed to develop affordable
housing on the Agency's behalf. The PIDC is reported as a blended component unit of the Agency, due
to the Board of the PIDC being comprised of management of the Agency and other appointed individuals.
Future funding will be dependent on the Agency and as such, the PIDC is reported as a blended
component unit of the Agency.

The Agency’s governing body is not substantively the same as that of the City, and the Agency does not
provide services entirely or almost entirely to the City. The Agency is reported in a separate column to
emphasize that it is legally separate from the City. The City is financially accountable for the Agency
through the appointment of the Agency’s Board and the ability of the City to approve the Agency’s budget.
Disclosures related to the Agency, where significant, are identified separately throughout these notes.
Complete financial statements can be obtained from the Agency’s finance department at 1 South Van
Ness Avenue, San Francisco, CA 94103.

Treasure Island Development Authority (TIDA) - The TIDA is a nonprofit public benefit corporation. The
TIDA was authorized in accordance with the Treasure Island Conversion Act of 1997 and designated as a
redevelopment agency pursuant to Community Redevelopment Law of the State of California. Seven
commissioners who are appointed by the Mayor, subject to confirmation by the City’s Board of
Supervisors, govern the TIDA. The specific purpose of the TIDA is to promote the planning,
redevelopment, reconstruction, rehabilitation, reuse, and conversion of the property known as Naval
Station Treasure Island for the public interest, convenience, welfare, and common benefit of the
inhabitants of the City. The TIDA has adopted as its mission the creation of affordable housing and
economic development opportunities on Treasure Island.

The TIDA’s governing body is not substantively the same as that of the City and does not provide
services entirely or almost entirely to the City. The TIDA is reported in a separate column to emphasize
that it is legally separate from the City. The City is financially accountable for the TIDA through the
appointment of the TIDA's Board and the ability of the City to approve the TIDA’s budget. Disclosures
related to the TIDA, where significant, are separately identified throughout these notes. Separate
financial statements are not prepared for TIDA. Further information about TIDA can be obtained from
their administrative offices at 410 Palm Avenue, Building 1, Room 223, Treasure Island, San Francisco,
CA 94130.

Non-Disclosed Organizations

There are other governmental agencies that provide services within the City. These entities have
independent governing boards and the City is not financially accountable for them. The City’s basic
financial statements, except for certain cash held by the City as an agent, do not reflect operations of the
San Francisco Airport Improvement Corporation, San Francisco Health Authority, San Francisco Housing
Authority, Private Industry Council of San Francisco, San Francisco Unified School District and San
Francisco Community College District. The City is represented in two regional agencies, the Bay Area
Rapid Transit District and the Bay Area Air Quality Management District, of which both are also excluded
from the City’s reporting entity.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes
in net assets) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities which rely, to a significant extent, on fees
and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally
separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment, and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements.

The basic financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information. This
information is presented only to facilitate financial analysis.

(b) Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Agency funds, however, report only assets and liabilities and cannot be said to have a
measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The City considers
property tax revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. All other revenues are considered to be available if they are generally collected within 120 days
of the end of the current fiscal period. It is the City’s policy to submit reimbursement and claim requests
for federal and state grant revenues within 30 days of the end of the program cycle and payment is
generally received within the first or second quarter of the following fiscal year. Expenditures generally
are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to vacation, sick leave, claims and judgments, are recorded
only when payment is due.

Property taxes, other local taxes, grants and subventions, licenses, and interest associated with the
current fiscal period are all considered susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues
of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only
when the City receives cash.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2007

The City reports the following major governmental fund:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
City except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The City reports the following major proprietary (enterprise) funds:

The San Francisco International Airport Fund accounts for the activities of the City-owned
commercial service airport in the San Francisco Bay Area.

The San Francisco Water Enterprise Fund accounts for the activities of the San Francisco Water
Enterprise (Water Enterprise). The Water Enterprise is engaged in the distribution of water to the
City and certain suburban areas.

The Hetch Hetchy Water and Power Enterprise Fund accounts for the activities of Hetch Hetchy
Water and Power Department (Hetch Hetchy). The department is engaged in the collection and
conveyance of approximately 85% of the City’s water supply and in the generation and
transmission of electricity.

The Municipal Transportation Agency Fund accounts for the activities of the Municipal
Transportation Agency (MTA). The MTA was established by Proposition E, passed by the City’s
voters in November 1999. The MTA includes the San Francisco Municipal Railway (MUNI), San
Francisco Municipal Railway Improvement Corporation (SFMRIC), and the operations of the
Department of Parking and Traffic (DPT), which includes the Parking Authority. MUNI was
established in 1912 and is responsible for the operations of the City’s public transportation system.
SFMRIC is a nonprofit corporation established to provide capital financial assistance for the
modernization of MUNI by acquiring, constructing, and financing improvements to the City’s public
transportation system. DPT is responsible for proposing and implementing street and traffic
changes and oversees the City’s off-street parking operations. DPT is a separate department of
the MTA. The parking garages fund accounted for the activities of various non-profit corporations
formed by the Parking Authority to provide financial and other assistance to the City to acquire land,
construct facilities, and manage various parking facilities.

The San Francisco General Hospital Medical Center Fund accounts for the activities of the San
Francisco General Hospital Medical Center (SFGH), a City-owned acute care hospital.

The San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise Fund (formerly known as the Clean Water Program)
was created after the San Francisco voters approved a proposition in 1976, authorizing the City to
issue $240 million in bonds for the purpose of acquiring, construction, improving, and financing
improvements to the City municipal sewage treatment and disposal system.

The Port of San Francisco Fund accounts for the operation, development, and maintenance of
seven and one-half miles of waterfront property of the Port of San Francisco (Port). This was
established in 1969 after the San Francisco voters approved a proposition to accept the transfer of
the Harbor of San Francisco from the State of California.

The Laguna Honda Hospital Fund accounts for the activities of Laguna Honda Hospital, the City-
owned skilled nursing facility which specializes in serving elderly and disabled residents.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The Permanent Fund accounts for resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only
earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support specific programs.

The Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by one City
department to another City department on a cost-reimbursement basis. Internal Service Funds
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2007

account for the activities of the equipment maintenance services, centralized printing and mailing
services, centralized telecommunications and information services, and lease financing through the
Finance Corporation.

The Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds reflect the activities of the Employees’
Retirement System and the Health Service System. The Retirement System accounts for
employee contributions, City contributions, and the earnings and profits from investments. It also
accounts for the disbursements made for employee retirement benefits, withdrawals, disability and
death benefits as well as administrative expenses. The Health Service System accounts for
contributions from active and retired employees and surviving spouses, City contributions, and the
earnings and profits from investments. It also accounts for the disbursements to various health
plans and health care providers for the medical expenses of beneficiaries.

The Investment Trust Fund accounts for the external portion of the Treasurer’s Office investment
pool. The funds of the San Francisco Community College District, San Francisco Unified School
District, and the Trial Courts are accounted for within the Investment Trust Fund.

The Agency Funds account for the resources held by the City in a custodial capacity on behalf of:
the State of California, human welfare, community heaith and transportation programs.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent
that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector
guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City
has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

In general, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this rule are charges to other City departments from the Water Enterprise and
Hetch Hetchy. These charges have not been eliminated because elimination would distort the direct
costs and program revenues reported in the statement of activities.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the fund’s principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise and internal service funds
are charges for customer services including: water, sewer and power charges, public transportation fees,
airline fees and charges, parking fees, hospital patient service fees, commercial and industrial rents,
printing services, vehicle maintenance fees, and telecommunication and information system support
charges. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

(c) Budgetary Data

The City adopts annual budgets for all governmental funds on a substantially modified accrual basis of
accounting except for capital project funds and certain debt service funds which substantially adopt
project length budgets.

The budget of the City is a detailed operating plan, which identifies estimated costs and results in relation
to estimated revenues. The budget includes (1) the programs, projects, services, and activities to be
provided during the fiscal year, (2) the estimated resources (inflows) available for appropriation, and (3)
the estimated charges to appropriations. The budget represents a process through which policy
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2007

decisions are deliberated, implemented, and controlled. The City Charter prohibits expending funds for
which there is no legal appropriation.

The Administrative Code Chapter 3 outlines the City's general budgetary procedures, with Section 3.3
detailing the budget timeline. A summary of the key budgetary steps are summarized as follows:

Original Budget

(1

)

3

(4)

®)

(6)

)

Departments and Commissions conduct hearings to obtain public comment on their proposed
annual budgets beginning in December and submit their budget proposals to the Controller’'s Office
no later than February 21.

The Controller’s Office consolidates the budget estimates and transmits them to the Mayor’s Office
no later than the first working day of March. Staff of the Mayor’s Office analyze, review and refine
the budget estimates before transmitting the Mayor's Proposed Budget to the Board of Supervisors.

By the first working day of May, the Mayor submits the Proposed Budget for selected departments
to the Board of Supervisors. The selected departments are determined by the Controller in
consultation with the Board President and the Mayor’'s Budget Director. Criteria for selecting the
departments include (1) that they are not supported by the City’s General Fund or (2) that they do
not rely on the State’s budget submission in May for their revenue sources.

By the first working day of June, the Mayor submits the complete Proposed Budget to the Board of
Supervisors along with a draft of the Annual Appropriation Ordinance prepared by the Controller's
Office.

Within five working days of the Mayor’s proposed budget transmission to the Board of Supervisors,
the Controller reviews the estimated revenues and assumptions in the Mayor’s Proposed Budget
and provides an opinion as to their accuracy and reasonableness. The Controller also may make a
recommendation regarding prudent reserves given the Mayor's proposed resources and
expenditures.

The designated Committee (usually the Budget Committee) of the Board of Supervisors conducts
hearings, hears public comment, and reviews the Mayor's Proposed Budget. The Committee
recommends an interim budget reflecting the Mayor’s budget transmittal and, by June 30, the Board
of Supervisors passes an interim appropriation and salary ordinances.

Not later than the last working day of July, the Board of Supervisors adopts the budget through
passage of the Annual Appropriation Ordinance, the legal authority for enactment of the budget.

Final Budget

The final budgetary data presented in the basic financial statements reflects the following changes to the
original budget:

(1

)

Certain annual appropriations are budgeted on a project or program basis. If such projects or
programs are not completed at the end of the fiscal year, unexpended appropriations, including
encumbered funds, are carried forward to the following year. In certain circumstances, other
programs and regular annual appropriations may be carried forward after appropriate approval.
Annually appropriated funds, not authorized to be carried forward, lapse at the end of the fiscal
year. Appropriations carried forward from the prior year are included in the final budgetary data.

Appropriations may be adjusted during the year with the approval of the Mayor and the Board of
Supervisors, e.g. supplemental appropriations. Additionally, the Controller is authorized to make
certain transfers of surplus appropriations within a department. Such adjustments are reflected in
the final budgetary data.
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The Annual Appropriation Ordinance adopts the budget at the character level of expenditure within
departments. As described above, the Controller is authorized to make certain transfers of
appropriations within departments. Accordingly, the legal level of budgetary control by the Board of
Supervisors is the department level.

Budgetary data, as revised, is presented in the basic financial statements for the General Fund.
Final budgetary data excludes the amount reserved for encumbrances for appropriate comparison
to actual expenditures.

Generally, new or one-time federal and state grants, other capital projects, and debt issues are
budgeted by the Mayor and the Board of Supervisors through a supplemental appropriation.

(d) Deposits and Investments
Investment in the Treasurer’s Pool

The Treasurer invests on behalf of most funds of the City and external participants in accordance with the
City’s investment policy and the California State Government Code. The City Treasurer who reports on a
monthly basis to the Board of Supervisors manages the Treasurer’s pool. In addition, the function of the
County Treasury Oversight Committee is to review and monitor the City’s investment policy and to
monitor compliance with the investment policy and reporting provisions of the law through an annual
audit.

The Treasurer’s investment pool consists of two components: 1) pooled deposits and investments and 2)
dedicated investment funds. The dedicated investment funds represent restricted funds and relate to
bond issuance of the Enterprise Funds and the General Fund’s cash reserve requirement. In addition to
the Treasurer’s investment pool, the City has other funds that are held by trustees. These funds are
related to the issuance of bonds and certain loan programs of the City. The investments of the
Employees’ Retirement System and deposits and investments of the Redevelopment Agency are held by
trustees (note 5).

The San Francisco Unified School District (school district), San Francisco Community College District
(community college district), and the City are involuntary participants in the City’s investment pool. As of
June 30, 2007, involuntary participants accounted for approximately 94 percent of the pool. Voluntary
participants accounted for 6 percent of the pool. Further, the school district, community college district,
the Trial Courts of the State of California, and the Transbay Joint Powers Authority are external
participants of the City’s pool. At June 30, 2007, $646.2 million was held on behalf of these external
participants. The total percentage share of the City’s pool that relates to these four external participants
is 19 percent. Internal participants accounted for 81 percent of the pool.

For reports on the external investment pool, contact the Office of the Treasurer, Room 140, City Hall, 1
Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San Francisco, CA 94102.

Investment Valuation

Treasurer’s Pool - All investments are carried at fair value. The fair value of pooled investments is
determined annually and is based on current market prices. The fair value of participants’ position in the
pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. The method used to determine the value of participants’
equity withdrawn is based on the book value of the participants’ percentage participation at the date of
such withdrawal. In the event that a certain fund overdraws its share of pooled cash, the overdraft is
reported as a due to the General Fund.

Employees’ Retirement System (Retirement System) - Investments are reported at fair value. Securities
traded on national or international exchanges are valued at the last reported sales price at current
exchange rates. Investments that do not have an established market price are reported at estimated fair
value. Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on a trade date basis. The fair values of real
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estate holdings are estimated based primarily on appraisals prepared by third-party appraisers. Such
market value estimates involve subjective judgments, and the actual market price of the real estate can
only be determined by negotiation between independent third parties in a sales transaction.

The fair values of venture capital investments are estimated based primarily on audited financial
statements provided to the individual fund managers. Such market value estimates involve subjective
judgments, and the actual market price of the investments can only be determined by negotiation
between independent third parties in a sales transaction.

The City Charter and Retirement System Board policies permit the Retirement System to use investments
of the Retirement System’s Pension Plan (the Plan) to enter into securities lending transactions. These
are loans of securities to broker-dealers and other entities for collateral, with a simultaneous agreement to
return collateral for the same securities in the future. The collateral may consist of cash or noncash;
noncash collateral is generally U.S. treasuries or other U.S. government obligations. The Retirement
System’s securities custodians are agents in lending the Plan’s domestic securities for cash collateral of
102% and international securities for cash collateral of 105%. Contracts with the lending agents require
them to indemnify the Retirement System if the borrowers fail to return the securities (and if the collateral
were inadequate to replace the securities lent) or if the borrowers fail to pay the Retirement System for
income distributions by the securities’ issuers while the securities are on loan. Non-cash collateral cannot
be pledged or sold unless the borrower defaults.

Either the Retirement System or the borrower can terminate all securities loans on demand, although the
average term of the loans at June 30, 2007 is eighty-two days. In lending domestic securities, cash
collateral is invested in the lending agent’s short-term investment pool, which at year-end had a weighted-
average maturity of fifty-four days. In lending international securities, cash collateral is invested in a
separate short-term investment pool, which at year-end had a weighted-average maturity of thirty-seven
days. The relationship between the maturities of the investment pools and the Retirement System’s loans
is affected by the maturities of the securities loans made by other entities that use the agent's pool, which
the Retirement System cannot determine. Cash collateral may also be invested separately in term loans,
in which case the maturity of the loaned securities matches the term of the loan. Cash received as
collateral on securities lending transactions is reported as an asset, and liabilities from these transactions
are reported in the statement of net assets. Additionally, the costs of securities lending transactions, such
as borrower rebates and fees, are recorded as expenses.

The City Charter and Retirement System Board policies permit the Retirement System to use investments
to enter into fixed coupon dollar repurchase agreements, that is, a sale of securities with a simultaneous
agreement to repurchase similar securities in the future at a lower price that reflects a financing rate. The
fair value of the securities underlying fixed coupon dollar repurchase agreements equals the cash
received. If the dealers default on their obligations to resell these securities to the Retirement System at
the agreed-upon buy back price, the Retirement System could suffer an economic loss if the securities
have to be purchased at a higher price (than the agreed-upon buy back price) in the open market. This
credit exposure at June 30, 2007 was approximately $133 thousand.

Other funds - Non-pooled investments are also generally carried at fair value. However, money market
investments (such as short term, highly liquid debt instruments including commercial paper, bankers’
acceptances, and U.S. Treasury and agency obligations), and participating interest-earning investment
contracts (such as negotiable certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements and guaranteed or bank
investment contracts) that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are
carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The fair value of non-pooled investments is
determined annually and is based on current market prices. The fair value of investments in open-end
mutual funds is determined based on the fund’s current share price.

Component Unit — San Francisco Redevelopment Agency (The Agency) — The Agency pools deposits
and investments, except for certain investments restricted for developers’ deposits and pledged assets
relating to specific projects. The Agency’s investments are stated at fair value. Fair value has been
obtained by using market quotes as of June 30, 2007. Money market investments (such as short-term,
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highly liquid debt instruments including commercial paper, bankers’ acceptances, and U.S. Treasury and
agency obligations) and participating interest-earning investment contracts (such as negotiable
certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements and guaranteed or bank investment contracts) that have a
remaining maturity of less than one year at the date of purchase are valued at the amortized cost, which
approximates fair value as of June 30, 2007.

Investment Income

Income from pooled investments is allocated at month end to the individual funds or external participants
based on the fund or participant’s average daily cash balance in relation to total pooled investments. City
management has determined that the investment income related to certain funds should be allocated to
the General Fund. On a budget basis, the interest income is recorded in the General Fund. On a
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) basis, the income is reported in the fund where the
related investments reside. A transfer is then recorded to transfer an amount equal to the interest
earnings to the General Fund. This is the case for certain other governmental funds, Internal Service,
Investment Trust and Agency Funds.

It is the City’s policy to charge interest at month end to those funds that have a negative average daily
cash balance. In certain instances, City management has determined that the interest expense related to
the fund should be allocated to the General Fund. On a budget basis, the interest expense is recorded in
the General Fund. On a GAAP basis, the interest expense is recorded in the fund and then a transfer
from the General Fund for an amount equal to the interest expense is made to the fund. This is the case
for certain other funds, MTA, Laguna Honda Hospital, General Hospital Medical Center, and the Internal
Service Funds.

Income from non-pooled investments is recorded based on the specific investments held by the fund. The
interest income is recorded in the fund that earned the interest.

(e) Loans Receivable

The Mayor's Office of Housing (MOH) and the Mayor’s Office of Community Development (MOCD)
administer several housing and small business subsidy programs and issues loans to qualified applicants.
Management has determined through policy that many of these loans may be forgiven or renegotiated
and extended long into the future if certain terms and conditions of the loans are met. At June 30, 2007, it
was determined that $414.5 million of the $478.7 million loan portfolio is not expected to be uitimately
collected.

For the purposes of the fund financial statements, the governmental funds expenditures relating to long-
term loans arising from loan subsidy programs are charged to operations upon funding and the loans are
recorded, net of an estimated allowance for potentially uncollectible loans, with an offset to a deferred
credit account. For purposes of the government-wide financial statements, long-term loans are not offset
by deferred credit accounts.

(f) Inventory

Inventory recorded in the proprietary funds primarily consists of construction materials and maintenance
supplies, as well as pharmaceutical supplies maintained by the hospitals. Generally, proprietary funds
value inventory at cost or average cost and expense supply inventory as it is consumed. This is referred
to as the consumption method of inventory accounting. The governmental fund types also use the
purchase method to account for supply inventories, which are not material. This method records items as
expenditures when they are acquired.

50



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2007

(g) Redevelopment Agency Property Held for Resale

Property held for resale are both residential and commercial and are recorded as an asset at the lower of
estimated cost or estimated conveyance value. Estimated conveyance value is management’s estimate
of net realizable value of a property based on current intended use. Property held for sale may, during
the period it is held by the Agency, generate rental income, which is recognized as it becomes due and is
considered collectible.

(h) Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, faciliies and improvements, machinery and equipment, and
infrastructure assets, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activity columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial individual cost
of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Capital outlay is recorded as
expenditures of the General Fund and other governmental funds and as assets in the government-wide
financial statements to the extent the City’s capitalization threshold is met. Interest incurred during the
construction phase of the capital assets of business-type activities is reflected in the capitalized value of
the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period.
Amortization of assets acquired under capital leases is included in depreciation and amortization.
Facilities and improvements, infrastructure, machinery and equipment, and easements of the primary
government, as well as the component units, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Facilities and Improvements 1510 175
Infrastructure 15t0 70
Machinery and Equipment 2t0 75
Easements 20

Works of art, historicat treasures and zoological animals held for public exhibition, education, or research
in furtherance of public service, rather than financial gain, are not capitalized. These items are protected,
kept unencumbered, cared for and preserved by the City. It is the City’s policy to utilize proceeds from
the sale of these items for the acquisition of other items for collection and display.

(i) Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave Pay

Vacation pay, which may be accumulated up to ten weeks depending on an employee’s length of service,
is payable upon termination.

Sick leave may be accumulated up to six months, except for Local 21 members, who are all entitled to
accumulate all unused sick leave. Unused amounts accumulated prior to December 6, 1978 are vested
and payable upon termination of employment by retirement or disability caused by industrial accident or
death. Effective July 1, 2002, the City established a pilot “Wellness Incentive Program” (the Program) to
promote workforce attendance. The Program was initially negotiated as part of the July 1, 2001 to June
30, 2004 labor contract between the City and forty-one labor organizations, representing about 48% of
the City’s workforce. It is described in several Memorandums of Understanding (MOUs) dated since July
1, 2001, between the City and the affected labor organizations. Under the terms of these MOUs and the
labor contracts, the Program is in effect from July 1, 2002 and begins to sunset by June 30, 2009.

This Program provides:

Effective July 1, 2002, any full-time employee leaving the employment of the City upon service or
disability retirement may receive payment for a portion of sick leave earned but unused at the time of
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separation. The amount of this payment shall be equal to 2.5% of sick leave balances earned but
unused at the time of separation times the number of whole years of continuous employment times
an employee’s salary rate, exclusive of premiums of supplements, at the time of separation. Vested
sick leave hours as described by Civil Service Commission rules, shall not be included in this
computation.

The City accrues for all salary-related items, including the Program, in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements for which they are liable to make a payment directly and
incrementally associated with payments made for compensated absences on termination. The City
includes its share of social security and Medicare payments made on behalf of the employees in the
accrual for vacation and sick leave pay.

(i) Bond Issuance Costs, Premiums, Discounts and Interest Accretion

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund type financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund statement of net assets. San Francisco
International Airport's bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. The remaining bond premiums,
discounts, and issuance costs are calculated using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported
net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges
and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts as other
financing sources and uses, respectively, and bond issuance costs as debt service expenditures.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received are reported as debt
service expenditures.

Interest accreted on capital appreciation bonds is reported as accrued interest payable in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.

(k) Fund Equity
Reservations of Fund Equity

Reservations of fund balances of the governmental funds indicate that portion of fund equity which is not
available for appropriation for expenditure or is legally segregated for a specific future use. Following is a
brief description of the nature of certain reserves.

Reserve for rainy day - The City’s Charter requires that the City set aside funds into a reserve account in
years in which revenue growth exceeds five percent compared to the year before. The City will be able to
spend those funds in years in which revenues decline or grow by less than two percent.

Reserve for assets not available for appropriation - Certain assets, primarily cash and investments
outside City Treasury and deferred charges, do not represent expendable available financial resources.
Therefore, a portion of fund equity is reserved to offset the balance of these assets.

Reserve for debt service - The fund balance of the debt service funds is reserved for the payment of debt
service in the subsequent year.

Reserves for encumbrances - Encumbrances are recorded as reservations of fund balances because
they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. In certain other governmental funds, this accounting
treatment results in a deficit unreserved fund balance. This deficiency is carried forward to the next fiscal
year where it is applied against estimated revenues in the year the commitments are expended.
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Reserve for appropriation carryforward - At the end of the fiscal year, certain budgeted expenditures are
authorized to be carried over and expended in the ensuing year. A reserve of fund balance is established
in the amount of these budget authorizations.

Reserve for subsequent years’ budgets - A portion of fund balance is reserved for subsequent years’
budgets. This balance includes the reserve required by the City's Administrative Code for the budget
incentive program for the purpose of making additional funds available for items and services that will
improve the efficient operations of departments.

Restricted Net Assets

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements utilize a net assets presentation. Net
assets are categorized as invested in capital assets (net of related debt), restricted, and unrestricted.

o Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This category groups all capital assets, including
infrastructure, into one component of net assets. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding
balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of these assets
reduce the balance in this category.

e Restricted Net Assets - This category represents net assets that have external restrictions imposed
by creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. At June 30, 2007, the
government-wide statement of net assets reported restricted assets of $430.8 million in governmental
activities and $349.1 million in business-type activities. For governmental activities, $10.4 million is
restricted by enabling legislation.

e Unrestricted Net Assets - This category represents net assets of the City, not restricted for any project
or other purpose.

Designations of Fund Equity
Designations of fund balances (note 4) indicate that portion of fund balance that is not available for
appropriation based on management’s plans for future use of the funds. Following is a brief description of

the nature of the designation as of June 30, 2007.

Designation for litigation and contingencies - This designation represents management’s estimate of
anticipated legal settiements or contingencies to be paid in the subsequent fiscal year.

Deficit Net Assets/Fund Balances

The Moscone Convention Center Fund had a $4.3 million deficit as of June 30, 2007. The deficit will be
covered as hotel tax revenues are realized.

The Telecommunications and Information Internal Service Fund had a $1.4 million deficit in total net
assets as of June 30, 2007. The deficit of total net assets relates to operations and is expected to be

reduced in future years through anticipated rate increases or reductions in operating expenses. The rates
are reviewed and updated annually.

() Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers are generally recorded as transfers in (out) except for certain types of transactions that
are described below.
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(1) Charges for services are recorded as revenues of the performing fund and expenditures of the
requesting fund. Unbilled costs are recognized as an asset of the performing fund and a liability of
the requesting fund at the end of the fiscal year.

(2) Reimbursements for expenditures, initially made by one fund which are properly applicable to
another fund, are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of
expenditures in the fund that is reimbursed.

(m) Refunding of Debt

Gains or losses occurring from advance refundings, completed subsequent to June 30, 1993, are
deferred and amortized into expense for both business-type activities and proprietary funds. For
governmental activities, they are deferred and amortized into expense if they occurred subsequent to
June 30, 2000.

(n) Cash Flows

Statements of cash flows are presented for proprietary fund types. Cash and cash equivalents include all
unrestricted and restricted highly liquid investments with original purchase maturities of three months or
less. Pooled cash and investments in the City’s Treasury represent monies in a cash management pool
and such accounts are similar in nature to demand deposits.

(o) Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

(p) Reclassifications

Certain amounts presented as 2005-2006 Summarized Comparative Financial Information in the basic
financial statements have been reclassified for comparative purposes to conform to the presentation in
the 2006-2007 basic financial statements.

(q) Effects of New Pronouncements

The City is currently analyzing its accounting practices to determine the potential impact on the financial
statements for the following GASB Statements:

In June 2004, GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which addresses how state and local governments
should account for and report their costs and obligations related to postemployment healthcare and other
nonpension benefits. Collectively, these benefits are commonly referred to as other postemployment
benefits, or OPEB. The statement generally requires that employers account for and report the annual
cost of OPEB and the outstanding obligations and commitments related to OPEB in essentially the same
manner as they currently do for pensions. Annual OPEB cost for most employers will be based on
actuarially determined amounts that, if paid on an ongoing basis, generally would provide sufficient
resources to pay benefits as they come due. This statement’s provisions may be applied prospectively
and do not require governments to fund their OPEB plans. An employer may establish its OPEB liability
at zero as of the beginning of the initial year of implementation; however, the unfunded actuarial liability is
required to be amortized over future periods. This statement also establishes disclosure requirements for
information about the plans in which an employer participates, the funding policy followed, the actuarial
valuation process and assumptions, and, for certain employers, the extent to which the plan has been
funded over time. This statement is effective for the City’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2008.
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In December 2008, GASB issued Statement No. 49 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution
Remediation Obligations. This statement issued a standard that will require state and local governments
to provide the public with better information about the financial impact of environmental cleanups. This
statement is effective for the City’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

(r) Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of the City’s enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for
their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net assets because the use of the
proceeds is limited by applicable bond covenants and resolutions. Restricted assets account for the
principal and interest amounts accumulated to pay debt service, unspent bond proceeds, and amounts
restricted for future capital projects. In addition, certain grant proceeds are restricted by the granting
agency.
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RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet
and the government-wide statement of net assets

Total fund balances of the City’s governmental funds, $1,251,939, differ from net assets of governmental
activities, $1,871,011, reported in the statement of net assets. The difference primarily results from the
long-term economic focus in the statement of net assets versus the current financial resources focus in
the governmental funds balance sheets.

Balance Sheet/Statement of Net Assets (in thousands)

Total Long-term Internal Reclassi- Statement of
Governmental Assets, Service fications and Net Assets
Funds Liabilities (1) Funds (2) Eliminations Totals
Assets
Deposits and investments with City Treasury................ § 1,338,831 $ - 3 11,020 § - § 1,349,860
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury........... 51,743 - 58,127 - 109,870
Receivables, net:
Property taxes and penalties................c.occ e 59,678 - - - 59,678
Other local taxes... 186,183 - - - 186,183
Federal and state grants and subvenhons 161,667 - - - 161,667
Chargesforserwces............................................ 30,596 - - - 30,596
Interest and other... 30,387 - 1,133 - 31,520
Due from other funds 46,759 - - (46,759)
Due from/Advance to component unlt 6,665 - - - 6,665
Loans receivable, net... 64,504 - - - 64,504
Capital assets, net... - 2,895,233 5,536 - 2,900,769
Deferred charges and other assets 9,612 17,165 7,059 - 33,836
Total assets $ 1986625 $ 2912398 § 82884 $§ (46759) $ 4,935148
Liabilities
Accounts payable.... e 8 181575 § - 3 10,077 $ - $ 191,652
Accrued payroll.... 69,122 - 1,773 - 70,895
Accrued vacation and 5|ck Ieave pay... e - 130,374 3,839 - 134,213
Accrued workers' compensatlon..............................., - 193,935 754 - 194,689
Estimated claims payable.... - 114,431 - - 114,431
Accrued interest payable.... - 7,033 1,748 - 8,781
Deferred tax, grant and subventlon revenues.. 67,021 (62,464) - - 4,557
Due to other fundsfinternal balances... 51,235 - 3,663 (46,759) 8,139
Deferred credits and other liabilities... 215,733 (93,865) 1,758 - 123,626
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables 150,000 1,812,858 250,296 - 2,213,154
Total liabilities. .. .........ocoe oo ee e 734,686 2,102,302 273,908 (46,759) 3,064,137
Fund balances/net assets
Total fund balances/net assets................coev e iieieis 1,251,939 810,096 (191,024) - 1,871,011
Total liabilities and fund balances/net assets............ $ 1986625 § 2912398 § 82884 §  (46,759) § 4,935148
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When capital assets (land, infrastructure, buildings, and equipment) that are to be used in
governmental activities are purchased or constructed, the costs of those assets are reported
as expenditures in governmental funds. However, the statement of net assets includes those
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, among the assets of the City as a whole.

Cost Of CaPItAl ASSELS. .. .. o oo oottt et et e e e e e e $ 3,650,276
Accumulated depreCiation. .. ... ... ...t (755,043)
_§ 2895233

Bond issuance costs are expended in governmental funds when paid and are capitalized and

amortized over the life of the corresponding bonds for purposes of the statement of net assets. $ 17,165

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not due and payable in

the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. All liabilities, both current

and long-term, are reported in the statement of net assets.
Accrued vacation and SicK [BaVE PaY...........c.cvieeiee i e et ee v et e se e 9 (130,374)
Accrued WOrkers' COMPENSAtION............ivi it i e e e et et e e et et e e seera e e e (193,935)
Estimated claims payable... (114,431)
Bonds, loans, capital Ieases and other payables (1,812,858)
Deferred credits and other Ilabllltles (1,874)

$ (2,253,472)

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized as an
expenditure when paid. $ (7,033)

Because the focus of governmental funds is on short-term financing, some assets will not
be available to pay for current period expenditures. Those assets (for example, receivables)
are offset by deferred revenues in the governmental funds and thus are not included in fund
balance.

Deferred tax, grant and SUbVention rEVENUE..............o oo it e e $ 62,464
Deferred credits and other abilities. .. ........ooie i e e e 95,739
$ 158,203

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such
as capital lease financing, equipment maintenance, printing and maiting services, and
telecommunications, to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of certain internal service
funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Net deficit before adjustments... (275)
Adjustments for internal balances w1th San Franmsco Flnance Corporatlon
Capital lease receivables from other governmental and enterprise funds........................ (251,197)
Deferred charges and other assets...........c.cooov i e i e 3,671
Deferred credits and other liabilities.............ccooov i 56,777
$  (191,024)

In addition, intrafund receivables and payables among various internal service funds of
$0.1 million are eliminated.
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(b) Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide
statement of activities

The net change in fund balances for governmental funds, ($63,645), differs from the change in net assets
for governmental activities $76,393, reported in the statement of activities. The differences arise primarily
from the long-term economic focus in the statement of activities versus the current financial resources
focus in the governmental funds. The effect of the differences is illustrated below.

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances/Statement of Activities (in thousands)

Total Long-term Capital- Internal Long-term Statement of
Govemmental Revenues/ related Service Debt Activities
Funds Expenses(3) ltems(4) Funds(5) Transactions(6) Totals
Revenues
PrOPEY tAXES.....cecveeerererevrirreenircn i e s $ 1,107,864 $ 19,128 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,126,992
BUSINESS tAXES.......cvev v rerrceircrraer e e e 337,592 - - - - 337,592
Other 10Cal tAXES.......eveereeir e vt sie e e 668,824 - - - - 668,824
Licenses, permits and franchises...... 27428 3,313 - - - 30,741
Fines, forfeitures and penalties..... 8,871 - - - - 8,871
Interest and investment income 83,846 330 - 2,057 - 86,233
Rents and CONCESSIONS..........ocverreeeenevrcniniieee s 52,493 257 - - - 52,750
Intergovernmental:
Federal.......ccccoceviorireie e s 381,688 - - - - 381,688
State. 582,666 1,883 - - - 584,549
Other........... 15,689 - - - - 15,689
Charges for SEMVICES...........c.cveviviivin e 273,057 - - - - 273,057
ONEI TEVBNUES. ... ceeveeeeierecvreeriseve i see e e eneesins e cnines 44,084 - 1,841 - - 45,925
Total FeVENUES.....c.cevvvveerriiiiieie vt 3,684,102 24,911 1,841 2,057 - 3,612,911
Expenditures/Expenses
Expenditures:
Public protection............cocovv i 865,556 3,892 5,022 (4,089) - 870,381
Public works, transportation and commerce.................... 280,907 23,503 15,531 (10,846) - 309,095
Human welfare and neighborhood development... 740,171 10,364 493 - - 751,034
Community health.............eccrerivimi e 509,844 5,560 924 7) - 516,321
Culture and recreation.............o.ecveeveeeeireeeneeeein s 286,135 9,414 25,578 {10,880) (19,700) 290,547
General administration and finance.. 167,505 6,681 12,639 (864) - 185,961
General City responsibifities............coccovvevininiineins 57,532 10,602 - (1,041) 855 67,948
Debt service:
Principal refirement............cooooeiiiinni e 98,169 - - - (98,169) -
Interest and fiscal charges........c.cccoevvecvinciieiciniiiens 71,266 - - 9,565 13,229 94,060
Bond issuance costs...... 3,683 - - - (3,683) -
Capital outfay............. 283,370 - (283,370) - - -
Total expenditures/expenses................ceevvvivricunnas 3,364,138 70,016 (223,177) (18,162) (107,468) 3,085,347
Other financing sources (uses)/ichanges in
net assets
Net transfers (to) from other funds................c.ccccovviieinnnne. (451,549) - (172) 550 - (451,171)
Issuance of bonds and loans:
Face value of bonds iSSUEd.............ccoeeer e 312,955 - - - (312,955) -
Face value of foans issued..... 141 - - - (141) -
Premium on issuance of bonds... 3,521 - - - (3,521) -
Discount on issuance of bonds... (1,856) - - - 1,856 -
Payment to escrow for refunded debt....................cooeie (159,610) - - - 159,610 -
Other financing sources - capital leases................occcovinrn. 12,789 - - (10,007) (2,782) -
Total other financing sources (uses)/changes
M NBEBSSELS. ..vo.vvers e s ssrse e e (283,609) - (172) (9,457) (157,933) (451.171)
Net change fortheyear................ccooooo i $ (63,645 $  (45,105) $ 224846 $ 10,762 $ (50,465) $ 76,393
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Because some property taxes will not be collected for several months after the City's fiscal year ends, they are not
considered as available revenues in the governmental funds.

L2

19,128

Some other revenues that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues in the
governmental funds but are recognized in the statement of activities. 5,783

$ 24911
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and
therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Certain long-term liabilities reported in the prior
year statement of net assets were paid during the current period resulting in expenditures in the govemmental
funds. This is the amount by which the decrease in long-term liabilities exceeded expenses reported in the
statement of activities that do not require the use of current financial resources. $ (39,293)

Some expenditures reported in the governmental funds pertain to the establishment of deferred credits on long-

term loans since the loans are not considered "available" to pay current period expenditures. The deferred credits

are not reported in the statement of net assets and, therefore, the related expenditures are not reported in the

statement of activities. (30,723)
$ (70,016)

When capital assets that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased or constructed, the resources
expended for those assets are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. As a result, fund balance decreases by the amount of financial resources expended, whereas net assets
decrease by the amount of depreciation expense charged for the year, the loss on disposal of capital assets and
capital asset acquired or funded by donation and other revenues.

Capital EXPENAIUIES......... . ettt et e o ettt ee e er e s e s ha e bbb b e e e $ 200,619
Depreaatlonexpense . (67,400)
Lossondlsposalofcapnalassets (42)
Transfer of asset to enterprise fund (172)
Capital asset acquired by donation or funded by other revenues 1,841

DAffEIEICR. .. ... vt e et ee et et et eetae et sae e e aen e $ 224,846

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as capital lease
financing, equipment maintenance, printing and mailing services, and telecommunications, to individual funds.
The adjustments for internal service funds "close" those funds by charging additional amounts to participating
governmental activities to completely cover the internal service funds’ costs for the year. $ 10,762

Lease payments on the Moscone Convention Center (note 8) are reported as a culture and recreation expenditure
in the governmental funds and, thus, have the effect of reducing fund balance because current financial resources
have been used. For the City as a whole, however, the principal payments reduce the liability in the statement of net
assets and do not result in an expense in the statement of activities. The City's capital lease obligation was reduced
because principal payments were made to lessee.

Total property FENt PAYMENES. ........c.eev it ettt o s et e ee s s s eb s s et e $ 19,700

Bond issuance costs are expended in governmental funds when paid, and are capitalized and amortized over the

life of the corresponding bonds for purposes of the statement of activities.
BONG ISSUANCE COBES ... -.eeeeen et ee e et ctt e eet s stbeeeesess seetete s ea sea e sate ee e besere sbeas easbebee e et she e sek sn e ns e beeeeaeeee e enen $ 3,683
Amortization of bond issSuaNCe COStS...........cccoveveriiici i e, (855)

DTN, . oot e et e et e et et e e e e e et oot e et ettt en t ek eer e eaetaetee it tebes eeinne e et et e b st e teeaan st et $ 2,828
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Bond premiums and discounts are expended in the govemmental funds when the bonds are issued, and are
capitalized in the statement of net assets. This is the amount of premiums capitalized during the current period.......................... $ (1,665)

Repayment of bond principal is reported as expenditures in govemmental funds and, thus, have the effect of
reducing fund balance because current financial resources have been used. For the City as a whole, however,
the principal payments reduce the liabilities in the statement of net assets and do not result in expenses in the
statement of activities. The City's bonded debt was reduced because principal payments were made to bond

holders.
Principal payments Made.............c.ccouorrrimorer e $ 98,169
Payments to escrow for refunded debt... ..o 159,610
$ 257,779
Bond and loan proceeds and capital leases are reported as other financing sources in governmental funds and thus
contribute to the change in fund balance. In the goverment-wide statements, however, issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the statement of net assets and do not affect the statement of activities. Proceeds were received from:
General OblIGAtion DONGS... .....ccce it i e e e e (2,000)
Refunding general obligation BONGAS...............ceorriiiiiiiiiii i e (157,255)
Certificate Of PAMCIPALION. .. ... ieeer ettt serer e e et sh s e sr b eeb bbb b ebsen s ses s ehs e bbbkt e (153,700)
Capital Ieas€ fOr EQUIDMENL............iuiiiiiiit it sttt bt e e s e e s (2,782)
(10 141 TOU U O OO POV UUP OO PO P PPP ORI PN (141)
(315,878)
$ (58,009)
Interest expense in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in governmental funds because (1)
additional accrued and accreted interest was calculated for bonds, notes payable and capital leases, (2)
amortization of bond discounts, premiums and refunding losses which are not expended within the fund statements,
and (3) additional interest expense was recognized on the accrual of an arbitrage rebate liability which will not be
recognized in the governmental funds until the liability is due and payable.
Increase in ACCTUBG INEETESE..........ooiiii it s s e $ (574)
Interest payment on capital lease obligations on the Moscone Convention Center.................. (12,357)
Amortization of bond premiums, discounts and refunding [08ses................ccccovoiivieiiriciiii 673
Increase in arbitrage rebate liability.................c.oouioi i (971)
$  (13,229)
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BUDGETARY RESULTS RECONCILED TO RESULTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Budgetary Results Reconciliation

The budgetary process is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis other than generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The results of operations are presented in the budget-to-actual
comparison statement in accordance with the budgetary process (Budget basis) to provide a meaningful
comparison with the budget.

The major differences between the Budget basis “actual” and GAAP basis are timing differences. Timing
differences represent transactions that are accounted for in different periods for Budget basis and GAAP
basis reporting. Certain revenues accrued on a Budget basis have been deferred for GAAP reporting.
These primarily relate to the accounting for property tax revenues under the Teeter Plan (note 6).

The fund balance of the General Fund as of June 30, 2007 on a Budget basis is reconciled to the fund
balance on a GAAP basis as follows (in thousands):

General
Fund
Fund Balance - BUGet BasiS. ..........coocuuiurtuieiie et ieere et iei ittt e e st e s $ 563,435
Unrealized Gains/(LoSSeS) 0N INVESIMENES. ..ottt e (376)
Cumulative Excess Property Tax Revenues Recognized on a Budget Basis...............ccccco oo (30,940)
Repayment from Redevelopment Agency for Jessie Square Garage................ccccccoeeiiin (3,323)
Reserved for Assets Not Available for Appropriation..............ccceveiiiiiiiiii i 12,665
FUNG BAIANGCE = GAAP BaSIS. .. ... eeeneetee et et et e et tee st ete et aeeieeaan s ee et eee see tee cae e ceeeee cee e ae $ 541,461
General Fund Budget basis fund balance at June 30, 2007 is composed of the following (in thousands):

Reserved for Rainy Day - Economic Stabilization Reserve.......................c.on $ 117,556
Reserved for Rainy Day - One-Time Spending Account...........ccoooooiiiiiiiiiiine 16,066
Reserved for ENCUMDBIANCES. .. ... v et ee e e e et ee e eee e e e ra e en e e e s ee enenen e aeas 60,948
Reserved for Appropriation Carryforward................cooiiiiiiii i 161,128
Reserved for Subsequent Years' Budgets:

Baseline Appropriation Funding Mandates..................ccoooooiiii 2,891

Budget Savings Incentive Program...............cccoociiiiii i 10,540

LHIGALION. .. - 6,824

Salaries and benefits costs (MOU).........coooiii e 11,806

Total Reserved Fund Balance...........ooveiiiieiiiie e e $ 387,759

Designated for Litigation and Contingencies..................... 43,794
Unreserved, Undesignated Fund Balance -

Available for Appropriation.............coovveviiir it 131,882

Total Unreserved AMOUNES. ... ..o e e 175,676
Fund Balance, June 30, 2007 - Budgetbasis.....................co $ 563,435

Of the $131.9 million unreserved, undesignated fund balance — available for appropriation, $118.9 million
has been subsequently appropriated as part of the General Fund budget for use in fiscal year 2007-2008.
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(5) DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
(a) Cash, Deposits and Investments Presentation

Total City cash, deposits and investments, at fair value, are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Component
Primary Government Units
Governmental Business-type Fiduciary
Activities Actlivities Funds Total
Deposits and investments with
City Treasury... emen. % 1340860 ' $ 809548 $ 776629 2 $ 2,936,037 $ 1,697
Deposits and lnvestments outS|de
City Treasury... 109,870 2 11,351 17,901,793 18,023,014 234,887
Restricted assets:
Deposits and investments with
City Treasury... - 512,631 - 512,631 -
Deposits and |nvestments outsme
City Treasury... e - 298,139 - 298,139 99,795
Invested secuntles lendmg collateral ...... - - 2,220,679 2,220,679 -
Total deposits and investments............. $ 1,459,730 $ 1,631,669 $ 20,899,101 $ 23,990,500 $ 336,379
Cash and deposits..........cccc.ccovveinene... 3 (116,792) $ 16,524 $ 70,495 $ (29,773) $ 49,233
Investments.........ococe e iiicniiiiii e 1,676,522 1,615,145 20,828,606 24,020,273 287,146
Total deposits and investments............. $ 1,459,730 $ 1,631,669 $ 20,899,101 $ 23,990,500 $ 336,379

1 Includes deposits and investments with the City Treasury of total governmental funds ($1,338,831) and internal service
funds ($11,029).

2 Includes deposits and investments with the City Treasury of pension and other employee benefit trust funds ($70,167),
investment trust fund ($645,568), and agency funds ($60,894).

® Includes deposits and investments outside the City Treasury of total governmental funds ($51,743) and internal service
funds ($58,127).

(b) Cash and Deposits

The City had cash and deposits at June 30, 2007, as follows (in thousands):

Primary Government Component Units
Governmental Business-type Fiduciary
Activities Activities Funds
Carrying Bank Carrying Bank Carrying Bank Carrying Bank
Amount Balance Amount Balance Amount Balance Amount Balance
Cashonhand......c....cccceeevre. § 315 0§ - 0§ 1244 % - % - $ - 8 1 3 -
Federally insured deposits....... 600 600 280 280 100 100 200 200
Collateralized deposits™.......... (118,249) 40,090 160 150 19,608 19,608 49,032 52,751
Uninsured and
uncollateralized.................. 482 482 14,840 14,840 50,787 50,787 - -

$ (116,792) § 41172 § 16524 § 15270 § 70495 § 70495 § 49233 § 52957

* Under the City’s cash management policy, investments are converted to cash as checks are presented for payment. At June 30,
2007, the carrying amount of collateralized deposits has been reduced by the amount of outstanding checks and other distribution
accounts of approximately $161.3 million. Of the $161.3 million of outstanding checks, $42.8 million relates to the San Francisco
Unified School District which has been reflected in an investment trust fund.
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Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, the City will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code, the City’s investment
policy and the Retirement System’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that
would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision. The
California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local
governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated
under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities
in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies.
California law also allows financial institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed
mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. In addition, the City’s investment
policy states that mortgage-backed collateral will not be accepted. As of June 30, 2007, $14.8 million and
$50.8 million of the business-type activities and the Retirement System’s bank balances, respectively,
were exposed to custodial credit risk by not being insured or collateralized.

(c) Investment Policies
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City’s cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments and are considered to be cash
on hand, restricted assets demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three
months or less from the date of acquisition.

Treasurer’s Pool

The City’s investment policy addresses the soundness of financial institutions in which the City will
deposit funds, types of investment instruments as permitted by the California Government Code, and the
percentage of the portfolio which may be invested in certain instruments with longer terms to maturity.
The objectives of the policy, in order of priority, are safety, liquidity, and yield. The City has established a
Treasury Oversight Committee (Oversight Committee), comprised of various City officials and
representatives of agencies with large cash balances, to monitor and review the management of public
funds maintained in the investment pool in accordance with Sections 27130 to 27137 of the California
Government Code. The Treasurer prepares and submits a comprehensive investment report to the
members of the Oversight Committee and the investment pool participants every month. The report
covers the type of investments in the pool, maturity dates, par value, actual cost, and fair value.

Although the California Government Code and the City’s investment policy do not limit the amount of City
funds that may be invested in treasury bills and treasury notes, purchases of treasury bonds are restricted
to a maximum of five percent of the total portfolio at the time of purchase. Further, the California
Government Code does not limit the amount of City funds that may be invested in federal agency
instruments. However, the City’s investment policy requires that investments in federal agencies should
neither exceed 60 percent of the total portfolio at the time of purchase nor have a weighted average
maturity in excess of 270 days. If it exceeds 270 days, the total should not exceed 30 percent of the total
par value of the portfolio. The investment policy also limits each type of agency instrument.

The City’s investment policy also limits the purchase of negotiable certificates of deposit to the five largest
domestic commercial banks that have demonstrated profitability in their most recent audited financial
statements at the time of purchase. In addition, the investment policy requires that public time deposits
be made only at approved financial institutions with at least one full service branch within the
geographical boundaries of the City, and that they yield a minimum of 0.125% higher than equal maturity
U.S. Treasury instruments. The investment policy restricts exposure to $100,000 for all savings
institutions and requires that each deposit be fully guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation. The investment policy also requires that commercial bank deposits be made on a
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competitive basis with risk exposure based on financial statements and related information gathered on
each individual bank.

Also, the California State Government Code requires that the Treasurer purchase only domestic
commercial paper with maturities not to exceed 270 days and that the issuer must be rated in the highest
ranking by at least one of the national rating agencies. However, the Treasurer’s investment policy is
more restrictive in that it requires that the Treasurer purchase only domestic commercial paper with
maturities not to exceed 180 days.

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City, along with the related
interest rate risk and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment in

Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio One Issuer
U.S. Treasury Bills N/A None None
U.S. Treasury Notes N/A None None
U.S. Treasury Bonds N/A 5% None
U.S. Agency Securities N/A 60% None
Commercial Paper Discounts 180 days 40% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Public Time Deposit 1 year None None
Public Demand Accounts N/A None None
Bankers Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Repurchase Agreements 30 days None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 45 days None $75 million

The Treasurer also holds for safekeeping bequests, trust funds, and lease deposits for other City
departments. The bequests and trust funds consist of stocks and debentures. Those instruments are
valued at par, cost, or fair value at the time of donation.

Other Funds

Other funds consist primarily of deposits and investments with trustees related to the issuance of bonds
and to certain loan programs operated by the City. These funds are invested either in accordance with
bond covenants and are pledged for payment of principal, interest, and specified capital improvements or
in accordance with grant agreements and may be restricted for the issuance of loans.

Employees’ Retirement System

The Retirement System’s investments are invested pursuant to investment policy guidelines as
established by the Retirement Board. The objective of the policy is to maximize the expected return of
the fund at an acceptable level of risk. The Retirement Board has established percentage guidelines for
types of investments to ensure the portfolio is diversified.

The investment policy permits investments in domestic and international debt and equity securities; real
estate; and alternative investments, which include investments in a variety of commingled partnership
vehicles.

San Francisco Redevelopment Agency

The investment policy of the Redevelopment Agency is governed by Article 2 of the California
Government Code (Code). Investments are restricted to certain types of instruments and certain of these
instruments are only allowed within limits. The Code permits repurchase agreements, but reverse
repurchase agreements require the prior approval of the Agency Commission. The Agency does not
participate in reverse repurchase agreements or other high-risk investments as defined by the Agency’s
investment policy. It is the Agency’s intention to hold investments until maturity, unless earlier liquidation
would result in an investment gain.
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Certain investments of the Agency are in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). LAIF is sponsored
by the State Treasurer and prepares its market value report detailing the carrying cost and the estimated
fair value for the entire pool. The Agency has used a multiplier provided by LAIF to determine estimated
fair values. In addition, the Agency has investments with trustees. These investments are restricted by
various bond covenants and are pledged for payment of principal, interest and specified capital
improvements.

(d) Investment Risks

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market interest rates. The following schedule indicates the interest rate risk of the City’s
investments as of June 30, 2007 (in thousands). The Employees’ Retirement System’s interest rate risk

information begins on page 68.
Investment Maturities
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Less than 1to b 5to More than
Fair Value 1 year years 10 years 10 years
Primary Government:
investments in City Treasury:
U.S. Treasury Bills $ 24,405 24,405 - $ - $ -
U.S. Treasury Notes 613,042 538,420 74,622 - -
U.S. Agencies - Discount 1,915,967 1,915,967 - - -
Commercial paper 591,942 591,942 - - -
Negotiable certificates of deposits 379,879 379,879 - - -
Public time deposits 48,494 48,494 - - -
Less: Treasure Island Development Authority
Investments with City Treasury (1,697) (1,697) - - -
Subtotal investments in City Treasury 3,572,032 3,497,410 74,622 $ - $ -
Investments Outside City Treasury:
(Governmental and Business-Type)
U.S. Treasury Notes 1,933 - 1,933 $ - $ -
U.S. Treasury Bills 13,906 13,906 - - -
U.S. Agencies - Coupon 17,905 5,484 12,421 - -
U.S. Agencies - Discount 210,303 210,303 - - -
Money market mutual funds 150,800 155,068 - - -
Equity securities 780 780 - - -
Commercial paper 756 756 - - -
Subtotal investments outside City Treasury 396,383 386,297 14,354 $ - $ -
Employees' Retirement System investments 20,051,858
Total Primary Government 24,020,273
Component Units:
Redevelopment Agency:
U.S. Agencies - Coupon 73,831 43,245 30,586 $ - $ -
U.S. Agencies - Discount 15,743 15,743 - - -
Bankers' acceptances 12,591 12,591 - - -
Commercial paper 8,527 8,527 - - -
Certificate of deposit 5,000 5,000 - - -
Repurchase agreements 1,047 1,047 - - -
State Local Agency Investment Fund 62,994 62,994 - - -
Money market mutual funds 55,637 55,637 - - -
Guaranteed investment contracts 50,079 - 27,282 - 22,797
Subtotal Redevelopment Agency 285,449 204,784 57,868 $ - $ 22,797
Treasure Island Development Authority:
Investments with City Treasury 1,697 1,697 - $ - $ -
Subtotal Treasure I1sland Development Authority 1,697 1,697 - $ - $ -
Total Component Units 287,146
Total Investments $ 24,307,419
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One of the ways that the Treasurer manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a
combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that
a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide
the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. All security transactions including collateral for
repurchase agreements, entered into by the Treasurer are conducted on a deliver-versus-payment basis
pursuant to approved custodial safekeeping agreements. Securities are held by a third party custodian
designated by the Treasurer and evidenced by safekeeping receipts.

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the Agency’s
investment policy limits investments to securities with short maturities, such as the following:

e The maximum maturity of commercial paper is 180 days. Investment in commercial paper will
comprise not more than 30% of the Agency’s portfolio if average maturity is no more than 31
days or 15% if average maturity is more than 31 days.

e The maximum maturity of corporate notes is five years. Investment in corporate notes may not
exceed 15% of the Agency’s portfolio.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization.

Presented below is the minimum rating required by the California Government Code and the City’s
investment policy and the actual rating as of June 30, 2007 for each investment type in the City’s

Treasury.

Standard & Total
Minimum Legal Poor’s Investment

Investment Type Rating Rating Portfolio
U.S. Treasury Bills N/A A-1 1%
U.S. Treasury Notes N/A A-1 17%
U.S. Agencies N/A A-1 53%
Commercial Paper A-1 A-1 17%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposits N/A A-1 12%

As a means of limiting its exposure to credit risk, the Agency’s investment policy limits investments to
high-quality securities with an investment grade of A or better, and maintaining a portfolio diversified by

type and issuer.

Total
Credit Investment

Investment Type Ratings Portfolio
U.S. Agencies - Coupon AAA 26%
U.S. Agencies - Discount AAA 5%
Commercial paper A-1/P-1+ 3%
State Local Agency Investment Fund Not rated 22%
Money market mutual funds AAAmM 20%
Guaranteed investment contracts AA or Higher 18%
Bankers acceptances Notrated 4%
Certificates of deposit N/A 2%

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a
transaction, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are
in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the City’s investment policy do
not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for
investments; however, it is the practice of the City Treasurer that all investments are insured, registered
or held by the Treasurer’s custodial agent in the City’s name.

The Agency does not have a formal investment policy for custodial credit risk for investments. As of June
30, 2007, $1 million of the Agency’s investments are uninsured and unregistered.
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Concentration of Credit Risk

The City diversifies its portfolio by limiting the percentage of the portfolio that can be invested in any one
issuer's name. U.S. Treasury and Agency securities are not subject to single issuer limitation. More than
5 percent of the City’s investments with the City Treasurer are in the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation, Federal Home Loan Bank, and the Federal National Mortgage Association. These
investments represent 19 percent, 15 percent, and 19 percent, respectively, of the City's investments in
U.S. Agencies. The City’s investments in commercial paper are with Bank of America, JP Morgan Chase
& Co., and Union Bank, with Bank of America representing 10 percent of the total 17 percent investment
in commercial paper. The City’s investments in negotiable certificates of deposit are all with Bank of
America.

In addition, 52 percent of Airport's investments with its trustees are in Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation and 43 percent in Federal National Mortgage Association. The Finance Corporation’s
investments with its trustee are held in Federal National Mortgage Association for 83 percent and in
Federal Home Loan Bank for 17 percent.

(e) Treasurer’s Pool

The following represents a condensed statement of net assets and changes in net assets for the
Treasurer’s Pool as of June 30, 2007 (in thousands):

Statement of Net Assets

Net assets held in trust for all pool participants... ...... $ 3,450,364

Equity of internal pool participants... ... ... ... ... ... ... 2,804,181

Equity of external pool participants... ... ... ... ...... ... 646,183
TOtal @QUILY ... coe it ce e e et e e e e $ 3,450,364

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Net assets at July 1, 2006... ... .co v v veiien i cae s oo e $ 3,591,164

Net change in investments by pool participants... ... ... (140,800)
Net assets atJune 30, 2007 .......co et ces ceeevn e o $ 3,450,364

The following provides a summary of key investment information for the Treasurer’s Pool as of June 30,
2007 (in thousands):

Carrying
Types of Investment Rates Maturities Par Value Value
U.S. government securities... ............ 2.75% - 5.07% 08/15/07-12/31/08 $ 640,000 $ 637,446
Federal agencies.........c...ccoceoiee e ien e 4.79% - 5.25% 07/02/07-03/31/08 1,979,000 1,915,967
Negotiable certificate of deposits........ 5.24% - 5.32% 08/23/07-12/28/07 380,000 379,879
Commercial paper.........coo oo i iii e ons 5.08% -5.31% 07/02/07-10/09/07 603,000 591,942
Public time deposits......... ... oo oin 4.50% -5.63% 07/16/06-06/07/08 50,200 48,495
$ 3,652,200 3,673,729
Carrying amount of deposits in Treasurer's Pool.................... . (123,365)
Total cash and investments in Treasurer's POOL........ ... e $ 3,450,364
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()  Retirement System Investments
The Retirement System’s investments as of June 30, 2007 are summarized as follows (in thousands):

Fixed Income Investments:

Short-term bills and notes $ 1,522,713
Debt securities:
U.S. Government and agencies 2,021,509
U.S. Corporate 1,861,859
International government 110,243
International corporate 165,235
Subtotal debt securities 4,158,846
Total fixed income investments 5,681,559
Equity securities:
Domestic 4,958,204
International 3,877,612
Total equity securities 8,835,816
Real estate holdings 1,698,685
Venture capital 1,604,653
Foreign currency contracts, net 10,466
Investment in lending agent's short-term investment pool 2,220,679
Total Retirement System Investments $ 20,051,858
Interest Rate Risk

The Retirement System does not have a specific policy to manage interest rate risk, but requires
investment managers to diversify by issue, maturity, sector, coupon and geography. Investment
managers retained by the Retirement System follow specific investment guidelines and are evaluated
against specific market benchmarks that represent their investment style. Any exemption from general
guidelines requires approval from the Retirement Board.

Below is a table depicting the segmented time distribution for fixed income investments based upon the
expected maturity (in years) as of June 30, 2007 (in thousands):

Less than
Investment Type Fair Value 1 year 1-6 years 6-10 years 10+ years
Asset Backed Securities $ 100,973 $ - $ 47,195 $ 7,301 $ 46,477
Commercial Mortgage-Backed Securities 521,581 - 24,594 73,918 423,069
Corporate Bonds 532,746 32,898 160,762 212,501 126,585
Corporate Convertible Bonds 209,433 600 38,038 12,294 158,501
Government Agencies 184,844 - 21,036 62,507 101,301
Government Bonds 821,545 5,871 485,581 176,048 154,045
Government Mortgage-Backed Securities 234,650 - - 3,225 231,425
Index Linked Government Bonds 42,448 - 3,920 14,219 24,309
Loans 95,838 - 53,612 42,226 -
Mortgages 175 - - 175 -
Municipal/Provincial Bonds 13,515 - 5,233 8,282 -
Non-Government Backed Collateralized
Mortgage Obligations 156,122 2,597 6,147 2,175 145,203
Short-term Bills and Notes 8,167 8,167 - - -
Total $ 2922037 $ 50133 $ 846118 $ 614871 $ 1,410,915
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Credit Risk

During the year ended June 30, 2007, the Retirement Board approved a change to investment credit risk
from 10% to 5% exposure in any single security; the fixed income investment managers are limited within
their portfolios to no more than 5% exposure in any single security, with the exception of United States
Treasury and government agencies. The following table illustrates the Retirement System’s exposure to
credit risk excluding obligations of the U.S. government and those explicitly guaranteed by the U.S.
government as of June 30, 2007 (amounts in thousands):

Investment Type Fair Value AAA AA A BBB BB B C Not Rated
Asset Backed Securities $ 100973 § 51581 § - 8 - § 3760 $ 6131 $ 728§ - 8 38,773
Commercial Mortgage-Backed 521,581 104,944 - 19,629 32,609 21,290 767 342,342
Corporate Bonds 1,102,452 3,812 4,528 45,768 108,525 70,525 124,111 37,823 707,360
Corporate Convertible Bonds 209,433 - 4,610 26,320 35,743 23,239 12,833 3,666 103,022
Government Agencies 184,844 178,340 3,120 3,384 - - - - -
Government Bonds 94,777 20,833 - 6,985 18,674 13,329 3,200 470 31,286
Government Mortgage-Backed

Securities 1,069,400 - 1,068,400
Index Linked Government Bonds 391 3,911 - - - - - - -
Mortgages 175 - - - - - - - 175
Municipal/Provincial Bonds 13,515 5,615 7,900 - - - - - -
Loans 95,838 - - - - - - - 95,838
Unit Trust Bonds 43,987 - - - - - - - 43,987

Non-Government Backed
Collateralized Mortgage

Obligations 156,120 31,025 1,787 18,158 3,519 5,735 2,223 - 93,673

Other Fixed Income -Commingled

Funds 68,844 - - - - - - - 68,844

Short-term bills and notes 8,167 - - - - - - - 8,167
Total $ 3674017 § 400061 $ 21945 $ 100615 § 189850 § 151,568 § 164,385 § 42,726 § 2,602,867

The ratings are the lower of the ratings by Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s) and Standard & Poor’s
(S&P). Investments not rated by either Moody’s or S&P are shown as not rated in the above table.

Custodial Credit Risk

The Retirement System does not have a specific policy addressing custodial credit risk for investments,
but it is the practice of the Retirement System that all investments are insured, registered, or held by the
Retirement System or its agent in the Retirement System’s name. As of June 30, 2007, $54.4 million of
the Retirement System’s investments were exposed to custodial credit risk because they were not insured
or registered in the name of the Retirement System, and were held by the counterparty’s trust department
or agent but not in the Retirement System’s name.

Cash received as securities lending collateral is invested in a securities lending collateral investment pool
and is not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in foreign exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value
of investments. As of June 30, 2007, the Retirement System was subjected to foreign currency risk. To
mitigate this risk, the Retirement System’s investment policy allows international managers to enter into
foreign currency exchange contracts limited to hedging currency exposure existing in the portfolio. The
Retirement System’s exposure to foreign currency risk derives from its positions in foreign currency
denominated international equity and fixed income investments. The Retirement System’s net exposure
to foreign currency risk for fiscal year 2006-2007 is as follows (in thousands):
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Fixed Venture

Currency Cash Equity Income Capital Swaps Total
Argentine peso $ - 8 - 8 1436 $ - 8 - 8 1,436
Australian dollar 272,390 137,105 5,554 - - 415,049
Brazilian real 7.611 30,569 4,939 - 17,488 60,607
British pound sterling (13,437) 577,218 16,129 2,267 2,286 584,463
Canadian dollar 170,834 107,178 2,241 - - 280,253
Chilean peso 5,548 - - - - 5,548
Chinese yuan renminbi 105,296 - - - - 105,296
Columbian peso 7,421 - - - - 7,421
Czech koruna 11,584 15,705 - - - 27,289
Danish krone 1,436 21,330 - - - 22,766
Egyptian pound (82) 12,322 - - 2,740 14,980
Euro currency (293,615) 1,111,568 13,929 161,548 - 993,430
Hong Kong dollar (33,996) 138,602 - - - 104,606
Hungarian forint 7,018 24,798 4,568 - - 36,384
Iceland krona 9,646 - - - - 9,646
Indian rupee 10,216 - 2,199 - - 12,415
Indonesian rupiah 1,895 3,189 1,413 - - 6,497
Japanese yen (105,818) 591,855 7,557 20,993 - 514,587
Kuwaiti dinar 1,098 - - - - 1,098
Malaysian ringgit 8,826 22,210 3,393 - 2,329 36,758
Mexican peso 29,018 23,334 14,932 - - 67,284
New Israeli shekel 1,830 7,141 - - - 8,971
New Taiwan dollar 20,149 766 - - - 20,915
New Zealand dollar (55,497) 2,709 3,911 - - (48,877)
Nigerian naira - - - - 549 549
Norwegian krone 118,027 33,805 - - - 151,832
Peruvian nuevo sol 601 - - - - 601
Philippine peso 4,546 989 - - - 5,535
Polish zloty 16,372 22,913 - - - 39,285
Russian ruble (new) 24,143 - 2,864 - 2,599 29,606
Singapore dollar 29,683 41,729 - - - 71,412
Slovak koruna 6,340 - - - - 6,340
South African rand 11,947 30,960 - - - 42,907
South Korean won 7,416 132,917 - - - 140,333
Swedish krona 43,509 75,880 1,151 - - 120,540
Swiss franc 65,301 208,111 - - - 273,412
Thai baht - 15,154 - - - 15,154
Turkish lira 2,217 18,307 3,078 - 7,943 31,545

Total $ 499473 § 3,408,364 $ 89,294 $ 184,808 $ 35,934 $ 4,217,873

Investments in forward currency contract investments are commitments to purchase or sell stated
amounts of foreign currency. Changes in market value of open contracts are immediately recognized as
gains or losses. The fair values of forward currency contracts are determined by quoted currency prices
from national exchanges. As of June 30, 2007, the fair value of open contracts is summarized as follows

(in thousands):

Purchase contracts
Sales contracts

Net fair value
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The Retirement System utilized these contracts to hedge (or decrease) the currency risk of foreign
investments, to increase investment exposure in foreign currencies beyond the amounts reported as
international investment securities, or to settle trades. Additionally, contracts may be used to effectively
cancel previous contracts. The impact on market risk of these contracts can be summarized as follows
(in thousands):

Contracts used to hedge or to settle trades, net $ (1,958,748)

Contracts used to increase investment exposure in a
foreign currency or to settle trades, net 1,969,214
Net fair value $ 10,466

Securities Lending

The Retirement System lends U.S. government obligations, domestic and international bonds, and
equities to various brokers with a simultaneous agreement to return collateral for the same securities plus
a fee in the future. The securities lending agent manages the securities lending program and receives
securities and cash as collateral. Collateral cash is pledged at 102% and securities at 105% of the fair
market value of domestic securities and non-domestic securities lent. There are no restrictions on the
amount of securities that can be lent at one time. The term to maturity of the loaned securities is
generally not matched with the term to maturity of the investment of the said collateral.

The Retirement System lent $2.6 billion in securities and received collateral of $0.4 billion and $2.2 billion
in securities and cash, respectively, from borrowers. The Retirement System’s securities lending
transactions as of June 30, 2007, are summarized in the following table (in thousands):

Fair Value of Fair Value of
Loaned Cash Non-Cash
Security Type Securities Collateral Collateral
Securities Loaned for Cash Collateral:
International Equities $ 597,707 $ 626,777 $ -
International Government Fixed 5,147 5,421 -
U.S. Agencies 211,666 215,666 -
U.S. Corporate Fixed 163,124 166,855 -
U.S. Equities 671,152 687,093 -
U.S. Government Fixed 508,822 518,867 -
Securities Loaned with Non-Cash Collateral:
International Equities 303,724 - 319,819
International Government Fixed 33,971 - 35,688
International UK Gilt 991 - 1,046
U.S. Corporate Fixed 7,119 - 7,246
U.S. Equities 61,134 - 62,851
U.S. Government Fixed 12,008 - 12,263
Total $ 2576565 $ 2,220,679 $ 439,013

The Retirement System does not have the ability to pledge or sell collateral securities unless a borrower
defaults. As of June 30, 2007, the Retirement System has no credit risk exposure to borrowers because
the amounts the Retirement System owes them exceed the amounts they owe the Retirement System.
As with other extensions of credit, the Retirement System may bear the risk of delay in recovery or of
rights in the collateral should the borrower of securities fail financially. In addition, the lending agent
indemnifies the Retirement System against all borrower defaults.
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(9) Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing, capital and financing activities

San Francisco International Airport

In November 2006, the San Francisco International Airport (SFQ) issued Second Series Revenue
Refunding Bonds Issue 32 F/G/H. The $453 million were issued as fixed rate bonds and the proceeds
were used to refund certain revenue bonds previously issued.

San Francisco Water Enterprise

During fiscal year 2006-2007, the Water Enterprise issued 2006 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
C in the amount of $48.7 million for the purpose of refunding a portion of the outstanding 1996 Series A
Bonds maturing on and after November 2007.

Other Non-Cash Transactions

The following represents the other non-cash transactions as of June 30, 2007 (in thousands):

San General
San Francisco Francisco  Hetch Hetchy Hospital San Francisco Internal
International Water Water Medical Wastewater Port of San Service Total
Airport Enterprise & Power Center Enterprise Francisco Funds 2007
Donated iINVEMHOrY......c.coveeveveier s $ - 8 -8 -8 1890 § -8 -8 - § 1,890
Tenant Improvements..........c..cocoeniiiene - - - 589 - 589
Acquisition of capital assets on accounts
payable and capital leases....................... 16,578 29,071 5,122 786 4,090 920 4,399 60,966
Land acquired through real property
EXChANGE.......c.iveeriee vt s - 354 - - - - - 354
Total 3 16578 § 29425 § 5122 § 2676 § 4090 § 1509 § 4399 § 63,799
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PROPERTY TAXES

The City is responsible for assessing, collecting and distributing property taxes in accordance with
enabling state law. Property taxes are levied on both real and personal property. Liens for secured
property taxes attach on January 1% preceding the fiscal year for which taxes are levied. Secured
property taxes are levied on the first business day of September and are payable in two equal
installments: the first is due on November 1% and delinquent with penalties after December 10™; the
second is due February 1% and delinquent with penalties after April 10™. Secured property taxes that are
delinquent and unpaid as of June 30" are subject to redemption penalties, costs, and interest when paid.
If not paid at the end of five years, the property may be sold at public auction and the proceeds used to
pay delinquent amounts due. Any excess is remitted, if claimed, to the taxpayer. Unsecured personal
property taxes do not represent a lien on real property. Those taxes are due on January 1% and become
delinquent with penalties after August 31%. Supplemental property tax assessments associated with
changes in the assessed valuation due to transfer of ownership in property or upon completion of new
construction are levied in two equal installments and have variable due dates based on the dates of the
underlying transaction.

Since the passage of California’s Proposition 13, beginning with fiscal year 1978-1979, general property
taxes are based either on a flat 1% rate applied to the adjusted 1975-1976 value of the property or on 1%
of the sales price of the property on sales transactions or construction value added after the 1975-1976
valuation. Taxable values on properties (exclusive of increases related to sales and construction) can
rise or be adjusted at the lesser of 2% per year or inflation.

The Proposition 13 limitations on general property taxes do not limit taxes levied to pay the interest and
redemption charges on any indebtedness approved by the voters prior to June 6, 1978 (the date of
passage of Proposition 13). Proposition 13 was amended in 1986 to allow property taxes in excess of the
1% tax rate limit to fund general obligation bond debt service when such bonds are approved by two-
thirds of the local voters. In 2000, California voters approved Proposition 39 which set the approval
threshold at 55% for school facilities-related bonds. These “override” taxes for debt service amounted to
approximately $122 million for the year ended June 30, 2007.

Taxable valuation for the year ended June 30, 2007 (net of non-reimbursable exemptions, reimbursable
exemptions, and tax increment allocations to the Redevelopment Agency) was approximately $117
billion, an increase of 9.5%. The secured tax rate was $1.135 per $100 of assessed valuation. After
adjusting for a State mandated property tax shift to schools, the tax rate is comprised of: $0.65 for general
government, $0.35 for other taxing entities including the San Francisco Unified School District, San
Francisco Community College District, the Bay Area Air Quality Management District and the Bay Area
Rapid Transit District, and also $0.135 for bond debt service. Delinquencies in the current year on
secured taxes and unsecured taxes amounted to 2.44% and 3.57%, respectively, of the current year tax
levy, for an average delinquency rate of 2.52% of the current year tax levy.

As established by the Teeter Plan, the Controller allocates to the City and other agencies 100% of the
secured property taxes billed but not yet collected by the County; in return, as the delinquent property
taxes and associated penalties and interest are collected, the County retains such tax amounts in the
Agency Fund. To the extent the Agency Fund balances are higher than required, transfers may be made
to benefit the City’s General Fund on a budgetary basis. The balance of the tax loss reserve, as of June
30, 2007 was $13.2 million, which is included in the Agency Fund for reporting purposes. The City has
funded payment of accrued and current delinquencies, together with the required reserve, from interfund
borrowing.
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Capital asset activity of the primary government for the year ended June 30, 2007, was as follows (in

thousands):

Governmental Activities:

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2006 Incr Decr 2007
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
(011 SO S USSP OPPIR $ 143640 $ 8,291 $ (14) $ 151,917
Construction in Progress.........coeevvrviiveiniuninineanes 360,887 155,463 (190,522) 325,828
Total capital assets, not being depreciated........ 504,527 163,754 (190,536) 477,745
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements............ccocoeiiiininnns 2,364,110 268,947 (307) 2,632,750
Machinery and equipment..............ooooeveiniienininns 275,424 25,301 (3,050) 297,675
INfrastruCtUre. .. ...ouveieiiii e s eranec s 255,260 27,541 - 282,801
Property held under lease.....................cooeil 139 - - 139
Total capital assets, being depreciated............. 2,894,933 321,789 (3,357) 3,213,365
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements............ccceveeviennnecennns 479,158 45,428 (135) 524,451
Machinery and equipment............c.ooeovviiiniiniiinnn. 230,642 16,496 (3,009) 244,129
INFrastrUCtUIE. ... et ce e e e e 14,659 6,963 - 21,622
Property held under lease..............cccccoeeeeiinne. 139 - - 139
Total accumulated depreciation....................... 724,598 68,887 (3,144) 790,341
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net............ 2,170,335 252,902 (213) 2,423,024
Governmental activities capital assets, net........ $ 2,674,862 $ 416,656 $ (190,749) § 2,900,769

Business-type Activities:

Capital asset activity of the business enterprises for the year ended June 30, 2007, was as

thousands):

San Francisco International Airport

follows (in

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2006 Incr Decr 2007
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
[ T O PP UR $ 2316 $ - - 3 2,316
Construction in progress.........ccooevveeiviiiiiiiiinnnns 68,190 106,009 (105,584) 68,615
Total capital assets, not being depreciated.......... 70,506 106,009 (105,584) 70,931
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements................c.cccoeiee 4,817,171 103,743 (685) 4,920,229
Machinery and equipment.... 68,628 3,084 (8,473) 63,239
EQSEMEeNTS....cooetiiiiiiieiiit it e e e 139,367 - - 139,367
Total capital assets, being depreciated.............. 5,025,166 106,827 (9,158) 5,122,835
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements..................cc..ooL 1,297,599 133,754 (458) 1,430,895
Machinery and equipment.....................n 61,293 2,098 (8,425) 54,966
EasementS. ...t e 60,009 6,955 - 66,964
Total accumulated depreciation........................ 1,418,901 142,807 (8,883) 1,652,825
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net.............. 3,606,265 (35,980) (275) 3,570,010
Capital assets, net..........ccooecvivieciiin. 8 3,676,771 $ 70,029 $ (105,859) $ 3,640,941
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San Francisco Water Enterprise

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2006 Increases Decreases 2007
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land. ..o e $ 17929 § 354 § e $ 18277
Construction in progress............ccoevevveeeiever e 199,655 216,788 (105,345) 311,098
Total capital assets, not being depreciated.......... 217,584 217,142 (105,351) 329,375
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements.............c..ccceccveneenne. 1,074,491 92,636 (1,054) 1,166,073
Machinery and equipment...............c..oien 116,893 5,977 (286) 122,584
Total capital assets, being depreciated............... 1,191,384 98,613 (1,340) 1,288,657
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements.............cccccovceeeeeneene 424,816 35,218 (1,053) 458,981
Machinery and equipment.............ccoo e ieevie e, 76,398 8,677 (279) 84,796
Total accumulated depreciation........................ 501,214 43,895 (1,332) 543,777
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net.............. 690,170 54,718 (8) 744,880
Capital assets, net...........ccceeeieniiniii $ 907754 $ 271,860 $ (105359) § 1,074,255

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2006 Increases Decreases 2007
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
LaNG... ..ot ettt e e et $ 4215  § - 8 - 8 4,215
Construction in progress...........c.ccecevvireveeneernees 53,630 23,536 (18,041) 59,125
Total capital assets, not being depreciated.......... 57,845 23,536 (18,041) 63,340
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements..............c.ccooeeeeeeeennn. 452,785 11,872 - 464,657
Machinery and equipment................cccc e 40,563 2,307 (108) 42,764
Total capital assets, being depreciated............... 493,348 14,179 (108) 507,421
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements............c..cccocvnvenee e 252,313 9,285 - 261,598
Machinery and equipment...............coc e 28,807 1,634 (98) 30,343
Total accumulated depreciation........................ 281,120 10,919 (98) 291,941
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net.............. 212,228 3,260 (8) 215,480
Capital assets, Net.............cccevvevieirvinisiie s $ 270073 $ 26796 $ (18,049) $ 278,820
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Municipal Transportation Agency

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Facilities and improvements.............cccccoeeieinnnnne
Machinery and equipment...............ccooociiininn
Infrastructure............ooooevieiei i

Total capital assets, being depreciated...............

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Facilities and improvements..........c..ccccceeiiinnne
Machinery and equipment..............ccccooiinniinn
INfrastrUCtUNE. ... ..o

Total accumulated depreciation........................
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net..............

Capital assets, net..............ocoeiiin e

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,

2006 Increases Decreases 2007
$ 26,245 $ - % - % 26,245
461,214 161,649 (325,427) 297,436
487,459 161,649 (325,427) 323,681
387,423 18,910 517) 405,816
1,081,264 28,158 (10,102) 1,099,320
719,066 284,128 - 1,003,194
2,187,753 331,196 (10,619) 2,508,330
161,796 8,890 - 170,686
368,952 61,158 (8,917) 421,193
254,589 22,876 - 277,465
785,337 92,924 (8,917) 869,344
1,402,416 238,272 (1,702) 1,638,986
$ 1889875 § 399,921 § (327,129) $ 1,862,667

San Francisco General Hospital Medical Center

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements..................cooveeiie e
Machinery and equipment...............ccocceeiin

Total capital assets, being depreciated...............

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements..................ccccceeieennne
Machinery and equipment....................co

Total accumulated depreciation........................
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net..............

Capital assets, net.............ooooieie i

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2006 Increases Decreases 2007
$ 542 $ - 3 - 8 542
4,429 8,473 (7,182) 5,720
4,971 8,473 (7,182) 6,262
130,798 3,361 - 134,159
51,674 2,443 - 54,117
182,472 5,804 - 188,276
91,422 3,787 - 95,209
42,052 3,045 - 45,097
133,474 6,832 - 140,306
48,998 (1,028) - 47,970
$ 53969 $ 7445 $ (7,182) $ 54,232
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San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Facilities and improvements........................
Machinery and equipment...........................

Total capital assets, being depreciated......

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Facilities and improvements..............c.c..ccee.
Machinery and equipment............................

Total accumulated depreciation.................
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net..............

Capital assets, net............cccceeeiiiinn

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Facilities and improvements..........................
Machinery and equipment.................c...ee.

Total capital assets, being depreciated.......

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Facilities and improvements.................c..c.....
Machinery and equipment..................c...oee

Total accumulated depreciation................
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net......

Capital assets, net..................coove

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2006 Increases Decreases 2007
........ $ 22,168 - 8 - $ 22,168
....... 56,796 57,549 (71,489) 42,856
78,964 57,549 (71,489) 65,024
........ 1,957,165 61,777 - 2,018,942
........ 34,776 11,490 (42) 46,224
......... 1,991,941 73,267 (42) 2,065,166
........ 735,503 34,940 - 770,443
........ 22,575 1,743 (41) 24,277
........ 758,078 36,683 (41) 794,720
1,233,863 36,584 1) 1,270,446
........ $ 1,312,827 94,133 $ (71,490) $ 1,335,470
Port of San Francisco
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2006 Increases Decreases 2007

........ $ 120,454 591 §$ - § 121,045
....... 35,911 11,474 (13,423) 33,962
156,365 12,065 (13,423) 155,007
....... 282,503 13,107 - 295,610
........ 14,359 741 (185) 14,915
......... 296,862 13,848 (185) 310,525
....... 173,900 9,239 - 183,139
........ 9,203 1,013 (185) 10,031
........ 183,103 10,252 (185) 193,170
........ 113,759 3,596 - 117,355
........ $ 270,124 15661 $ (13,423) $ 272,362
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Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements......................coee

Machinery and equipment.............ccocociiiie
Property held under lease................ccccco i

Total capital assets, being depreciated..........

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements...............cccooe e

Machinery and equipment...........c.ccooiiin

Property held under lease...............c.cccceevenn

Laguna Honda Hospital

Total accumulated depreciation........................

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net.........

Capital assets, net............cooeveiiiiiiinnns

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements...................c.eeeil
Machinery and equipment..................ccoce

Total capital assets, being depreciated...............

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Facilities and improvements..............cc.cooeveevenenn

Machinery and equipment........................o

Total accumulated depreciation....................

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net.........

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2006 Increases Decreases 2007
..... $ 914 - $ - $ 914
133,827 102,050 - 235,877
134,741 102,050 - 236,791
28,107 - - 28,107
13,129 409 - 13,538
2,845 - - 2,845
..... 44,081 409 - 44 490
- 23,550 727 - 24,277
12,201 245 - 12,446
238 123 - 361
35,989 1,095 - 37,084
..... 8,092 (686) - 7,406
..... $ 142,833 101,364 § - 244197
Other Fund — San Francisco Market Corporation
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2006 Increases Decreases 2007

T 9,595 43 3 - 3 9,638
55 1 - 56
9,650 44 - 9,694
4,808 273 - 5,081
14 9 - 23
4,822 282 - 5,104
..... 4,828 (238) - 4,590
e $ 4,828 (238) $ - $ 4,590

Capital assets, net............ccccoovvcenn e,
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Total Business-type Activities

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2006 Increases* Decreases® 2007
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land......oooei e e $ 194783 § 945 § 6) $ 195722
Construction in progress.............cccooeeevrennverieees 1,013,652 687,528 (646,491) 1,054,689
Total capital assets, not being depreciated.......... 1,208,435 688,473 (646,497) 1,250,411
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements..................ccc oo eeenenas 9,140,038 305,449 (2,256) 9,443,231
Machinery and equipment................ccccoveiin 1,421,341 54,610 (19,194) 1,456,757
INfrastruCRUE.......oovvr e e v 719,066 284,128 - 1,003,194
Property held underlease.............c.cocoviiniiinnnn 2,845 - - 2,845
Easements.........ccooveeiiieier e 139,367 - - 139,367
Total capital assets, being depreciated............... 11,422,657 644,187 (21,450) 12,045,394
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements.............cc.ce e 3,165,707 236,113 (1,511) 3,400,309
Machinery and equipment.............ccccccv i 621,495 79,622 (17,945) 683,172
Infrastructure.............covreieniiice i e 254,589 22,876 - 277,465
Property held underlease...............cccoeviiiiniins 238 123 - 361
EaSemMENtS.......covvvieieeieee e e e e e 60,009 6,955 - 66,964
Total accumulated depreciation........................ 4,102,038 345,689 (19,456) 4,428,271
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net.............. 7,320,619 298,498 (1,994) 7,617,123
Capital assets, net.............cccooeiiieiniine $ 8529054 § 986971 § (648491) § 8,867,534

* The increases and decreases include transfers of categories of capital assets from properties held under
lease to facilities and improvements.

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows (in
thousands):
Governmental activities

PUDIIC ProteCtion. ..........oiveieriii e e $ 9,458
Public works, transportation, and commerce......... 12,611
Human welfare and neighborhood development 503
Community health..............oooiiii i s 948
Culture and recreation.............cc.covvriiiiiiiiii i 27,605
General administration and finance.............cccco.coie 16,275
Capital assets held by the City's internal service funds
charged to the various functions on a prorated basis........... 1,487
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 68,887
Business-type activities:
AITPOR. ..o e e e s 142,807
WaALEE... .ot e e et 43,895
POWET.....o e 10,919
Transportation..........ccocevieiieriiiir e 92,924
HOSPItaLS. .. .o 7,927
S BW BT .. ittt et et ee e e e e e et e 36,683
POR. .. ..ottt e et e e et et e e et e e e s er e e e 10,252
Market. ..o e 282
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 345,689
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Equipment is generally estimated to have useful lives of 2 to 40 years, except for certain equipment of the
Water Enterprise that has an estimated useful life of up to 75 years. Facilities and improvements are
generally estimated to have useful lives from 15 to 50 years, except for utility type assets of the Water
Enterprise, Hetch Hetchy Water and Power (Hetch Hetchy), the Wastewater Enterprise, the Municipal
Transportation Agency (MTA), Laguna Honda Hospital (LHH), and the Port of San Francisco (Port) that
have estimated useful lives from 51 to 175 years. These long-lived assets include reservoirs, aqueducts,
pumping stations of Hetch Hetchy, Cable Car Barn facilities and structures of MTA, building and
structures of LHH, and pier substructures of the Port and totaled $1.6 billion as of June 30, 2007. In
addition, the Water Enterprise had utility type assets with useful lives over 100 years, which totaled $4.5
million as of June 30, 2007.

In fiscal year 2006-2007, the Airport determined that the original estimates of the useful life of certain
fixed assets were too short relative to their economic life. Based on a combined engineering and
architectural reevaluation of certain Airport facilities and the 2006 Pavement Survey report, the useful
lives of specific fixed assets with a total value of $742 million were extended an additional 5 to 30 years;
these fixed assets include drainage, runways, taxiways, roadways, and buildings. Depreciation expenses
related to these assets were $32.3 million prior to the adjustment; the adjusted depreciation expense
aggregated $15.8 million, a net reduction in annual depreciation of $16.5 million.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the City’s enterprise funds incurred total interest expense
and interest income of approximately $268 million and $85.7 million, respectively. Of these amounts,
interest expense of approximately $16.6 million was capitalized, while no interest income was received as
part of the cost of constructing proprietary capital assets.

During fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the Water Enterprise, Hetch Hetchy, and the Wastewater
Enterprise expensed $10.2 million, $4.6 million, and $0.7 million, respectively, related to capitalized
design and planning costs on certain projects that were discontinued. The amounts of the write-off were
recognized as other operating expense in the accompanying financial statements.
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Component Unit —Redevelopment Agency

Capital asset activity of the Redevelopment Agency for the year ended June 30, 2007 was as follows (in

thousands):

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Property held underlease...............cccooiiiiii e
Construction in Progress... ... ..o eee ceesevvvceeieee e

Total capital assets, not being depreciated/amortized........

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Facilities and improvements... .......c.coovev e e e e

Machinery and equipment............
Leasehold improvements....

Total capital assets, being depreciated...................c.... ...

Less accumulated depreciation and amoritzation for:

Facilities and improvements............cco e v ve vt ves e ve cin s cns
Machinery and equipment..........c.cc.ccoiiiiini
Leasehold improvements. .. ........cooo v et ve v e cve e,

Total accumulated depreciation and amoritzation.............
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net...............................

Redevelopment Agency capital assets, net.....................
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Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2006 Increases Decreases 2007
$ 104,968 $ 6,504 $ $ 111,472
14,997 - 14,997
119,965 6,504 126,469
172,325 609 172,934
8,068 - 8,068
22,202 - 22,202
202,595 609 203,204
40,071 4,323 44,394
7,668 115 7,783
8,218 444 8,662
55,957 4,882 60,839
146,638 (4,273) 142,365
$ 266,603 $ 2,231 $ $ 268,834
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BONDS, LOANS, CAPITAL LEASES AND OTHER PAYABLES

Short-Term Obligations

The following is a summary of short-term obligations of the City as of June 30, 2007 (in thousands):

Final
Maturity Interest
Type of Obligation Date Rates Amount

Governmental activities:

Commercial PAPer..........ccccuuvieieriiiinieecieiecne e eeraenes 2007 3.3510 3.66% $ 150,000
Enterprise activities:

Commercial paper

San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise....................... 2007 3.59103.7% $ 50,000

Changes in Short-Term Obligations

The changes in short-term obligations for governmental and enterprise activities for the year ended June
30, 2007, are as follows (in thousands):

July 1, Additional Current June 30,
2006 Obligations Maturities 2007
Governmental activities:
COMMENCIEl PAPET. .. .. eveevcvecrecrnvreereseearrere e s s e e e e 9 150,000 $ 150,000 $ (150,000) $ 150,000
Governmental activities short-term obligations..................c........ $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $ (150,000 $ 150,000
Enterprise activities:
Commercial paper
San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise.............ceovvc i $ - $ 100,000 $ (50,0000 $ 50,000
Business-type activities short-term obligations..................... $ - $ 100,000 $  (50,000) $ 50,000

San Francisco County Transportation Authority Commercial Paper Notes

In March 2004, the San Francisco County Transportation Authority (the Authority) authorized the
issuance of an initial tranche of up to $50 million and in August 2004, the Authority authorized the second
tranche of $100 million of a programmed $200 million aggregate principal amount of commercial paper
notes (Limited Tax Bonds), Series A and B. The commercial paper notes are issued to provide an interim
source of financing for the Authority’s Proposition K Expenditure Plan until a permanent financing plan is
finalized and implemented. Under this program, the Authority is able to issue commercial paper notes at
prevailing interest rates not to exceed 12% per annum. The maximum maturity of the notes is 270 days.
The principal amount of the commercial paper notes plus interest thereon is backed as to credit and
liquidity by an irrevocable Letter of Credit (LOC), issued by Landesbank Baden-Wirttemberg, New York
Branch in the amount up to $217.8 million. On July 12, 2005, the expiration date of the irrevocable L.LOC
was extended from April 14, 2007 to December 29, 2015 through Authority Board Resolution 06-01. The
commercial paper notes are secured by a first lien gross pledge of the Authority’s sales tax. The principal
and interest on the commercial paper notes is payable at each maturity.

As of June 30, 2007, $150 million in commercial paper notes was outstanding and maturing within 1 to
120 days after year-end with interest rates ranging from 3.35% to 3.66%.

San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise

The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission and Board of Supervisors have authorized the issuance of
up to $150 million in commercial paper under the voter-approved 2002 Proposition E. The commercial
paper program is supported by a letter of credit issued by BNP Paribas as of February 2007, and through
the U.S. Bank Trust N.A., as the agent bank as of February 2007. For the year ended June 30, 2007, the
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Wastewater Enterprise had $50 million in commercial paper notes outstanding with interest rates ranging
from 3.59% to 3.7%.

Long-Term Obligations

The following is a summary of long-term obligations of the City as of June 30, 2007 (in thousands):

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Final Remaining
Maturity Interest
Type of Obligation and Purpose Date Rates Amount
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (a):
Affordable housing... 2021 4.0 to 7.05% $ 64,780
California Academy ofScnences 2025 3.0 to 5.25% 80,995
Laguna Honda Hospltal 2030 3.25 to 5.0%* 299,000
Library... 2025 2510 5.0% 64,245
Museums 2019 4625 to 4.875% 2,355
Parks and playgrounds 2024 2.4 10 5.25% 103,920
Schools... . 2023 2.4105.125% 29,835
Seismic safety Ioan program.. 2026 5.69% 1,944
Steinhart Aquarium. 2025 3.0t0 5.0% 27,175
Zoo facilities......... 2025 2.5t05.125% 13,500
Refunding.... 2020 3.5t05.5% 468,195
General obligation bonds - governmental activities................... 1,155,944
LEASE REVENUE BONDS:
San Francisco Finance Corporation (B) & (€)............ccoccviiiiin e 2030 2.2 to 5.5%* 249,550
Lease revenue bonds - governmental activities........................ 249,550
OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS:
Certificates of participation (€) & (d).............cooovviiiiiiiicni e 2040 3.0t05.3% 420,620
Loans (c), (d) & (f)... 2025 2.0to 7.498% 11,640
Capital leases payable (c) & (f) . 2025 2.5107.05% 185,736
Settlement Obligation Bonds (d)......... . 2011 2.4 to 3.05% 27,095
Accrued vacation and sick leave (d) & (f)... 134,213
Accrued workers' compensation (d) & (f)... 194,689
Estimated claims payable (d) & (f)...............co o 114,431
Other long-term obligations - governmental activities................ 1,088,424
DEFERRED AMOUNTS:
Bond iSSUANCe PremiUMS. .. ...oviveiei it iiiiii i iie i ettt eaa e 26,997
Bond issuance diSCOUNtS...........ccooooivuiiii it e e (4,107)
Bond refunding..........cooiier et s e (10,321)
Deferred amoUNtS.........ovie i cen i e e 12,569
Governmental activities total long-term obligations............... $ 2,506,487

Debt service payments are made from the following sources:

(a) Property tax recorded in the Debt Service Fund.

(b) Lease revenues from participating departments in the General, Special Revenue and Enterprise Funds.
(c) Revenues recorded in the Special Revenue Funds.

(d) Revenues recorded in the General Fund.

e Hotel taxes and other revenues recorded in the General and Special Revenue Funds.

U] User-charge reimbursements from the General, Special Revenue and Enterprise Funds.

Internal Service Funds serve primarily the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for the Internal Service Funds are included
in the above amounts.

*  Laguna Honda Hospital General Obligation Bonds Series 2005 A and Series 2005 | are fixed rate bonds. Series 2005 B, C and D are
variable rate bonds that reset weekly. The remaining interest rates stated above are for Series 2005 A and Series 2005 |. The average
interest rate for the variable rate bonds from issuance date of May 26, 2005 through June 30, 2007 was 3.14%. The rate at June 30,
2007 was 3.62%.

* Includes the Moscone Center West Expansion Project, which was financed with variable rate bonds that reset weekly. The average
interest rate from issuance date of November 2, 2000 through June 30, 2007 was 2.05%. The rate at June 30, 2007 was 3.62%.
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Final Remaining
Maturity Interest
Entity and Type of Obligation Date Rates Amount
San Francisco International Airport:

Revenue bonds. ... e, 2032 3.0 to 8.0%* 3,952,300
San Francisco Water Enterprise:

Revenue bonds..........coiiii i 2036 3.125 t0 6.25% 966,080

Accreted interest..........coooi i e 3,165
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power:

Notes, loans, and otherpayables..............ccooiiiiiii i, 2010 3.0% 390
Municipal Transportation Agency:

Parking and Traffic

Revenue bonds........... 2020 4.0t0 5.0% 19,090
Lease revenue bONdS.........coo v it con i e e e 2022 3.875t0 5.5% 8,405
Capital leases.. . P, 2008 2.50% 19
Notes, loans and other payables*‘ 2010 3.0t05.25% 11,617

Downtown Parking - parking revenue refundlng bonds 2018 4.0 to 5.375% 10,060

Ellis-O'Farrell - parking revenue refunding bonds......................... 2017 3.5t04.7% 4,595

Japan Center Garage Corporation - notes, loans and other

payables... [T 2008 6.75% 90

Uptown Parklng - revenue bonds 2031 4.5106.0% 17,790
San Francisco General Hospital Medica! Center:

Capital 18aSeS.........vviiiii i 201 4.25% 3,363
San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise:

Revenue bonds.. . 2025 3.0t0 5.25% 362,825

State of Callforma Revolvmg fund Ioans 2021 2.8t03.5% 102,438
Port of San Francisco:

Revenue bonds.. . 2010 2.25t0 4.0% 12,575

Notes, loans and other payables 2029 4.5% 3,195
Laguna Honda Hospital:

Capial IEASES. .. .ce e oo e e e 2009 3.465% 1,117
Accrued vacation and sick leave................coooi i 84,899
Accrued workers' compensation..............occooii i 146,439
Estimated claims payable...............oooi 78,509
Deferred Amounts:

Bond iSSUaNCe PremiumsS. .. .......ii it it e e e e e ea s 95,437

Bond issuance diSCOUNtS...........ocooiiiiiii i (11,302)

Bond refunding (116,291)

Business-type activities total long-term obligations.................. 5,756,795

* Includes Second Series Revenue Bonds Issue 31 A/ E and 32 A/ E, which were issued in an auction mode and
Issue 33 initially issued as variable rate bonds in a weekly mode. The average interest rates on the Issue 31 A/E
and 32 A/ E were 3.557% and 3.527% respectively for the period July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2007. The average
interest rate on the Issue 33 bonds from July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2007 was 3.557%.

** |ncludes an unamortized loan premium of $0.5 million for Parking and Traffic.

Sources of funds to meet debt service requirements are revenues derived from user fees and charges for

services recorded in their respective enterprise funds.
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COMPONENT UNIT
Final Remaining
Maturity Interest
Entity and Type of Obligation Date Rates Amount
SAN FRANCISCO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
AND FINANCING AUTHORITY:
Lease Revenue Bonds:

Moscone Convention Center (2)............ oo et eeeeeiir e eeine, 2025 2.5t07.05% $ 127,499
Hotel Tax Revenue Bonds (b).........cocor v ieviicinn i it v 2026 4.4106.75% 62,300
Financing Authority Bonds:

Tax Allocation Revenue Bonds (€)..........coeevveiiiviniiiiiniiinnes, 2037 2.0t08.3% 575,994
South Beach Harbor Variable Rate

Refunding Bonds (d)...........ccooovmiiiiiiiii s 2017 Variable (3.73% at 6/30/07) 7,700
Less deferred amounts:

Bond iSSUANCe PremMiUmS...... .. e vvevevee e vt it 7,908

Bond issuance discounts.............oooeveriies e e (733)

Refunding [0SS... ....coveviiiie i (3,729)

Sub-tofal.......coo 776,939
California Department of Boating and Waterways Loan (g)............ 2037 4.5% 7,999
Accreted interest payable..........c..ooooii i 70,041
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay..........c.ccoco i e 2,544

Component unit total long-term obligations............................ $ 857,523

Debt service payments are made from the following sources:

(a) Hotel taxes and operating revenues recorded in the Convention Facilities Special Revenue Fund and existing debt service/escrow
trust funds.

(b) Hotel taxes from hotels located in the Redevelopment Project Areas.

) Property taxes allocated to the Redevelopment Agency based on increased assessed valuations in project areas (note 12) and
existing debt service/escrow trust funds.

d) South Beach Harbor Project cash reserves, property tax increments and project revenues.

(e) South Beach Harbor Project revenues (subordinated to Refunding Bonds).

Debt Compliance

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The City
believes it is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions.

Legal Debt Limit and Legal Debt Margin

As of June 30, 2007, the City’s debt limit (3% of valuation subject to taxation) was $3.7 billion. The total
amount of debt applicable to the debt limit was $1.1 billion. The resulting legal debt margin was $2.6

billion.

Arbitrage

Under U.S. Treasury Department regulations, all governmental tax-exempt debt issued after August 31,
1986 is subject to arbitrage rebate requirements. The requirements stipulate, in general, that the
earnings from the investment of tax exempt bond proceeds, which exceed related interest expenditures
on the bonds, must be remitted to the Federal government on every fifth anniversary of each bond issue.
The City has evaluated each general obligation bond and certificates of participation and has recognized
an arbitrage liability of $1.9 million as of June 30, 2007. This arbitrage liability is reported in deferred
credits and other liabilities in the governmental activities of the statement of net assets. The Finance
Corporation has evaluated their lease revenue bonds and a liability of $0.4 million was reported in the
deferred credits and other liabilities in the governmental activities and Internal Service Fund as of June
30, 2007. Each enterprise fund has performed a similar analysis of its debt, which is subject to arbitrage
rebate requirements. Any material arbitrage liability related to the debt of the enterprise funds has been
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recorded as a liability in the respective fund. In addition, the Redevelopment Agency records any
arbitrage liability in deferred credits and other liabilities.

Assessment District

During June 1996, the City issued $1 million of Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds for the Bayshore
Hester Assessment District No. 95-1. These bonds were issued pursuant to the Improvement Bond Act
of 1915. The proceeds were used to finance the construction of a new public right-of-way. The bonds
began to mature during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 and continue through 2026 bearing interest
from 6.0% to 6.85%. These bonds do not represent obligations of the City. Neither the faith and credit
nor the taxing power of the City is pledged to the payment of the bonds. Accordingly, the debt has not
been included in the basic financial statements. Assessments collected for repayment of this debt are
received in the Tax Collection Agency Fund. Unpaid assessments constitute fixed liens on the lots and
parcels assessed within the Bayshore-Hester Assessment District and do not constitute a personal
indebtedness of the respective owners of such lots and parcels.

Mortgage Revenue Bonds

In order to facilitate affordable housing, the City issues mortgage revenue bonds for the financing of
multifamily rental housing and for below-market rate mortgage financing for first time homebuyers. These
obligations are secured by the related mortgage indebtedness and are not obligations of the City. As of
June 30, 2007, the aggregate outstanding obligation of such bonds was $85.1 million.

Changes in Long-Term Obligations

The changes in long-term obligations for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2007, are as
follows (in thousands):

Additional
Obligations, Current
Interest Maturities
Accretion Retirements, Amounts
July 1, and Net and Net June 30, Due Within
2006 Increases Decreases 2007 One Year
Governmental activities:
Bonds payable:

General obligation bonds..........c.ccc oo v v vervie v, § 1232205 159255 § (235516) § 1,155944 § 89589
Lease revenue bonds... ...... ... vee v revvecvr e st e 231,265 38,835 (20,550) 249,550 21,380
Certificates of participation... ..........c..c.occ.... 276,160 153,700 (9,240) 420,620 8,420
Settlement obligation bonds...........c....ceeieeervercnnee 32,955 - (5,860) 27,095 6,510

Less deferred amotnts:
FOr iSSUance premiums... .. ..o veeecevcvvee meevecvennn 24,983 3,908 (1,894) 26,997 -
For issuance disCOunts... .........c..eccvvveve o cevnn e (2,341) (1,856) 90 (4,107) -
ONTEfUNING... ... covee oo e et e et e e (5,092) (6,285) 1,056 (10,321) -
Total bonds payable...........ccve e e 1,790,135 347,557 (271,914) 1,865,778 125,899
LOBNMS... oo cov e ettt e et e e ettt et b e 12,377 141 (878) 11,640 933
Capital l2ases..........co.ce e e vcrircrrcns 190,279 8,805 (13,348} 185,736 17,040
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay........ 132,524 86,411 (84,722) 134,213 70,100
Accrued workers' COMPENSation. ... ......c..ce v cveeennne 202,481 28,038 (35,830} 194,689 38,963
Estimated claims payable.............c.coooverive v veriee e 69,477 64,389 (19,435) 114,431 52,521
Governmental activities long-term obligations.......... $§ 2397273 § 535341 § (426127) § 2506487 § 305462

Internal Service Funds serve primarily the governmental funds, the long-term liabilities of which are
included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. At the year ended June 30, 2007, $250.1
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million of lease revenue bonds, $0.2 million of capital leases, $3.8 million of accrued vacation and sick
leave pay and $0.8 million of accrued workers’ compensation are included in the above amounts. Also,
for the governmental activities, claims and judgments and compensated absences are generally
liquidated by the General Fund.

The changes in long-term obligations for each enterprise fund for the year ended June 30, 2007, are as
follows (in thousands):

Additional Current
Obligations, Maturities
Interest Retirements, Amounts
July 1, Accretion and and June 30, Due Within
2006 Net Increases Net Decreases 2007 One Year
San Francisco International Airport
Bonds payable:
Revenue bongds............cocoverevrerecrnmeiiiniiiie s $ 4048006 § 453000 § (548,706) § 3952300 § 90,100
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance premiums.... 16,476 35,888 (3.235) 49,129 -
For issuance discounts. (15,497) - 4,195 (11,302) -
On refunding. {66.761) (20,817) 7,143 (80,435)
Total Bonds payable..............ccovoeivernienmernnns 3,982,224 468,071 (540,603) 3,909,692 90,100
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay.........c.c...oovcinicnees 12,330 9,794 (9,289) 12,835 6,733
Accrued workers’ compensation.. 4,952 1,878 (2,053) 4717 1,141
Estimated claims payable. 37 284 (281) 40 15
Long-term obligations..............coeerreerrecurnerieniins § 3999543 § 480,027 § (552,226) § 3927344 § 97,989
San Francisco Water Enterprise
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds..............covvevvimvimmmreinincnniesinins § 981765 § 48730 § (64415) § 966,080 § 19,170
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance premiums................ccoeeeercennerincnenes 27,487 503 (1,078) 26,912 -
For issuance discounts.............ccccoeevrcnnnecnininins, (1.268) - 1,268 - -
On refunding (13,559) (2.861) 1,032 {15,388) -
Total bonds payable............cccccerrrercrneiecnns 994,425 46,372 (63,193} 977,604 19,170
Accreted interest payable....................cooo i 2,945 210 - 3,155 -
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay.... 10,395 8,146 (7,370) 1,171 5,761
Accrued workers' compensation.. 8,719 1,658 (2,031) 8,346 1,699
Estimated claims payable 5,800 4,518 (3,384) 6,934 1,652
Long-term obligations..............cccccoovvenrreviiiinns $ 1,022,284 § 60,904 § (75978) § 1,007,210 § 28282
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power
Notes, loans, and other payables..... A 494 § -8 (104) $ 39 0§ 107
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay. 2,142 1,445 (1,272) 2,315 1,276
Accrued workers' compensation 1,938 881 (633) 2,186 428
Estimated claims payable.............cccoorriironniiinnnns 4,999 2,718 (2,935) 4,782 1,658
Long-term obligations.............c.cocoervvinrniiinn $ 9573 § 5044 § (4944) § 9673 § 3469
Municipal Transportation Agency
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds.............cocoecererrcrececrmmemneicn s $ 53985 % -8 (2450) $ 5153 § 2555
Lease revenue bonds..............cccovvecrmeciinneiiieniiccnenns 9,455 - (1,050) 8,405 1,085
Less deferred amounts:
Forissuance premiums... 908 - (34) 874 -
Total bonds payable....... . 64,348 - (3,534) 60,814 3,650
Notes, loans, and other payables. 16,244 - (4,537) 11,707 * 4,520
Capital leases.............c...ccouee. 57 - (38) 19 19
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay.... 2411 21,757 (19,958) 26,510 15,465
Accrued workers' compensation...... 106,280 4371 (16,740) 93,911 20,423
Estimated claims payable 59,604 8,892 (11,554) 56,942 15,425
Long-tem obligations................ccvvrmrrsiiimnirenes $ 271244 3§ 35020 § (56,361) & 249,903 § 59,502
*Includes an L ized loan premium of $0.5 million for Parking and Traffic.
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The changes in long-term obligations for each enterprise fund for the year ended June 30, 2007, are as
follows (in thousands) - continued:

Additional
Obligations, Current
Interest Maturities
Accretion Retirements, Amounts
July1, and Net and Net June 30, Due Within
2006 Increases Decreases 2007 One Year
San Francisco General Hospital Medical Center
Capital IBBSES. ......v.vee e ercresee e 9 3800 § 6% § (1,073) § 333 § 1,183
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay. 15,188 12,594 (11,596) 16,186 9,334
Accrued workers' compensation..........c...oce e v ee e e 20,714 4431 (5,385) 19,760 3,713
Long-term obligations..............ccrvcrcevciiesecreceee. $ 39,702 § 17661 $ (18054) § 39309 § 14230
San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise
Bonds payable:
Revenuebonds..........ccccoveevercecie e, 3 396270 § - $ (33445) § 362825 § 34,500
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance premiums...........c.coevveeirinnvennne e vueens 19,375 - (1,005) 18,370 -
ONrefunding.......c.ovcervrmceeeseeerne e (21,670) - 1,726 (19,944) -
Total bonds payable.............cooeerrieicrcncicncs 393,975 - (32,724) 361,251 34,500
State of Califonia - Revolving fund loans.............cccccceeein 118,868 - (16,430) 102,438 13,337
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay............coevreneieenees 4,316 3,093 (2,679) 4,730 2,588
Accrued workers' compensation...............ccuv oo coriienns 4173 735 (764) 4,144 804
Estimated claims payable..............ccooveucrmtieonecorerccorecnns 5,979 3,086 (354) 8,711 2,136
Long-term obligations...............coocee e iorvecnr v § 527311 § 6914 § (52951) § 481274 § 53365
Port of San Francisco
Bonds payable:
ReVENUE BONAS.......vveerveeeeeeee et evereirevvisnn . 3 16,850 § - $ (3975) § 12,575 $ 4070
Less deferred amounts:
FOr iSSUaNCe Premilums..........c.ceuveeeveeeeeecrnereeranas 227 - (75) 152 -
ONTERUNGING. .. ..o e (786) 262 - (524) -
Total bonds payable.............cocoveeeorierie e 15,991 262 (4,050) 12,203 4,070
Notes, loans, and other payables................cocoviinnnnn 3,279 - (84) 3,195 88
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay...............ccvvevinnne 1,779 1,684 (1,525) 1,938 1,083
Accrued workers' compensation..............occcverve i 3,119 100 (472) 2,747 478
Estimated claims payable.............cccooovreverieericconcnn 1,364 162 (426) 1,100 600
Long-term obligations..............ccovevee e, § 25532 § 2208 $ 657 § 21183 § 6319
Laguna Honda Hospital
Capital 188SES........ceee et e § 1665 § -8 (548) $ 1,117 8§ 519
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay.............ccocovvieiiin 8,702 7,135 (6,623) 9,214 5,488
Accrued workers' compensation.............c..ccoveeiniier e 11,759 1,661 (2,852) 10,568 2,143
Long-term obligations.............cccooveccrinericrren. $ 22126 § 8796 § (10023) § 20899 § 8150
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A summary of the changes in long-term obligations for all enterprise funds for the year ended June 30,
2007, is as follows (in thousands):

Additional
Obligations, Current
Inferest Maturities
Accretion Retirements, Amounts
July1, and Net and Net June 30, Due Within
2006 Increases Decreases 2007 One Year
Total Business-type Activities:
Bonds payable:
Revenue BORGS.............covcc s s $ 5496576 § 501,730 § (652991) § 5345315 § 150,395
Lease revenue bonds.............co.oovesveevveneras 9,455 - {1,050) 8,405 1,095
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance premiums...... 64,473 36,301 (5.427) 95,437
For issuance discounts... (16,765) - 5,463 (11.302)
On refunding... ..o (102,776) (23,416) 9,901 {116,291)
Tolal bonds payable... .......covvevmror e vvcver e 5,450,963 514705 (644,104) 5,321,564 151,490
Accreted interest payable............ e e rcenir i 2,945 210 - 3,155 -
State of Califomia - Revolving fund lears....... 118,868 - {16,430) 102,438 13337
Notes, loans, and other payables................. 20017 - (4725) 15,292 4715
Capital leases... ... ccccooremvvennenns 5522 6% (1659) 4498 1,721
Accrued vacation and sick leave pa 79,563 65,648 (60,312) 84,899 47728
Accrued workers' compensation. 161,654 15715 (30,930) 146,439 30,829
Estimated claims payable.............. 77,783 19,660 {18,934) 78,509 21,486
Business-type activities long-term obligations............. $ 5917315 ¢ 616574 § (777094) § 5,756,795 § 271,308

The changes in long term obligations for the component unit for the year ended June 30, 2007, are as
follows (in thousands):

Additional
Obligations, Current
Interest Maturities
Accretion Retirements, Amounts
July1, and Net and Net June 30, Due Within
2006 Increases Decreases 2007 One Year
Component Unit: San Francisco Redevelopment Agency
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds........c....coocveevcivicecercircinescineeee. 3 708,343 8 85241 § (27,791) § 765793 § 36507
Refunding bonds.............coovr i i 8,500 - (800) 7,700 -
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance premiums...........c.eveeeererevercc s 8,604 - (696) 7,908 -
For issuance discounts. 671) (103) 4 (733) -
On refunding.......c.vev e ceviirine i s (4,043) - 314 (3,729) -
Total bonds payable..........c.ccoereerierrerecrnineene 720,733 85,138 (28,932) 776,939 36,507
Accreted interest payable................ooccoooorrvovoeceoee: 74,151 9,465 (13,575) 70,041 9748 O
Notes, foans, and other payables................ocoovneicinaen 8,000 - (1) 7,999 7
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay..........c.ccooe v 2,807 18 (281) 2,544 1,219
Component unit - long-term obligations.................... $ 805691 § 94621 § (42,789) § 857,523 § 47,482

™ This amount is included in accrued interest payable in the accompanying Statement of Net Assets.
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for all bonds and loans outstanding as of June 30, 2007, for
governmental activities are as follows (in thousands):

Governmental Activities (1) (2)

Fiscal Year General Obligation Lease Revenue Other Long-Term
Ending Bonds Bonds Obligations Total

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

$ 89589 § 53401 $ 21380 $ 9900 $ 1583 § 19371 $ 126832 § 82,672
95,303 49,211 21,605 9,147 18,191 20,199 135,099 78,557
89,646 44,791 13,560 8,332 19,361 19,547 122,587 72,670
91,310 40,463 11,675 7,802 20,087 18,811 123,072 67,076
79,774 36,292 9,345 7,370 13,642 18,003 102,761 61,665

307,209 131,419 41,605 31,422 69,822 80,830 418,636 243,671
2018-2022...... 218,594 67,332 46,080 22,536 62,670 64,827 327,344 154,695
2023-2027...... 127,689 25,999 52,380 12,389 69,134 48,792 249,203 87,180
2028-2032...... 56,830 4,761 31,900 2,398 83,540 30,584 172,270 37,743
2033-2037...... - - - - 54,940 12,353 54,940 12,353
2038-2042...... - - - - 32,105 2,969 32,105 2,969
Tofal............. $ 1,155944 § 453669 $ 249550 § 111,296 § 459355 § 336286  § 1,864,849 § 901,251

(1)  The specific year for payment of estimated claims payable, accrued vacation and sick leave pay and accrued workers' compensation is not
practicable to determine.

(2)  Includes the following variable rate demand notes, the Moscone Center Expansion Project Lease Revenue Bonds and Laguna Honda Hospital
General Obligation Bonds. Currently, they bear interest at a weekly rate. The rate at June 30, 2007 was 3.62%, together with an ancillary fee
of 0.242% and 0.255% for Moscone bonds and Laguna Honda bonds respectively, was used to project the interest payment in this table.

The annual debt service requirement to maturity for all bonds and loans outstanding as of June 30, 2007,
for each enterprise fund is as follows (in thousands):

San Francisco International Airport (1)

Fiscal Year Revenue Other Long-Term
Ending Bonds Obligations Total
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2008.. $ 90100 § 1825%6 § - % - 8 90,100 § 182,596
102,435 178,945 - - 102,435 178,945
114,100 173,554 - - 114,100 173,554
140,545 169,081 - - 140,545 169,081
151,545 162,064 - - 151,545 162,064
2013-2017..... 835,360 716,040 - - 835,360 716,040
2018-2022..... 1,023,310 601,392 - - 1,023,310 601,392
2023-2027..... 1,063,495 327,600 - - 1,063,495 327,600
2028-2032..... 431,410 46,091 - - 431,410 46,091
Total............. $ 3952300 § 2,557,363 § -8 - § 3952300 § 2,567,363

(1)  The specific year for payment of estimated claims payable, accrued vacation and sick leave pay and accrued workers’ compensation is not
practicable to determine.
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The annual debt service requirement to maturity for all bonds and loans outstanding as of June 30, 2007,
for each enterprise fund is as follows (in thousands) - continued:

San Francisco Water Enterprise (1)

Fiscal Year Revenue Other Long-Term

Ending Bonds Obligations Total

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2008............ $ 19170 $. 45023 $ - $ - $ 19,170 $ 45023
2009............. 25,520 44,065 - - 25,520 44,065
2010............. 26,605 42,991 - - 26,605 42,991
2011t 27,795 41,784 - - 27,795 41,784
2012............. 29,190 40,401 - - 29,190 40,401
2013-2017..... 160,155 179,390 - - 160,155 179,390
2018-2022..... 150,475 142,805 - - 150,475 142,805
2023-2027..... 175,790 104,216 - - 175,790 104,216
2028-2032..... 198,765 59,396 - - 198,765 59,396
2033-2037..... 152,615 17,509 - - 152,615 17,509
Total............. $ 966,080 $ 717,580 $ - $ - $ 966,080 $ 717,580

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power (1)

Fiscal Year Revenue Other Long-Term
Ending Bonds Obligations Total
June 30 Principat Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ - $ - $ 107 $ 11 $ 107 $ 11
- - 110 8 110 8
- - 115 4 1156 4
- - 58 1 58
Total............. 8 - $ - $ 390 $ 24 $ 390 $ 24

Municipal Transportation Agency (1) (2)

Fiscal Year Revenue/Lease Other Long-Term

Ending Revenue Bonds Obligations Total

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2008............. § 3,650 $ 2,498 $ 4520 $ 506 $ 8,170 $ 3,004
2009............. 3,810 2,869 6,381 283 10,191 3,162
2010............. 3,125 2,726 279 61 3,404 2,787
2011 3,260 2,587 - - 3,260 2,587
2012............. 3,405 2,438 - - 3,405 2,438
2013-2017..... 19,705 9,585 - - 19,705 9,585
2018-2022..... 12,795 4779 - - 12,795 4,779
2023-2027..... 4,360 2,564 - - 4,360 2,564
2028-2032..... 5,830 1,090 - - 5,830 1,090
Total............. § 59940 $ 31,136 $ 11,180 $ 850 $ 71,120 $ 31,986

(1)  The specific year for payment of accreted interest payable (San Francisco Water Enterprise), estimated claims payable, accrued
vacation and sick leave pay and accrued workers' compensation is not practicable to determine.
(2) Unamortized loan premiums of $0.5 million (MTA) are not included in principal payments.
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The annual debt service requirement to maturity for all bonds and loans outstanding as of June 30, 2007,
for each enterprise fund is as follows (in thousands) - continued:

San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise (1)

Fiscal Year Revenue Other Long-Term
Ending Bonds Obligations Total

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 34,500 $ 15,698 $ 13,337 $ 3,168 $ 47837 $ 18,866
35,665 14,646 13,761 2,744 49,426 17,390
37,130 13,183 14,198 2,307 51,328 15,490
26,320 11,827 14,650 1,855 40,970 13,682
22,010 10,959 9,594 1,389 31,604 12,348
2013-2017..... 112,525 37,338 30,372 3,264 142,897 40,602
2018-2022..... 70,805 15,400 6,526 480 77,331 15,880
2023-2027..... 23,870 1,470 - - 23,870 1,470
Tofal............. $ 362,825 $ 120,521 $ 102,438 $ 15207 $ 465263 $ 135,728

Port of San Francisco (1)
Fiscal Year Revenue Other Long-Term
Ending Bonds Obligations Total

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 4,070 $ 348 $ 88 $ 144 $ 4,158 $ 492
4,185 222 92 140 4,277 362
4,320 75 96 136 4,416 211
- - 100 131 100 131
- - 105 127 105 127
2013-2017..... - - 600 559 600 559
2018-2022..... - - 748 411 748 411
2023-2027..... - - 932 227 932 227
2028-2032..... - - 434 29 434 29
Total............. $ 12,575 3 645 $ 3,195 $ 1,804 3 15,770 $ 2,549

A summary of the annual debt service requirement to maturity for all bonds and loans outstanding as of
June 30, 2007 for business-type activities is as follows (in thousands):

Total Business-type Activities (1) (2)

M

2

Fiscal Year Revenue/Lease Revenue Other Long-Term
Ending Bonds Obligations Total

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 151,490 $ 246,163 $ 18,051 $ 3,829 $ 169,541 $ 249,992
171,615 240,747 20,344 3,175 191,959 243,922
185,280 232,529 14,688 2,508 199,968 235,037
197,920 225,279 14,808 1,987 212,728 227,266
206,150 215,862 9,699 1,516 215,849 217,378
. 1,127,745 942,353 30,972 3,823 1,158,717 946,176
2018-2022..... 1,257,385 764,376 7,274 891 1,264,659 765,267
2023-2027..... 1,267,515 435,850 932 227 1,268,447 436,077
2028-2032..... 636,005 106,577 434 29 636,439 106,606
2033-2037..... 152,615 17,509 - - 152,615 17,509
Total............. $ 5,353,720 $ 3,427,245 $ 117,202 $ 17,985 $ 5,470,922 $ 3,445,230

The specific year for payment of accreted interest payable (San Francisco Water Enterprise), estimated claims payable, accrued

vacation and sick leave pay and accrued workers' compensation is not practicable to determine.

Unamortized loan premiums of $0.5 million (MTA) are not included in principal payments.
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The annual debt service requirements to maturity for all bonds and loans outstanding as of June 30,
2007, for the component unit are as follows (in thousands):

Component Unit: San Francisco Redevelopment Agency (1)

Fiscal Year Lease Revenue Tax Revenue Other Long-Term

Ending Bonds Bonds Obligations Total

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2008............. $ 5,544 $ 13,027 $ 28,388 $ 26394 $ 2,582 $ 3,973 $ 36514 $ 43,394
2009............. 5,350 13,289 27177 26,904 2,652 3,815 35,179 44,008
2010....ccouueeee 5,152 13,565 27,597 25,833 2,799 3,610 35,548 43,008
2011 5,019 13,776 29,619 24,649 2,877 3,442 37,515 41,867
2012.......es 4,881 13,992 31,192 22,648 2,962 3,272 39,035 39,912
2013-2017...... 50,149 44,692 183,163 78,149 22133 13,612 255,445 136,453
2018-2022...... 42,420 5,658 147,715 41,974 20,660 8,293 210,795 55,925
2023-2027...... 8,984 704 44,936 63,458 17,625 3,015 71,545 67,177
2028-2032...... - - 30,872 29,716 2,018 661 32,890 30,377
2033-2037...... - - 25,335 26,124 1,691 178 27,026 26,302
Total............. $ 127,499 $ 118,703 $ 575,994 $ 365,849 $ 77,999 $ 43,871 $ 781,492 $ 528423

(1) The specific year for payment of accreted interest payable and accrued vacation and sick leave pay is not practicable to determine.
Governmental Activities Long-term Liabilities

General Obligation Bonds

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition or improvement of real
property and construction of affordable housing. General obligation bonds have been issued for both
governmental and business-type activities. The net authorized and unissued governmental activities
general obligation bonds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, are as follows (in thousands):

Governimental Activities - General Obligation Bonds

(in thousands)
Authorized and unissued as of June 30, 2006.....c.cccnveeeeei e eee e 346,005
Bonds issued:
Seismic Safety Loan Program.............ue v cee e cce et ne e e s s e s e 2,000
Net authorized and unissued as of June 30, 2007..... ....ccovrvemniorveeemeeeemeemre e 9 344,065

There were no new authorizations on general obligation bonds in fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

Seismic Safety Loan Program Government Obligation Bonds

The Seismic Safety Loan Program was approved by the voters of the City and County of San Francisco
by Proposition A in November 1992, which authorized the issuance of up to a total of $350 million
aggregate principal amount of government obligation bonds to provide funds for loans for the seismic
strengthening of privately-owned unreinforced masonry buildings within the City for affordable housing
and market-rate residential, commercial and institutional purposes and for related administrative costs.
Approximately 2,200 privately-owned unreinforced masonry buildings have been identified by the City.
These buildings are located throughout San Francisco, but are concentrated in Chinatown, the Tenderloin
and south of Market Street. In July 1992, the Board of Supervisors passed legislation mandating that
these buildings be seismically strengthened within specified periods of time. The owners of the
unreinforced masonry buildings are eligible to apply for loans under the Loan Program to finance the
required seismic strengthening work and certain other legally-required work.

in February 2007 the Board of Supervisors approved Resolution No. 65-07 which authorized the issuance

of indebtedness under Proposition A in the amount not to exceed $35 million. Such issuance was
achieved pursuant to the terms of a Credit Agreement with Bank of America, N.A. In March 2007, the City
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made the first borrowing under the Credit Agreement (Seismic Safety Loan Program, 1992) Series 2007A
in the amount of $2 million. The first borrowing bears an interest rate of 5.69% with principal amortizing
from June 2007 through June 2026. Within the first loan account are two loan sub-accounts, the market
loan account and the below market rate loan account. Debt service payments are funded through ad
valorem taxes on property and principal repayments from borrowers of the loan program.

Current Refundings

In October 2006, the City issued the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2006-R1 (Series 2006-
R1 Bonds) in the amount of $90.7 million with interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0% (maturing from
June 2007 through June 2020) to refund all or a portion of the City’s outstanding General Obligation
Bonds as follows:

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series R-1
(in thousands)

Amount Call Call
Description of Bonds Refunded Interest Rate Price Date
Series 1997A - Golden Gate Park Improvements, 1992 $15525 4.800% -525%  101.000% 11/30/2006
Series 1997B - School District Facilities Improvements, 1994 13625 4.800% -5.25% 101.000% 11/30/2006
Series 1999D - Asian Art Museum Relocation Project, 1994 9,585 5.000% -5.50%  102.000% 6/15/2007
Series 2000A - Educational Facilities, Community College
District, 1997 21,315 5.125% -5.75%  102.000% 6/15/2008
Series 2000B - Zoo Facilities, 1997 12,555 5.125%-5.75%  102.000% 6/15/2008
Series 2000C - Neighborhood Recreation & Park Facilities
improvement, 2000 4,455 5125%-575%  102.000%  6/15/2008
Series 2000D - Affordable Housing, 1996 11,580 4.750% -5.50%  102.000%  6/15/2008
$88,640

The net proceeds of $ 93.1 million (including original issue premium of $3.1 million, and after payment of
$0.7 million in underwriting fees and other issuance costs) were used to purchase certain direct
obligations of the United States of America (the “escrow securities”). The escrow securities were
deposited into an escrow account held by the escrow agent. As the refunded bonds become due for
interest payment and /or redemption, the escrow agents will transfer to the Treasurer of the City monies
held in the escrow account to pay the principal, redemption premium, and interest due on the refunded
bonds. The last of the refunded bonds will mature on June 15, 2008.

Although the refunding resulted in the recognition of deferred accounting loss of $4.5 million for the year
ended June 30, 2007, the City in effect reduced its aggregate debt service payments by $7 million and
obtained a net present value benefit of $5.4 million.

In December 2006, the City issued the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2006-R2 (Series
2006-R2) in the amount of $66.6 million with interest rates ranging from 3.5% to 4.15% (maturing from
June 2007 through June 2019) to refund the outstanding General Obligation Bonds with maturities from
June 2009 through June 2019, as follows:
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General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series R-2
(in thousands)

Amount Call Call
Description of Bonds Refunded Interest Rate Price Date
Series 1999A - Educational Facilities, Community College
District, 1997 $13,490 5.125%-5.50%  102.000% 6/15/2007
Series 1999B - Educational Facilities, San Francisco
Unified School District, 1997 40,045 5125%-550%  102.000% 6/15/2007
Series 1999C - Zoo Facilities, 1997 11,150 5.125% -5.50%  102.000% 6/15/2007
$64,685

The net proceeds of $66.5 million (including original issue premium of $0.4 million, and after payment of
$0.5 million in underwriting fees and other issuance costs) were used to purchase certain direct
obligations of the United States of America (the “escrow securities”). The escrow securities were
deposited into an escrow account held by the escrow agent. The escrow agent withdrew the funds from
the escrow funds and transferred to the Treasurer of the City for payment of principal, interest and
redemption premium on the refunded bonds on June 15, 2007.

The refunding resulted in the recognition of deferred accounting loss of $1.8 million for the year ended
June 30, 2007. However, the City in effect reduced its aggregate debt service payments by $9.4 million
and obtained a net present value benefit of $4.7 million.

Certificates of Participation

In May 2007, the City issued $153.7 million Certificates of Participation, City Office Buildings - Multiple
Properties Project, composed of Series 2007A for $152.1 million and Taxable Series 2007B for $1.6
million. The Series 2007A and Series 2007B Certificates were issued to provide funds to finance the
acquisition of existing office buildings located at One South Van Ness Avenue, San Francisco, California
(the “One South Van Ness Property”) and 1650 Mission Street, San Francisco, California, (the “Mission
Street Property”), to improve portions of the One South Van Ness Property, the Mission Street Property
and the existing City-owned property office building located at 30 Van Ness Avenue, San Francisco,
California (the “30 Van Ness Property”).

The Series 2007A were issued with interest rates ranging from 3.25% to 5.00% and mature from
September 2009 through September 2040. The Series 2007B were issued with interest rate of 5.25%
and matures in September 2008.
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Lease Revenue Bonds

The changes in governmental activities - lease revenue bonds for the year ended June 30, 2007 were as
follows:

Governmental Activities - Lease Revenue Bonds

(in thousands)

Authorized and unissued as of June 30, 2006. ...........ccieiiiiinieie e $ 126,699
Increase in authorization in this fiscal year:

Current year annual increase in Finance Corporation's equipment program.......... 2,078

Current year maturities in Finance Corporation's equipment program................... 10,450
Bonds issued:

Series 2007A, San Francisco Finance Corporation............ccoccoiviiiieiieiiieniennnne. (11,830)
Net authorized and unissued as of June 30, 2007.........cccovvvrereninrensnneenenennenneen. 9 127,397

Finance Corporation

The purpose of the Finance Corporation is to provide a means to publicly finance through lease
financings, the acquisition, construction and installation of facilities, equipment and other tangible real and
personal property for the City’s general governmental purposes.

The Finance Corporation uses lease revenue bonds to finance the purchase or construction of property
and equipment, which are in turn leased to the City under the terms of an Indenture and Equipment
Lease Agreement. These assets are then recorded in the basic financial statements of the City. Since
the sole purpose of the bond proceeds is to provide lease financing to the City, any amounts that a<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>